
           

City of Lubbock, Texas
Regular City Council Meeting

Tuesday, June 22, 2021
Daniel M. Pope, Mayor
Steve Massengale, Mayor Pro Tem, District 4
Juan A. Chadis, Councilman, District 1
Shelia Patterson Harris, Councilwoman, District 2
Jeff Griffith, Councilman, District 3
Randy Christian, Councilman, District 5
Latrelle Joy, Councilwoman, District 6

    W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager
Chad Weaver, City Attorney

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

http://www.mylubbock.us
Internet/Video Link: https://zoom.us/j/97566060796 or

Teleconference Phone #s: U.S.: +1-346-248-7799; + 1-312-626-6799; +1-646-558-8656; +1-669-900-9128
+1-253-215-8782; +1-301-715-8592; Enter ID#: 975 6606 0796

City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas

City of Lubbock City Council Meetings are available to all persons regardless of disability. If you require special assistance,
please contact the City Secretary's Office at 775-2061 or write to Post Office Box 2000, Lubbock, Texas 79457 at least 48 hours
in advance of the meeting.

Note: On occasion the City Council may consider agenda items out of order. 

Pursuant to the Executive Orders of Governor Abbott, and other authority provided by the Texas Attorney General, the City
Council will convene in-person and via video and/or teleconference. If the Executive Orders of Governor Abbott are amended
and prohibit the use of video and/or teleconference access to the meeting, the meeting will be held in-person only.

12:00 p.m. - City Council convenes in City Council Chambers in Work Session regarding items for
presentation and discussion on such issues that may require in-depth consideration by the City
Council. No action will be taken by the City Council in Work Session.
 

           

1. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as
appropriate.

  

 

1. 1. American Rescue Plan - Interim Final Rule and Funding Eligibility   

 

1. 2. Future Needs Committee Update and Report   

 

At the completion of the Work Session, City Council recesses into Executive Session.
 

2. Executive Session   

 

2. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071,
with legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
agreement and on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary
Rules of Professional Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

  

 

2. 1. 1. The City of Lubbock Charter and Potential Charter Amendment Election   

 

  

http://www.mylubbock.us


2. 1. 2. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Turnover Program   

 

2. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.071,
seeking the advice of its legal counsel about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
offers and hold a consultation with the attorney on matters in which the duty of the attorney
under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas
conflicts with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code: (i) legal advice and counsel
regarding matters identified in Section 2.5(a)-(f) of this Agenda; (ii) legal advice and counsel
regarding the City of Lubbock’s Note Purchase Program with Bank of America; and legal
issues regarding bond-related matters.

  

 

2. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072,
to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.

  

 

2. 3. 1. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Turnover Program   

 

2. 4. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code 551.074, to discuss
personnel matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the Building
Board of Appeals, Canadian River Municipal Water Authority, Lubbock Reese
Redevelopment Authority Board of Directors, Permit and License Appeal Board, and the
Planning and Zoning Commission.

 

2. 5. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code Section 551.086,
to discuss and deliberate, on the following competitive matters of Lubbock Power & Light,
reasonably related to the following categories:

a) generation unit specific and portfolio fixed and variable costs, including forecasts of those
costs, capital improvement plans for generation units, and generation unit operating
characteristics and outage scheduling;
b) bidding and pricing information for purchased power, generation and fuel, and Electric
Reliability Council of Texas bids, prices, offers, and related services and strategies;
c) effective fuel and purchased power agreements and fuel transportation arrangements and
contracts;
d) risk management information, contracts, and strategies, including fuel hedging and storage;
e) plans, studies, proposals, and analyses for system improvements, additions, or sales (other
than transmission and distribution system improvements inside the service area for which the
public power utility is the sole certificated retail provider); 

• Discuss and deliberate plans, studies, proposals, and analyses for system
improvements, additions, or sales.

f) customer billing, contract, and usage information, electric power pricing information,
system load characteristics, and electric power marketing analyses and strategies.

  

 

Adjourn from Executive Session
 

4:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 

3. Ceremonial Items   

 

  



3. 1. Invocation   

 

3. 2. Pledges of Allegiance   

 

3. 3. Proclamations and Presentations   

 

3. 3. 1. Presentation of a Special Recognition in celebration of the 4th on Broadway Festival   

 

Call to Order
 

4. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to
appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at
the meeting, no later than 5:00 p.m. on June 22, 2021.  If a citizen is attending the
meeting by video or teleconference, they may submit a citizen comment by email at 
citizencomments@mylubbock.us, no later than 2:00 p.m. on June 22, 2021.  Submitted
comments must include name and address.  Each comment will be read aloud for a
period of time not to exceed three minutes pursuant to City Council Rules.  Citizen
Comments is an opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on
agenda items.  Any comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be
referred to an appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

Public Hearings – Any person wishing to speak at a posted public hearing (Items
7.1-7.3) may do so via Zoom by using the “Raised Hand” feature. When utilizing Zoom
through a telephone, press *9 to "raise your hand" and you will be placed in the queue.

  

 

5. Minutes   

 

5. 1. May 25, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting
May 26, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - LEDA Press Conference
May 27, 2021 Special City Council Meeting

 

6. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without
separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

  

 

6. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2021-O0070, Amendment 30, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes
respecting the Airport Capital Fund to appropriate additional funding for the Capital
Improvement Project 8648 Airport Pavement Maintenance.

 

6. 1. 1. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public Works
Contract 15877, with Silver Creek Construction, Inc., for the rehabilitation of Airport
Taxiway M and Taxiway J at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

 

6. 1. 2. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment



6. 1. 2. Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment
No. 3 to Contract 15310, with Parkhill, for Professional Services, Construction
Administration, Resident Project Representative (RPR) Services, Closeout Phase Assistance,
and Construction Materials Testing for Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport Taxiway
M and Taxiway J Pavement Rehabilitation.

 

6. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2021-O0071, Amendment 31, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes
respecting the Water/Wastewater Operating and Capital Funds to appropriate additional
funding for Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 92455 Water Meter Replacements.

 

6. 3. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2021-O0074, Amendment 32, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes
respecting the General Fund Operating, General Fund Capital, and Information Technology
Operating Fund to appropriate additional funding for Capital Improvement Project 8646
Public Safety CAD, Mobile, and RMS Software.

 

6. 3. 1. Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Professional Services Agreement 15963, with Sciens Consulting, LLC, to provide
consultant services for a needs assessment, creation of a request for proposal, evaluation,
and selection of replacement Public Safety software systems, including Computer Aided
Dispatch, Records Management, and Mobile applications .

 

6. 4. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2021-O0072, Amendment 33, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes
respecting the Grant Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the Texas Department of
State Health Services.

 

6. 4. 1. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Amendment No. 2 to Contract HHS000077800035 under the HIV Prevention
Services Contract, and any associated documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and
the Texas Department of State Health Services, to provide funding for HIV prevention
services provided by the City of Lubbock Health Department.

 

6. 5. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2021-O0073, Amendment 34, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes
respecting the Water/Wastewater Capital Fund to appropriate additional funding for Capital
Improvement Project 92587 Loop 88 Sewer Line Relocation.

 

6. 6. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 35, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Fund Capital to establish and appropriate funding for Capital Improvement Projects
92711 Fire Station 20, 92712 Transportation Improvements/Unpaved Roads, and 92713
Erskine Street.

 

6. 7. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance
Amendment 36, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Lubbock Power and Light Fund for the addition of four full-time positions.

 

6. 8. Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution authorizing the refunding of Canadian River



6. 8. Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution authorizing the refunding of Canadian River
Municipal Water Authority Subordinate Lien Contract Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2012 (Conjunctive Use Groundwater Supply Project).

 

6. 9. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing a
portion of a drainage easement, located in Spanish Bit Court Addition, Section 7, Block JS,
Lubbock County, Texas.

 

6. 10. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
15803, with Rink’s Lease Service, Inc., for construction services associated with the
Annexation Water Lines - Alcove project.

 

6. 11. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
15757, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for design services for the Lift Station 34 Rehabilitation
Capital Improvements Project.

 

6. 12. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract
15872, with Horseshoe Construction, Inc., for construction of the Low Pressure Supply Line
Slip Lining Project.

 

6. 13. Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Professional Services Agreement Contract 15977, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for
professional engineering services associated with the Elevated Storage Tank (EST) Design
and Pressure Zone Delineation.

 

6. 14. Resolution - Public Works:  Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Sole
Source Contract 15777, with Hydra-Stop, for a service agreement to provide Hydra-Stop
parts, fittings and insertion valves.

 

6. 15. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving a Downtown Grant
Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Sherwood
Design and Construction, LLC, at 1611 Avenue L, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the
Amended and Restated Bylaws of Market Lubbock Economic Development Corporation. 

 

6. 16. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving a Downtown Grant
Program (Facade) Expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Sherwood Design
and Construction, LLC, at 1611 Avenue L, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended
and Restated Bylaws of Market Lubbock Economic Development Corporation. 

 

6. 17. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving a Downtown Grant
Program (Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc. to be provided to N2 Electrical
Contractors, LLC, at 701 Broadway, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and
Restated Bylaws of Market Lubbock Economic Development Corporation. 

 

6. 18. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving a Downtown Grant
Program (Facade) Expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to N2 Electrical
Contractors, LLC, at 701 Broadway, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5 of the Amended and
Restated Bylaws of Market Lubbock Economic Development Corporation. 

 

6. 19. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving a Downtown Grant



6. 19. Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving a Downtown Grant
Program (Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Fred Bowers at
1401 Texas Avenue, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5 of the Amended and Restated Bylaws
of Market Lubbock Economic Development Corporation. 

 

6. 20. Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute a Memorandum of Understanding for Central Distribution Model Participants,
Department State Health Services Contract No. HHS001031800017, between the City of
Lubbock Health Department and the State of Texas Department of State Health Services, to
treat and control the spread of infectious disease across Texas.

 

6. 21. Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Contract 15950 and all related documents, between the City of Lubbock and the
Salvation Army of Lubbock, a Georgia Corporation, for the Emergency Solutions Grant
(ESG) program, to provide services to the homeless.

 

6. 22. Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor, on behalf of the City of
Lubbock and its Police Department, to execute an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement, and all
related documents, with the Lubbock Regional MHMR Center DBA StarCare Specialty
Health System, for the creation of the Lubbock Community Crisis Intervention Team
(LCCIT).

 

6. 23. Resolution - City Secretary: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Professional Services Agreement 15708, with Bickerstaff Heath Delgado Acosta LLP, for
Redistricting Services, for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, and
Lubbock Independent School District. 

 

6. 24. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager, or his or
her designees, to waive charges for the production of public information, when the cost of
producing such information for any single request totals less than Thirty Dollars.

 

6. 25. Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution continuing and affirming the Mayor's
12th Declaration of Disaster regarding the COVID-19 (Coronavirus) pandemic, which
continues this disaster declaration without any local restrictions on businesses or individuals
in the City.

 

7. Regular Agenda   

 

7. 1. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 1139-B, a request of Eric
Valdez for Keystone Properties, for a zone change from Local Retail District (C-2) to
Commercial District (C-4) with a Specific Use for a Nightclub at 5015 University Avenue,
Suite 11A, located east of University Avenue and south of 50th Street, Agee-Pharr Addition,
the balance of Lot 1, and consider an ordinance.

 

7. 2. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 2011-I, a request of Asken
Properties, LLC for Frenship Independent School District, for a zone change from Light
Manufacturing District (M-1) to High-Density Apartment District (A-2) at 6401 43rd Street,
located east of Milwaukee Avenue and north of 43rd Street, Santa Fe Park Addition, Lot 14,
and consider an ordinance.

 



 

7. 3. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3435, a request of Studio 44
for Heartbeat Midwifery, for a zone change from General Retail District (C-3) and C-3
Specific Use to Apartment-Medical District (AM) at 4413 4th Street and 415 Raleigh
Avenue, located south of 4th Street and east of Raleigh Avenue, Rushland Park Addition,
Tract M-1-A-2 and the south part of Tract B-1-A, and consider an ordinance. 

 

7. 4. Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an
Annexation Agreement, with the Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA), for an
area of land generally described as approximately 407.28 acres adjacent to the eastern city
limits of the City of Lubbock, south of 4th Street and east of East Loop 289.

 

7. 5. Ordinance Single Reading - Finance: Consider approval of an ordinance providing for the
issuance of City of Lubbock, Texas, Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of
Obligation, in one or more series; levying a tax and pledging surplus water and wastewater
system revenues in payment thereof; providing for the award of the sale thereof in
accordance with specified parameters; approving an official statement; approving execution
of a purchase contract; and enacting other provisions relating thereto.

 

7. 6. Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Consider a resolution authorizing the publication of
a Notice of Intention to issue Electric Light and Power System Revenue Bonds, Series 2021.

 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 2. 4.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code 551.074, to discuss personnel
matters, regarding the duties, responsibilities, and/or appointments to the Building Board of Appeals,
Canadian River Municipal Water Authority, Lubbock Reese Redevelopment Authority Board of
Directors, Permit and License Appeal Board, and the Planning and Zoning Commission.

Item Summary

Fiscal Impact

Staff/Board Recommending

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
Regular City Council Meeting 5. 1.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
May 25, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting
May 26, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - LEDA Press Conference
May 27, 2021 Special City Council Meeting

Item Summary
May 25, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting
May 26, 2021 Special City Council Meeting - LEDA Press Conference
May 27, 2021 Special City Council Meeting

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
5.25.2021 
5.26.2021 S LEDA Press Conference 
5.27.2021 S 



CITY OF LUBBOCK
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING

May 25, 2021
1:30 P. M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in regular session on the 25th of May, 2021, in City
Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, and via video conference and
teleconference at 1:30 p.m.

  
1:37 P.M. 
       

CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, and via video
conference and teleconference

Present:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Juan A. Chadis;
Council Member Randy Christian; Council Member Jeff Griffith; Council Member Latrelle Joy;
Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary
Rebecca Garza; City Attorney Chad Weaver 

     Council Member Randy Christian attended via video conference.
 

Note:       City Council addressed agenda items in the following order:
1.1-1.3; Executive Session; 3.1-3.3; Citizen Comments 4; 5.1; 6.1-6.24; 7.1-7.8.
Item 7.7 was postponed to June 8, 2021. 

               
1. Hear and discuss presentations regarding the following and provide guidance to staff as

appropriate.
 
1. 1. Presentation and Discussion regarding the City's Neighborhood Traffic Management Program

Kerry Miller, chair of the Citizens Traffic Commission; and Jarrett Atkinson, city manager,
gave comments and answered questions from City Council. David Bragg, traffic operations
manager, gave a presentation on the City's Neighborhood Traffic Management Program and
answered questions from City Council. Topics discussed included: an overview and history of
the program; the purpose of the program; the timeline of typical Neighborhood Traffic
Management Program cases; the petition process and requirements; revisions to the petition
process as recommended by the Citizens Traffic Commission; and the results of the program as
of April 2021. Mr. Bragg also introduced the following members of the Citizens Traffic
Commission, who were present at the meeting: Chair Kerry Miller, William Curnow, K.C.
Emery, and Eric Burrell.

There was City Council consensus to have the Citizens Traffic Commission, and staff, reassess
the petition process and develop recommendations for additional revisions, and to present these
recommendations to City Council at a future work session.

 
1. 2. FY 2020-21 Sales Tax Update and Discussion



1. 2. FY 2020-21 Sales Tax Update and Discussion

Blu Kostelich, chief financial officer, gave a presentation on FY 2020-21 Sales Tax updates
and answered questions from City Council. 

 
1. 3. Update and Discussion regarding transition to Electric Reliability Council of Texas (ERCOT)

David McCalla, director of electric utilities, gave a presentation on the status of Lubbock
Power & Lights's transition to the Electric Reliability Council of Texas (ERCOT) and
answered questions from City Council. Topics discussed included: a history of the transition to
ERCOT; construction, certification, and testing updates; and outages and communications
planning.

 
At the completion of the Work Session, City Council recesses into Executive Session.
 
2. Executive Session The meeting recessed at 2:42 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session

under the provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened
in open session at 5:03 p.m., and the meeting was called to order at 5:10 p.m.

 
2. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.071, with

legal counsel for advice about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement agreement and
on matters in which the duty of the attorney under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional
Conduct conflicts with Chapter 551.

 
2. 1. 1. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Turnover Program
 
2. 1. 2. 5,562 acres, more or less, plus improvements in Lubbock County, Texas, commonly

known as Lubbock Land Application Site
 
2. 1. 3. Planned Parenthood of Greater Texas Surgical Health Services, et al v. City of Lubbock,

Texas, Case No.5:21-cv-114 in the United States District Court for the Northern District
of Texas, Lubbock Division

 
2. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code Section 551.071,

seeking the advice of its legal counsel about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
offers and hold a consultation with the attorney on matters in which the duty of the attorney
under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas conflicts
with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code:

  

 
2. 2. 1. Power Purchase Agreements
 
2. 2. 2. Legal issues regarding customer choice and Texas Utilities Code, Chapter 40
 
2. 2. 3. Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, Docket Nos. ER 16-1341. EL 17-2, and EL

18-9, related to SPP attachment Z2
 
2. 2. 4. Legal advice and counsel regarding matters identified in Section 2.4(a)-(f) of this agenda

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 25, 2021 Page 2 of 12



 
2. 3. Hold an executive session in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Section 551.072, to

deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real property.
 
2. 3. 1. Texas Department of Transportation (TxDOT) Turnover Program
 
2. 3. 2. 5,562 acres, more or less, plus improvements in Lubbock County, Texas, commonly

known as Lubbock Land Application Site
 
2. 4. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code Section 551.086, to

discuss and deliberate, on the following competitive matters of Lubbock Power & Light,
reasonably related to the following categories:

a) generation unit specific and portfolio fixed and variable costs, including forecasts of those
....costs, capital improvement plans for generation units, and generation unit operating 
....characteristics and outage scheduling;
b) bidding and pricing information for purchased power, generation and fuel, and Electric
....Reliability Council of Texas bids, prices, offers, and related services and strategies;
c) effective fuel and purchased power agreements and fuel transportation arrangements and 
....contracts;
      • Discuss and deliberate purchased power matters.
d) risk management information, contracts, and strategies, including fuel hedging and storage;
e) plans, studies, proposals, and analyses for system improvements, additions, or sales (other
....than transmission and distribution system improvements inside the service area for which
....the public power utility is the sole certificated retail provider);
f) customer billing, contract, and usage information, electric power pricing information, system
....load characteristics, and electric power marketing analyses and strategies.

 
2. 5. Hold an executive session in accordance with Texas Government Code, Section 551.087, to

discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or financial information that the governmental
body has received from a business prospect that the governmental body seeks to locate, stay, or
expand in or near the territory of the governmental body and with which the governmental
body is conducting economic development negotiations; and to deliberate the offer of a
financial or other incentive to a business prospect described herein above.

 
2. 5. 1. Project Basil
 
 
 
4:30 p.m. - City Council reconvenes in Open Session in City Council Chambers.
 
City Council reconvened at 5:03 p.m.
 
3. Ceremonial Items
 
3. 1. Invocation

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 25, 2021 Page 3 of 12



3. 1. Invocation

The Reverend Becky Fox, Covenant Presbyterian Church, led the invocation.    
 
3. 2. Pledges of Allegiance

Pledges of Allegiance, to the United States and Texas Flags, were led by Mayor Pro Tem
Steve Massengale.

 
3. 3. Board Recognitions: Presented by Council member Shelia Patterson Harris.

Capital Improvements Advisory Committee
Chris Berry
 
Public Transit Advisory Board
Sandra Chatham
Jo Ann Lea
 
Veterans Advisory Committee
Daniel Baze 

  

 
Call to Order
 
The meeting was called to order at 5:10 p.m.
 
4. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter
posted on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at
the meeting, no later than 5:00 p.m. on May 25, 2021. If a citizen is attending the meeting
by video or teleconference, they may submit a citizen comment by email at
citizencomments@mylubbock.us, no later than 2:00 p.m. on May 25, 2021. Submitted
comments must include name and address.  Each comment will be read aloud for a period
of time not to exceed three minutes pursuant to City Council Rules. Citizen Comments is
an opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items. 
Any comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an
appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

Public Hearings - Any person wishing to speak at a posted public hearing (Items 7.1 - 7.8)
may do so via Zoom by using the "Raised Hand" feature. When utilizing Zoom through a
telephone, press *9 to "raise your hand" and you will be placed in the queue.

No one appeared to speak in person. 

Citizen Comments received via email:   

Nicholas Bergfeld addressed the City Council, via email, to speak on item 1.2 (FY
2020-21 Sales Tax Update and Discussion). Mr. Bergfeld's email was read aloud by
Courtney Paz, deputy city secretary. 
 

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 25, 2021 Page 4 of 12



 

 
5. Minutes
 
5. 1. April 27, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting   

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve the April 27, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting minutes. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
6. Consent Agenda - Items considered to be routine are enacted by one motion without

separate discussion. If the City Council desires to discuss an item, the item is removed
from the Consent Agenda and considered separately.

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve items 6.1-6.24. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
6. 1. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0053,

Amendment 21, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Fund to appropriate funding for Fleet Capital Improvements. 

  

 
6. 2. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0054,

Amendment 22, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Lake
Alan Henry Fund to appropriate funding for the purchase of customer service and payment
equipment. 

  

 
6. 3. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0055,

Amendment 23, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Lubbock Power & Light Capital Budget; providing for filing; and providing for a savings
clause. 

  

 
6. 4. Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0056,

Amendment 24, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Fund for the addition of one full-time position in Human Resources. 

  

 
6. 5. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0057,

Amendment 25, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Fund to amend full-time equivalent (FTE) positions in Animal Services, providing for
filing; and providing for a savings clause. 

  

 
6. 6. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0058,

Amendment 26, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Grant
Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the U.S. Department of Treasury. 

  

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 25, 2021 Page 5 of 12



 
6. 7. Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0059,

Amendment 27, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Operating Budget for Lubbock Economic Development Alliance and Market Lubbock, Inc. -
Visitors Bureau. 

  

 
6. 8. Budget Ordinance Amendment Single Reading - Finance: Ordinance No. 2021-O0060,

Amendment 28, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Fund to appropriate funding for repairs to the City of Lubbock Utilities Customer
Service Center (UCSC). 

  

 
6. 8. 1. Resolution - Facilities Management: Resolution No. 2021-R0186 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract No. 15924 with Lee Lewis Construction, Inc., for the repair of Citizens
Tower and Utilities Customer Services Center (UCSC) damaged by the flood event of March
12, 2021. 

  

 
6. 9. Resolution - Risk Management: Resolution No. 2021-R0187 authorizing the Mayor to

execute for and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Compromise Settlement Agreement and
Release of All Claims in a claim involving damage to City property, as set forth in City of
Lubbock v. Christman Cable, Cause No. 2019-537,840 in the 72nd Judicial District Court,
Lubbock County, Texas. 

  

 
6. 10. Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Ordinance No. 2021-O0061, abandoning and

closing a portion of a 15-foot alley located in Block 1, Hewett Addition, Lubbock County,
Texas. 

  

 
6. 11. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2021-R0188 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 6 to Professional Services Contract 12113, with Halff Associates, Inc., for the
Stormwater Master Plan. 

  

 
6. 12. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2021-R0189 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Amendment No. 2 to Contract 15282, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for providing engineering
services for the design of the Downtown Sanitary Sewer Line Improvements Project and Major
Sewer Line Condition Assessment and Repair. 

  

 
6. 13. Resolution - Engineering: Resolution No. 2021-R0190 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Contract 15841, with West Texas Paving, Inc., for construction services associated with the
Wausau Avenue Paving Project, from the Marsha Sharp Freeway to 82nd Street. 

  

 
6. 14. Resolution - Public Works: Resolution No. 2021-R0191 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract 15796, with Asplundh Tree Expert, LLC, for services related to removal of
nuisance branches and trees from City rights-of-way. 

  

 
6. 15. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0192 authorizing the Mayor to   

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 25, 2021 Page 6 of 12



6. 15. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0192 authorizing the Mayor to
execute four Memorandums of Understanding (MOU) through the City of Lubbock Health
Department with Lamb County LEAF - Hooked on Hope, Family Support Services of
Amarillo, Cenikor Foundation, and Hub City Outreach Center, for participation in an
integrated collaborative effort to meet the specific needs of the priority population, including
serving as an essential link between prevention, intervention and treatment service,
information, and resources within Region 1, and related documents. 

  

 
6. 16. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0193 ratifying the act of the

Mayor in executing Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. HH000771000001, under the Public
Health Emergency Preparedness Cooperative Agreement, with the Texas Department of State
Health Services (DSHS). 

  

 
6. 17. Resolution - Public Health Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0194 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract No. HHS00102760001, under the  Regional Local Services System/Local
Public Health Services Grant Program, and any associated documents, by and between the City
of Lubbock and the Texas Department of State Health Services (DSHS), to improve and
strengthen local public health infrastructure. 

  

 
6. 18. Resolution - Community Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0195 authorizing the Mayor

to execute Contract 15920 and all related documents, between the City of Lubbock and the U.
S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), for a Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG). 

  

 
6. 19. Resolution - Community Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0196 authorizing the Mayor

to execute Contract 15922, and all related documents, between the City of Lubbock and the U.
S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), for the Emergency Solutions
Grant (ESG). 

  

 
6. 20. Resolution - Community Development: Resolution No. 2021-R0197 authorizing the Mayor

to execute Contract 15921 and all related documents, between the City of Lubbock and the U.
S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), for the Home Investment
Partnerships Grant (HOME). 

  

 
6. 21. Resolution - Facilities Management: Resolution No. 2021-R0198 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Contract No. 15789, with Lee Lewis Construction, Inc., for construction of the
Lubbock Police Department Headquarters Facility. 

  

 
6. 22. Resolution - Information Technology: Resolution No. 2021-R0199 authorizing the Mayor to

execute Purchase Order 33001502, with CDW Government, Inc., for the purchase of the
Mimecast Email Management System, Security with Threat Protection, as well as training and
migration services. 

  

 
6. 23. Resolution - Fleet Services: Resolution No. 2021-R0200 authorizing the Mayor to execute

Purchase Order 31059219, with Randall Reed's Prestige Ford, for the purchase of two mid-size
SUVs for the Lubbock Police Department. 

  

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 25, 2021 Page 7 of 12



6. 24. Ordinance 1st Reading - Lubbock Power & Light: Ordinance No. 2021-O0062, to amend
Section 22.02.103 of Title I, Chapter 22, Article 22.02, Division 3, of the Lubbock Code of
Ordinances, to permit Lubbock Power & Light to update the fee structure for recovery of the
cost of providing underground electric distribution service as part of the annual review and
approval of the LP&L Electric Rate/Tariff Schedule. 

  

 
7. Regular Agenda
 
7. 1. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0063, for Zone Case 1788-F, a request

of McDougal Realtors for Lubbock Prosperity, L.P., for a zone change from General Retail
District (C-3) to General Retail District (C-3) Specific Use for a Blood Plasma Center, at 4841
50th Street, located south of 50th Street and east of Wayne Avenue, Greenbrier Addition, Lot
H, and consider an ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 5:36 p.m.

Jeremy Steen, with McDougal Realtors, appeared to speak in favor. 

No one appeared to speak in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 5:37 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0063. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 2. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0064, for Zone Case 2909-E, a request of

Callaway Architecture for S&S Commercial Properties, LTD, for a zone change from
Interstate Highway Commercial District (IHC) to Apartment-Medical District (AM) at 6401
Spur 327, located south of Spur 327 and east of Milwaukee Avenue, on 2.289 acres of
unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 36, and consider an ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 5:38 p.m.

Jeremy Steen, with McDougal Realtors, appeared to speak in favor.

No one appeared to speak in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 5:39 p.m.

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 25, 2021 Page 8 of 12



  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Council Member Juan A.
Chadis to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0064. 

  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 3. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0065, for Zone Case 2984-M, a request of

Centerline Engineering & Consulting, LLC, for 34th & Upland Affordable Storage, Inc. and
87th Street Partners, LLC, for a zone change from Interstate Highway Commercial (IHC) and
General Retail District (C-3) to (C-3) with a Specific Use for a Self-Storage Facility and
Two-Family District (R-2), at 7115 and 7105 34th Street, located south of 34th Street and east
of Upland Avenue, on 19.74 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 38, and consider
an ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 5:41 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 5:42 p.m. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0065. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 4. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0066, for Zone Case 2985-C, a request of

Seventeen Services, LLC for Edge Construction, for a zone change from Garden Office (GO)
to Apartment Medical (AM) at 5614 114th Street, located east of Elkhart Avenue and north of
114th Street, 114th & Elkhart Office Park Addition, Tract A, and consider an ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. Jarrett Atkinson, city manager, gave comments and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 5:43 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 5:44 p.m. 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Juan A. Chadis, seconded by Council Member Jeff

Griffith to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0066. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
  

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 25, 2021 Page 9 of 12



7. 5. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0067, for Zone Case 3050-G, a request
of AMD Engineering, LLC for Lubbock Land Investments IV, LP, for a zone change from
Single Family District (R-1) Specific Use to Two-Family District (R-2), generally located
north of 123rd Street and west of Memphis Avenue, on 4.50 acres of unplatted land out of
Block E2, Section 22, and consider an ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. Cory Dulin, with AMD Engineering; and Andy Bean, with Lubbock Land Company,
gave comments and answered questions from City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 5:47 p.m.

Cory Dulin, with AMD Engineering, appeared to speak in favor.

No one appeared to speak in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 5:48 p.m. 

  

 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Chadis to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0067. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 6. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0068, for Zone Case 3431, a request of

Centerline Engineering & Consulting, LLC for 146th Street & Slide Road, Inc., for a zone
change from Transition (T) to General Retail District (C-3) with a Specific Use for
Self-Storage Facilities, at 14505 Slide Road, located east of Slide Road and north of 146th
Street, on 17.320 acres of unplatted land out of Block AK, Section 5, and consider an
ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. Phillip Tran, representing the proponent, gave comments and answered questions
from City Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 5:55 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition. 

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 5:56 p.m. 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0068. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 7. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3432, a request of Dwain Lane   

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 25, 2021 Page 10 of 12



7. 7. Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3432, a request of Dwain Lane
for Carolyn Lane Musgrave, for a zone change from Commercial District (C-4) and Local
Retail District (C-2) to (C-4) with a Specific Use for a Dance Hall, at 1801 19th Street, and
1904 and 1906 Avenue R, located south of 19th Street and west of Avenue R, Lane Addition,
Block 1, Lots 1, 2, 5, and 6, and consider an ordinance.

This item was postponed.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council. 

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 5:57 p.m.

No one appeared to speak in favor or opposition. 

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 5:58 p.m. 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Latrelle Joy, seconded by Council Member Juan A.

Chadis to postpone this item to the June 8, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 
7. 8. Public Hearing - Planning: Ordinance No. 2021-O0069, for Zone Case 3433, a request of

AMD Engineering, LLC for Baxter Trusts, for a zone change from Transition (T) to Restricted
Local Retail District (C-2A), generally located south of 114th Street and east of Memphis
Avenue, on 7.84 acres of unplatted land out of Block E2, Section 22, and consider an ordinance.

Bryan Isham, director of planning, gave a presentation and answered questions from City
Council.

Mayor Pope opened the public hearing at 6:10 p.m.

Cory Dulin, with AMD Engineering; and Dr. Bolkar Sahinler, the proponent, appeared to
speak in favor. 

Thomas Payne appeared to speak in opposition.

Mayor Pope closed the public hearing at 6:25 p.m. 

  

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve

Massengale to approve Ordinance No. 2021-O0069. 
  Vote: 7 - 0 Motion carried

 

6:28 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 25, 2021 Page 11 of 12



6:28 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Pope adjourned the meeting.

 
The May 25, 2021 Regular City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 22nd day
of June, 2021.

  
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Regular City Council Meeting 
May 25, 2021 Page 12 of 12



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

May 26, 2021
1:30 P.M.

 
The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 26th of May, 2021, at
McDougal Companies Plaza, 1500 Broadway, 5th Floor, Wells Fargo Conference Room, Suite 500,
Lubbock, Texas at 1:30 p.m.

  
1:30 P.M. 
                  

CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
McDougal Companies Plaza, 1500 Broadway, 5th Floor, Wells Fargo Conference Room,
Suite 500, Lubbock, Texas

Present:  Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Latrelle Joy;
Council Member Shelia Patterson Harris; Deputy City Secretary Courtney Paz 

Absent:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis; Council Member Randy Christian; Council Member Jeff
Griffith; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Attorney Chad Weaver 

 

Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
1.1.

1. REGULAR SESSION

 
 
1. 1. City Council will attend and participate with Lubbock Economic Development Alliance, Inc. as it

holds a press conference to announce the expansion of four companies in Lubbock that will create
more than 450 new jobs and $11.4 million in capital investments into the Lubbock economy. 

John Osborne, president and chief executive officer of Lubbock Economic Development Alliance
(LEDA) and Market Lubbock, gave opening remarks.

Kenny McKay, director of business retention for LEDA, introduced Troy Pickering, vice president of
sales and marketing for SIMFLO; Byron Johnson, director of site operations at VXI; Balu
Viswanathan, chief executive officer of Starnik; and Gordon Davis, chairman of CEV Multimedia,
whose businesses are expanding into Lubbock and will create more than 450 jobs and $11.4 million
in capital investments into the Lubbock economy.

Mayor Daniel M. Pope and John Osborne, president and chief executive officer of Lubbock
Economic Development Alliance (LEDA) and Market Lubbock, gave closing remarks. 

 

2:02 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED



2:02 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, the meeting was adjourned.

 
The May 26, 2021 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 22nd day
of June, 2021.

 
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Special City Council Meeting 
May 26, 2021 Page 2 of 2



CITY OF LUBBOCK
SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING

May 27, 2021
4:00 P.M.

The City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas met in special session on the 27th of May, 2021, in City
Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas, and via video conference and
teleconference at 4:00 p.m.
  

4:02 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CONVENED
City Council Chambers, Citizens Tower, 1314 Avenue K, Lubbock, Texas and via video
conference and teleconference
 

Present: Mayor Daniel M. Pope; Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale; Council Member Randy Christian;
Council Member Jeff Griffith; Council Member Latrelle Joy; Council Member Shelia Patterson
Harris; City Manager W. Jarrett Atkinson; City Secretary Rebecca Garza; City Attorney Chad
Weaver

  Council Member Randy Christian attended via video conference.
Absent: Council Member Juan A. Chadis

Note:      City Council addressed agenda items in the following order: 
Executive Session; Citizen Comments 2.1; 2.2.

               
1. Executive Session

The meeting recessed at 4:03 p.m. and reconvened in Executive Session under the
provisions of Section 551, Texas Government Code. City Council reconvened in open
session at 4:24 p.m.

 
1. 1. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code Section 551.071,

seeking the advice of its legal counsel about pending or contemplated litigation or settlement
offers and hold a consultation with the attorney on matters in which the duty of the attorney under
the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas conflicts with
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code:

 
1. 1. 1. Power purchase agreements
 
1. 1. 2. Legal issues regarding customer choice and Texas Utilities Code, Chapter 40
 
1. 1. 3. Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, Docket Nos. ER 16-1341, EL 17-2, and EL 18-9,

related to SPP attachment Z2
 
1. 1. 4. Legal advice and counsel regarding matters identified in Section 1.2(a)-(f) of this agenda
 
1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.086, to discuss



1. 2. Hold an executive session in accordance with V.T.C.A. Government Code § 551.086, to discuss
and deliberate, on the following competitive matters of Lubbock Power & Light, reasonably
related to the following categories: 

 
a. generation unit specific and portfolio fixed and variable costs, including forecasts of those
costs, capital improvement plans for generation units, and generation unit operating
characteristics and outage scheduling;

b. bidding and pricing information for purchased power, generation and fuel, and Electric
Reliability Council of Texas bids, prices, offers, and related services and strategies;

c. effective fuel and purchased power agreements and fuel transportation arrangements and
contracts;
   •Discuss and deliberate purchased power matters.

d. risk management information, contracts, and strategies, including fuel hedging and storage;
e. plans, studies, proposals, and analyses for system improvements, additions, or sales (other than
transmission and distribution system improvements inside the service area for which the
public power utility is the sole certificated retail provider);

f. customer billing, contract, and usage information, electric power pricing information, system
load characteristics, and electric power marketing analyses and strategies.

 
At the conclusion of the Executive Session, the City Council reconvenes in Regular Session

City Council reconvened at 4:24 p.m.
 
2. Regular Session
 
2. 1. Citizen Comments - According to Lubbock City Council Rules, any citizen wishing to

appear in-person before a regular meeting of the City Council, regarding any matter posted
on the City Council Agenda below, shall complete the sign-up form provided at the meeting,
no later than 4:00 p.m. on May 27, 2021. If a citizen is attending the meeting by video or
teleconference, they may submit a citizen comment by email at
citizencomments@mylubbock.us, no later than 2:00 p.m. on May 27, 2021. Submitted
comments must include name and address.  Each comment will be read aloud for a period of
time not to exceed three minutes pursuant to City Council Rules. Citizen Comments is an
opportunity for citizens to make comments and express a position on agenda items.  Any
comment received that is in the nature of asking a question will be referred to an
appropriate member of the City staff for a response.

No one appeared to speak in person; and no comments were submitted via email.
 
2. 2. Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Resolution No 2021-R0201 authorizing the Mayor of the

City of Lubbock to execute that certain Settlement Agreement by and between the City of
Lubbock, acting by and through Lubbock Power & Light, and Southwestern Public Service
Company, a New Mexico Corporation, regarding that certain Master Power Purchase and Sale
Agreement (“Master Agreement”) dated as of November 12, 2009, and that certain Transaction
Agreement of the same date entered into under the Master Agreement (the “Transaction
Agreement”, and together with the Master Agreement and any other transactions entered into
under the Master Agreement, the “PPA”), providing for an early termination of the PPA.

  

Special City Council Meeting 
May 27, 2021 Page 2 of 3



Andy Burcham, chief financial officer for Lubbock Power & Light, gave a presentation and
answered questions from City Council. 

 
  Motion by Council Member Jeff Griffith, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Steve Massengale to

approve Resolution No. 2021-R0201. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Motion carried

  Other:  Council Member Juan A. Chadis (ABSENT) 

 

4:34 P.M. CITY COUNCIL ADJOURNED
 

There being no further business to come before Council, Mayor Pope adjourned the meeting.
 

The May 27, 2021 Special City Council Meeting minutes were approved by the City Council on the 22nd day
of June, 2021.

 
  ____________________________________

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR
ATTEST:
 

 

___________________________________
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

 

Special City Council Meeting 
May 27, 2021 Page 3 of 3



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2021-O0070, Amendment 30, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Airport Capital Fund to appropriate additional funding for the Capital Improvement Project 8648 Airport
Pavement Maintenance.

Item Summary
On June 8, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance. 

Amend CIP 8648, Airport Pavement Maintenance, and increase the appropriation and funding by
$409,690 from $400,000 to $809,690. The additional funding will come from the Airport
Coronavirus Response Grant Program (ACRGP).

1.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer
Cheryl Brock, Director of Financial Planning & Analysis

Attachments
Ordinance 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1. 1.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Public Works Contract
15877, with Silver Creek Construction, Inc., for the rehabilitation of Airport Taxiway M and Taxiway J
at Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport.

Item Summary
Silver Creek Construction, Inc. will remove and replace failed concrete panels, and perform concrete
spall repair, crack seal, joint seal, and joint beveling on Airport Taxiways M and Taxiway J.

In response to ITB 21-15877-, bids were received from the following contractors.
  

Company Amount
Silver Creek Construction, Inc., Ponder, Texas $599,700.00
Hensel Phelps Construction Company, Austin, Texas $662,254.51

The contract is awarded by the unit price. The total amount of the award is based on expected quantities
and actual expenditures may be more or less depending on actual quantities installed. The price per unit
will not change.  

Airport staff and Airport Advisory Board recommend contract award to the lowest bidder, Silver Creek
Construction, Inc. of Ponder, Texas. Time for completion is 100 calendar days.

Fiscal Impact
Contract 15877 with Silver Creek Construction is for $599,700.00 and is funded through Capital
Improvement Project 8648 Airport Pavement Maintenance.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - Silver Creek Construction 
Bid Form 
Budget Detail 
Project Summary 









800 $24,000

$599,700

174349
Line

174349
Line

174349
Line







Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

Parkhill (Design services) 49,600$                 

Agenda Item June 22, 2021

Parkhill (construction administration) 103,000                 

Silver Creek 599,700                 

  Encumbered/Expended To Date 752,300                 

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Bid Costs 1,000                     

Contingency (10% construction contract) 56,390                   

  Remaining Appropriation 57,390                   

Total Appropriation 809,690$               

8648

Airport Pavement Maintenance

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

June 22, 2021



 
 
 
 

Purchasing and Contract Management  
 

Project Summary 
 

ITB 21-15877-CM  
Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport Taxiways M and J Rehabilitation 

 
Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on May 5 & May 12, 2021. 
Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 
Notice was published on gobonfire.com from May 5, 2021 to May 20, 2021. 
37 vendors downloaded the documents. 
10 vendors were contacted separately.  
2 vendors submitted a bid. 

 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 1. 2.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Aviation: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Amendment No. 3 to
Contract 15310, with Parkhill, for Professional Services, Construction Administration, Resident Project
Representative (RPR) Services, Closeout Phase Assistance, and Construction Materials Testing for
Lubbock Preston Smith International Airport Taxiway M and Taxiway J Pavement Rehabilitation.

Item Summary
Amendment No. 3 is for Construction Administration Services for Lubbock Preston Smith International
Airport Taxiway M and Taxiway J Pavement Rehabilitation. Amendment No. 3 services are as follows:
  

Service Amount
Task 5CON Hourly Rate Fee for Construction Phase Services $36,200
Task 6RPR Hourly Rate Fee for RPR Services $47,500
Task 7CLO Lump Sum Fee for Closeout Phase Services $5,100
Task 9SSC Reimbursable Services for Construction $14,200
Total Amendment No. 3 $103,000
 
Airport staff and Airport Advisory Board recommend Amendment No. 3, with Parkhill of Lubbock,
Texas.

Fiscal Impact
Amendment No. 3 with Parkhill is for $103,000, and is funded through Capital Improvement Project
8648 Airport Pavement Maintenance.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Kelly Campbell, Executive Director of Aviation
Airport Advisory Board

Attachments
Resolution - Parkhill 
Amendment 3 - Parkhill (c) 
Budget Detail 





































Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

Parkhill (Design services) 49,600$                 

Agenda Item June 22, 2021

Parkhill (construction administration) 103,000                 

Silver Creek 599,700                 

  Encumbered/Expended To Date 752,300                 

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Bid Costs 1,000                     

Contingency (10% construction contract) 56,390                   

  Remaining Appropriation 57,390                   

Total Appropriation 809,690$               

8648

Airport Pavement Maintenance

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

June 22, 2021



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 2.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2021-O0071, Amendment 31, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Water/Wastewater Operating and Capital Funds to appropriate additional funding for Capital
Improvement Project (CIP) 92455 Water Meter Replacements.

Item Summary
On June 8, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance. 

Amend the FY 2020-21 Water/Wastewater Operating Budget by increasing the Transfer to Water
Capital by $510,000 from $5,340,000 to $5,850,000. The funding will be cash from
Water/Wastewater Fund Balance.

1.

Amend CIP 92455, Water Meter Replacements, and increase the appropriation and funding by
$510,000 from $2,180,000 to $2,690,000. The additional funding will come from the
Water/Wastewater Fund Balance.

2.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer
Cheryl Brock, Director of Financial Planning & Analysis

Attachments
Ordinance 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 3.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2021-O0074, Amendment 32, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
General Fund Operating, General Fund Capital, and Information Technology Operating Fund to
appropriate additional funding for Capital Improvement Project 8646 Public Safety CAD, Mobile, and
RMS Software.

Item Summary
On June 8, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance. 

Amend the FY 2020-21 Police Administration Operating Budget by reducing Professional Services
by $25,000 from $303,260 to $278,260.

1.

Amend the FY 2020-21 Fire Suppression Operating Budget by reducing Capital
Outlay/Reimbursements by $1,750 from $281,226 to $279,476.

2.

Amend the FY 2020-21 General Fund Operating Budget by increasing the Transfer to General
Fund Capital by $26,750 from $15,489,618 to $15,516,368.

3.

Amend the FY 2020-21 Information Technology Operating Fund by reducing Capital
Outlay/Reimbursements by $1,750 from $620,000 to $618,250.

4.

Amend the FY 2020-21 Information Technology Operating Budget by increasing the Transfer to
General Capital by $1,750 from $0 to $1,750.

5.

Amend CIP 8646, Public Safety CAD, Mobile, and RMS Software, and increase the appropriation
and funding by $28,500 from $100,000 to $128,500. The funding will be cash from the General
Fund and Information Technology Operating Fund.

6.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer
Cheryl Brock, Director of Financial Planning & Analysis

Attachments
Ordinance 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 3. 1.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Information Technology: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to
execute Professional Services Agreement 15963, with Sciens Consulting, LLC, to provide consultant
services for a needs assessment, creation of a request for proposal, evaluation, and selection of
replacement Public Safety software systems, including Computer Aided Dispatch, Records
Management, and Mobile applications .

Item Summary
The proposal from Sciens Consulting, LLC, provides consultant services for a needs assessment and
selection of a replacement Public Safety software applications environment. The assessment will include
Computer Aided Dispatch for Fire and Police, Police Records, Police Mobile, Fire Records Management
and Fire Mobile. The cost is not to exceed $119,825 and the process will begin July 2021 and will be
completed by April 2022.
 
The proposal is made available through the Buy Board Cooperative Purchasing Contract Number
579-19.  Texas Local Government Code Chapter 271.083 authorizes local governments to acquire
hardware, software and other Information Technology products through the Buy Board Cooperative
Purchasing program.  Pursuant to Texas Government Code Chapter 791.001, purchases from Buy Board
contracts meet competitive bid requirements.

The contract for consultant services will begin July 2021, and be completed in April 2022.

Fiscal Impact
The cost is not to exceed $119,825 and will be charged to Capital Improvement Project 8646- Public
Safety, CAD, Mobile, and RMS Software. The term of the contract will be July 2021 through April 2022.

Staff/Board Recommending
Brooke Witcher, Assistant City Manager
James C. Brown, Director of Information Technology

Attachments
Sciens LLC Resolution 
Agreement 15963 
Sciens Exhibit A 
Sciens Exhibit B 
Budget Detail 



























115372
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "A"









 

Proposal to the City of Lubbock 
Consultant Services for Public Safety Systems Replacement Page 6 

 

• Project Scope Defined – Based on Sciens’ experience at acquiring and implementing public safety systems, 
and using the requirements gathered during the Needs Assessment, we develop a Project Scope document 
that includes: 

o An initial budget for a replacement system that includes the required modules, interfaces, hardware 
and services, presented in the form of a range of high and low-cost estimates 

o A preliminary timeline for implementation of the system 

• Project Governance Recommendations – Based upon Sciens’ discussions with the City and its experience at 
managing single and multi-tenant Public Safety systems, we develop Project Governance recommendations 
that include: 

o Project Charter 

o Project Governance Structure for the system acquisition, specifying individual roles and 
responsibilities on the project such as the Executive Sponsor, Stakeholders, Project Manager, 
and Business Leads 

o Responsibility definitions for decision-making, specifically for policy decisions vs. project 
execution  

• Action Plan – Based upon the findings and the Project Scope, Sciens produces an Action Plan at the 
conclusion of this phase with recommendations for moving forward.   

• Status Meeting & Reporting – Throughout the phase, Sciens keeps the project manager informed regarding 
progress being made towards milestones, as well as alerting the project manager as to whether there are 
any obstacles towards meeting the project timeline for selection of a new system. Sciens is available for 
weekly status meetings/reporting, as well as for ad hoc discussions as needed.  

The deliverables for Phase 1 are: 

• Infrastructure and Applications Review 
• Business Practices and Processes Review 
• Project Scope Document 
• Project Governance Recommendations 
• Needs Assessment & Action Plan 
 

Phase 2 – Request for Proposal 

During Phase 2, Sciens develops the Request for Proposal document. Once the RFP has been reviewed by the 
City, the RFP is issued by the City of Lubbock to the marketplace using the list of potential vendors provided by 
Sciens. In addition, Sciens develops a Vendor Evaluation Matrix to be used throughout the evaluation phase to 
track vendor performance. Specifically, this phase involves the following activities: 

• Technical Specifications – Technical specifications are developed based upon the inputs from the interviews 
conducted in Phase 1. Technical Specifications include delivery options (i.e., hosted, Cloud, hybrid), and 
infrastructure (i.e., hardware and architecture) describing the City’s overall system architectures, network 
infrastructures, telephony/911 controller, desired database and compatibility, servers and data storage, 
system backup and interfaces, security, scalability, reliability/stability, configuration flexibility, and 
centralized management).  









115372
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "B"

115372
Typewritten Text





Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended

Product Review 8,448$                   

Agenda Item June 22, 2021

Sciens Consulting, LLC Consultant Services 119,825                 

  Encumbered/Expended To Date 128,273                 

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Miscellaneous Cost 227                        

  Remaining Appropriation 227                        

Total Appropriation 128,500$               

8646

Public Safety CAD, Mobile and RMS Software

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

June 22, 2021



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 4.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2021-O0072, Amendment 33, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Grant Fund to accept and appropriate funding from the Texas Department of State Health Services.

Item Summary
On June 8, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance. 

Accept and appropriate $126,292 from the Texas Department of State Health Services for the HIV
Prevention Services Project through the HIV Prevention Grant, increasing the total of the not to
exceed amount from $389,439 to $515,731, with an established end date of August 31, 2022.

1.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer
Cheryl Brock, Director of Financial Planning & Analysis

Attachments
Ordinance 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 4. 1.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Amendment No. 2 to Contract HHS000077800035 under the HIV Prevention Services Contract, and any
associated documents, by and between the City of Lubbock and the Texas Department of State Health
Services, to provide funding for HIV prevention services provided by the City of Lubbock Health
Department.

Item Summary
This contract provides funding from the HIV-STD Program of the Texas DSHS to strengthen prevention
activities in the community including community engagement, focused HIV testing to at-risk
populations, and linkage to pharmaceutical therapies such as Pre-Exposure Prophylaxis (PrEP). The
grant will enable staff to reach individuals outside traditional clinical settings.

Amendment 2 extends the contract through August 31, 2022, and changes the grant cycle from calendar
year to state fiscal year. The amount budgeted for calendar year 2021 was reduced by $63,147 to
$126,292 to reflect the shorter grant period. The total contract amount is $515,731.

Fiscal Impact
The amendment adds $126,292 to the contract increasing the total not to exceed from $389,439 to
$515,731.

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health

Attachments
Resolution HIV 
Contract HIV 













   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 5.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 2nd Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance No.
2021-O0073, Amendment 34, amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the
Water/Wastewater Capital Fund to appropriate additional funding for Capital Improvement Project
92587 Loop 88 Sewer Line Relocation.

Item Summary
On June 8, 2021, the City Council approved the first reading of the ordinance. 

Amend CIP 92587, Loop 88 Sewer Line Relocation, and increase the appropriation and funding by
$859,132 from $750,000 to $1,609,132. The funding will be from the Texas Department of
Transportation (TxDOT).

1.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer
Cheryl Brock, Director of Financial Planning & Analysis

Attachments
Ordinance 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 6.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 35,
amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the General Fund Capital to
establish and appropriate funding for Capital Improvement Projects 92711 Fire Station 20, 92712
Transportation Improvements/Unpaved Roads, and 92713 Erskine Street.

Item Summary

Establish Capital Improvement Project 92711, Fire Station 20, and appropriate funding in the
amount of $7,645,000. Funding will be General Funds Certificates of Obligation.

1.

Establish Capital Improvement Project 92712, Transportation Improvement/Unpaved Roads, and
appropriate funding in the amount of $9,000,000. Funding will be General Fund Certificates of
Obligation.

2.

Establish Capital Improvement Project 92713, Erskine Street, and appropriate funding in the
amount of $11,300,000.  Funding will be General Fund Certificates of Obligation.

3.

Fiscal Impact
Included in Item Summary

Staff/Board Recommending
Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer
Cheryl Brock, Director of Financial Planning & Analysis

Attachments
Ordinance 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 7.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Budget Ordinance Amendment 1st Reading - Finance: Consider Budget Ordinance Amendment 36,
amending the FY 2020-21 Budget for municipal purposes respecting the Lubbock Power and Light Fund
for the addition of four full-time positions.

Item Summary

Amend Customer Service Cost Center 7514, by adding 4 additional full-time positions. The
funding will be cash from Lubbock Power and Light Fund Balance.

1.

Fiscal Impact
The expected financial impact to Cost Center 7514 is an additional $19,370 in salary and benefits for FY
2020-21 and an additional $256,964 for FY 2021-22.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer
Cheryl Brock, Director of Financial Planning & Analysis

Attachments
Ordinance 
Resolution 











   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 8.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Finance: Consider a resolution authorizing the refunding of Canadian River Municipal
Water Authority Subordinate Lien Contract Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 (Conjunctive Use
Groundwater Supply Project).

Item Summary
At the quarterly meeting on April 14, 2021, the Board of Directors of the Canadian River Municipal
Water Authority (the "Authority"), considered the refunding of the Series 2012 Bonds (as defined
below) previously issued for the Conjunctive Use Groundwater Supply Project, in order to provide debt
service savings for the Authority and its Member Cities. To prepare for that refunding, the Board of the
Authority requested that the staff of the Authority, the financial advisor, and bond counsel continue to
monitor market conditions, prepare an update, obtain the required Member City consent to the
transaction and place an action item on the agenda for the Authority's regular quarterly meeting
scheduled for July 14, 2021, to authorize the refunding. As a part of those preparations I am contacting
the City of Lubbock ("City") on behalf of the Authority to request your consideration and consent to the
Authority's proposed refunding.
 
The Conjunctive Use Groundwater Supply Project Contract between the Authority and the Member
Cities, requires that prior to refunding any outstanding bonds, the Authority must obtain each Member
City’s consent and waiver, as to certain notice requirements in the contract.  Attached is a proposed draft
resolution that sets out the City's consent and waiver, with regard to the bond refunding, for
consideration by the City Council. As further background for the requested action, the following
information is included.
 
The revenues paid by the City under the Conjunctive Use Groundwater Supply Project Contract between
the City and the Authority secure the debt service on certain obligations of the Authority, including the
outstanding Canadian River Municipal Water Authority Subordinate Lien Contract Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2012 (Conjunctive Use Groundwater Supply Project) (the "Series 2012 Bonds"). At the
Authority's regular meeting on April 14, 2021, George Williford with Hilltop Securities Inc., the
Authority's financial advisor, identified potentially significant savings if some or all of these outstanding
bonds are refunded, as a tax-exempt refunding issue in accordance with the February 15, 2022 optional
call date on the Series 2012 Bonds. Based on that presentation, the Board of Directors of the Authority
authorized the staff, the financial advisor, and our firm to reach out to each of the Member Cities to
obtain the requisite consents, monitor market conditions and, if favorable market conditions persist, to
present the item on the July 14, 2021 regular quarterly meeting agenda for Board action.
 
The contract with the Member Cities contains notice requirements that affect the Authority's ability to
timely refund the Series 2012 Bonds in question, unless each of the Member Cities waives the notice
requirements and consents to the issuance of the refunding bonds. The contract makes the notice
requirements apply to all bonds, not just new money bonds. As it has in prior refunding transactions, as a
prerequisite to refunding the bonds, the Authority is requesting that the Member Cities waive the notice



prerequisite to refunding the bonds, the Authority is requesting that the Member Cities waive the notice
requirements and express their consent to the refunding through the adoption of the enclosed resolution.
 
To appropriately time the refunding of the outstanding Series 2012 Bonds, the Authority will delegate
the ability to trigger the refunding of the obligations to the General Manager, if he is able to achieve a
certain level of savings through the refunding of the Series 2012 Bonds, depending on market
conditions. The resolution which is presented for the City's consideration tracks those conditions.
Accordingly, the City's resolution is effective only if the Authority can achieve, at a minimum, the
present value savings of at least 5.00% of the refunded principal amount.

It is anticipated that the Board of the Authority may authorize proceeding with the transaction at the July
meeting, either for sale in late 2021, or for an earlier sale, in the event that market conditions warrant.  
The Authority is soliciting executed consent resolutions from all of the Member Cities and
requesting that the Member Cities take action on the resolutions prior to July 9, 2021. Having all of
these City consent forms in hand at the July quarterly meeting, will enable the Board of the Authority to
consider action proceeding with authorizing the refunding. If, as anticipated, the Board delegates the
sale of the bonds to the General Manager, then the General Manager will have up to 6 months to trigger
the actual sale. Upon consultation with the financial advisor as to market conditions and timing, the
General Manager will meet with the Finance Committee of the Authority and determine whether and
when to exercise the delegated authority to refund some, all or none of the Series 2012 Bonds. It is
contemplated that the sale of the refunding bonds would be effected in calendar year 2021, and the
consent resolution limits the City's waiver to that year. As we have done in prior refunding transactions
of Authority bonds, the City will be provided with the results of the sale and how it reduces your
payments.

Fiscal Impact
The overall refunding will provide a net debt savings for the City of Lubbock. The exact amount is
subject to market conditions on the day of the pricing.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer
Cheryl Brock, Director of Financial Planning & Analysis

Attachments
Resolution - CRMWA 2021 Refunding Series 
City Secretary Certificate - CRMWA 2021 Refunding 

















   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 9.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance 1st Reading - Right-of-Way: Consider an ordinance abandoning and closing a portion of a
drainage easement, located in Spanish Bit Court Addition, Section 7, Block JS, Lubbock County, Texas.

Item Summary
This item was postponed from June 8, 2021, to June 22, 2021.

The City of Lubbock is in receipt of a request to abandon and close a portion of a Drainage Easement in
Lot 26, Spanish Bit Court Addition (CCFN # 2016013471), and abandon and close a Drainage Easement
(CCFN # 2016013473), located in the south half of Section 7, Block JS, Lubbock County, Texas,
adjacent to the Spanish Bit Court Development.

All City departments and franchise utility companies are in agreement with the closure.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Mike Keenum, Division Director of Engineering

Attachments
Ordinance Abandon and Close a Portion of a DRE and a DRE - Spanish Bit Court - Sec 7 Blk JS 
Exhibit A - Closure of a Portion of a DRE and a DRE - Spainish Bit Court - Sec 7 Blk JS 
Map - Closure of a Portion of a DRE and a DRE - Spanish Bit Court - Sec 7 Blk JS 





















   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 10.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 15803, with
Rink’s Lease Service, Inc., for construction services associated with the Annexation Water Lines -
Alcove project.

Item Summary
The purpose of this project is to install 12-inch and 16-inch waterlines along Alcove Avenue, Upland
Avenue, 66th Street, and 50th Street. This project will provide fire protection for structures inside the
city limits, as well as loop the existing water system in the area which will increase the water systems
reliability.

In response to RFP-20-15803-JM, four proposals were received on May 21, 2021, with the following
amounts.
  

Contractor Amount
Bo Simon, Inc. of Canyon, Texas $2,683,238.50
Rink’s Lease Service, Inc., Levelland, Texas $2,939,093.50
MH Civil Constructors, Inc., Amarillo, Texas $3,790,910.00
Utility Contractors of America, Lubbock, Texas $3,939,579,50

The proposals were evaluated using the following criteria: 60 Points for Price, 25 Points for Contractor
Qualifications, 5 Points for Safety Record Questionnaire, and 10 Points for Construction Time. A
four-member committee evaluated the proposals and the following ranking was obtained.
  

Contractor Points out of 400
Rink’s Lease Service, Inc., Levelland, Texas 363.12 Points
Bo Simon, Inc. of Canyon, Texas 334.88 Points
Utility Contractors of America, Lubbock, Texas 314.32 Points
MH Civil Constructors, Inc., Amarillo, Texas 314.26 Points

Staff and the Evaluation Committee recommend award of the unit price contract to the highest ranked
proposal, Rink's Lease Service, Inc. of Levelland, Texas, for $2,939,093.50.  Time for substantial
completion is 270 calendar days from the Notice to Proceed.  The contract is awarded by the unit price
and actual expenditures may be more or less depending on field conditions.

Fiscal Impact



This contract is in the amount of $2,939,093.50, and is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92585,
Annexation Water Lines for fire protection.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Mike Keenum, Division Director of Engineering

Attachments
Resolution 
Construction Contract 
Location Map - Alternate 2 
Location Map - Alternate 1 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 
Project Summary Report 































As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the 
Government Code,  this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, 
engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative 
location of property boundaries.

UP
LA

ND
 A

VE

SA
RA

TO
GA

 A
VE

0 200 400 600100
Feet

±

Annexation Water Lines Project - Alcove
Alternate 2 (W-8 through W-9)

32ND ST

34TH ST

W-9W-8

W-8

W-
8

W-
8

W-
9

Alternate 2

SA
RA

TO
GA

 A
VE

30TH ST

TR
EN

TO
N 

AV
E



As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the 
Government Code,  this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, 
engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative 
location of property boundaries.

UP
LA

ND
 A

VE

0 1,000 2,000 3,000500
Feet

±

MARSHA SHARP FW
Y   US 62/82

Annexation Water Lines Project - Alcove
Base Bid Plus Alternate 1 (W-1 through W-6 plus W-7)

50TH ST

66TH ST

82ND ST

AL
CO

VE
 A

VE

W-6

W-5

W-2

W-
3

W-
1

W-
4

W-
7

Base Bid

Alternate 1



Capital Project Number: 92585

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget

City of Lubbock staff time 78,604$                  

Professional Services 453                         

Parkhill, Smith & Cooper Survey Contract 14490 36,975                    

Hugo Reed and Associates Survey Contract 14491 98,925                    

Hugo Reed and Associates Survey Contract 15223 35,900                    

In-House JO 119035 - UCA Annexation Extension 363,138                  

1,947,070               

Omega Rail Management 18,450                    

2,939,094               

Encumbered/Expended to Date 5,518,608               

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Annexation Water Lines Construction 981,392                  

Remaining Appropriation 981,392                  

Total Appropriation To Date 6,500,000$             

Rinks Lease Service, Inc. Contract 15803

City of Lubbock, TX

Capital Project 

June 22, 2021

Agenda Item June 22, 2021

Annexation Water Lines for Fire Protection

Project Cost Detail 

Rinks Lease Service, Inc. Contract 15336





 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

RFP 21-15803– JM Annexation Water Lines - Alcove   

 
Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on April 26, 2021 and May 3, 2021. 

Notice was published on Electronic State Business Daily (ESBD) State of Texas Bid 

Opportunities webpage. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on BidSync.com & Bonfire from April 28, 2021 to May 21, 2021. 

4 individuals attend the pre-conference meeting.  

32 vendors viewed using BidSync.com & Bonfire.  

32 vendors downloaded the documents. 

10 vendors were notified separately.  

4 vendor(s) submitted a proposals. 

 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 11.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 15757, with
Freese and Nichols, Inc., for design services for the Lift Station 34 Rehabilitation Capital Improvements
Project.

Item Summary
The 2020 Wastewater Collection Master Plan determined that Lift Station 34 no longer meets the current
Texas Commission on Environmental Quality (TCEQ) standards for structural, mechanical, electrical,
and Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition (SCADA) systems. In addition, the lift station site is
located in a residential neighborhood, and it has generated numerous noise and odor complaints from
nearby residents.
 
On February 9, 2021, the City of Lubbock released a Request for Qualification seeking proposals from
qualified engineering firms for performing design and bid phase services for the rehabilitation of Lift
Station 34, Capital Improvements Project (CIP) 92591. In response to RFQ-21-15757-MA, two
Statements of Qualification were received on February 24, 2021. The scope of this professional services
contract will include preliminary and final design, and bid phase services for the rehabilitation of Lift
Station 34.

The Statements of Qualification were evaluated using the following criteria: 30 points for Project Team
Qualifications, 30 points for Experience on Similar Projects, 30 points for Project Approach, and 10
points for Overall Responsiveness.  A 4-member committee evaluated the Statements of Qualification
and the following ranking was obtained.
  

Engineering Firms Points
Freese and Nichols, Inc., Lubbock, Texas 367
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc., Lubbock, Texas 353

Staff and the Evaluation Committee recommend award of the contract to the highest ranked engineering
firm, Freese and Nichols, Inc., of Lubbock, Texas, in the amount of $183,798.  Time for substantial
completion is 540 calendar days from the Notice to Proceed for the Engineer to perform preliminary and
final design as well as provide bid phase services.

Fiscal Impact
This contract is in the amount of $183,798, and is funded in CIP 92591, Lift Station Rehabilitation, 2021.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager



Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Mike Keenum, Division Director of Engineering

Attachments
Resolution 
Professional Service Contract 
Location Map 
CIP Spreadsheet 
CIP Detail 
Project Summary Report 







































































1

4 3

8 6 7 

1617

109 

18

17

15

19

12

16

14

14

20

15

21

35

17

5 

23

10

24

7 

13

3426

1415

3 

7 
8 

30

4 

9 

6 

1 

20

31
11

2927

18

28

16

4 

33

6 

21
2 

5 

3632

22 19 3

25'

25
'

104.69'25'

14
3.7

5'
14

3.7
5'

75'

102.61'

65.76'

25
'

50'

150'

100'

65.9'

13
7.5

'

100'
50'

150'

150'

100' 100' 150'

13
2.5

'
13

2.5
'

25'

13
7.5

'

150'

13
2.5

'

150' 100'

17
.53

'

13
2.5

'

50' 5'

25'25'25'25'25'25'

25' 25' 25' 25' 25' 25' 25' 25' 25' 25' 25'

25
'

25
'

25
'

25
'

25
'

25
'

25
'

150'

25
'

25
'

25
'

103.48'

25'25'

13
2.5

'

5'50'5'5'

12
7.5

'

12
7.5

'

5' 100' 50'50'

13
2.5

'

13
2.5

'
12

7.5
'

5'

25'25' 25' 25' 25' 25' 25' 25'25'25' 25' 25'

25'25'25'25'
50'

12
7.5

'

50'50'300'
75'

13
2.5

'

12
7.5

'
13

2.5
'

As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the Government Code,  this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative location of property boundaries.

³ Lift Station 34 Rehabilitation Project Located in Lot 17, 
Arnett & Benson Addition

0 100 200 30050
Feet

Digital Orthophotography - April 2020

CORNELL ST

Lift Station 34

ARNETT &

BENSON
N 

DE
TR

OI
T A

VE

N 
DE

TR
OI

T A
VE

CORNELL ST

BAYLOR ST

COLGATE ST

COLGATE ST

DARTMOUTH ST

CORNELL ST

COLGATE ST

MADDOX

BURLESON &

OSBORN

N 
ELG

IN
 A

VE

N 
CA

NT
ON

 A
VE



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget

Staff Time 333$                   

Professional Services 144                     

Sewer systems improvements 41,447                

Agenda Item  June 22, 2021

Design Contract 15757 with Freese and Nichols, Inc. 183,798              

Encumbered/Expended To Date 225,722              

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation

Lift Station Rehabilitation 14,278                

Remaining Appropriation 14,278                

Total Appropriation 240,000$            

Lift Station Rehabilitation

City of Lubbock

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

June 22, 2021

92591



61 FY 2020-21 Operating Budget and Capital Program



FY 2020-21 Operating Budget and Capital Program 62



 
 
 
 

Purchasing and Contract Management  
 

Project Summary 
RFQ 21-15757-MA for Lift Station 34 Rehabilitation  

Capital Improvements Project 
 
 

 
Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities 
Notice was published on BidSync.com from February 9, 2021 to February 24, 2021 
53 viewed using BidSync.com  
10 Firms downloaded the documents. 
 16 vendors were notified separately.  
  2 vendor submitted a bid.  

 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 12.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Contract 15872, with
Horseshoe Construction, Inc., for construction of the Low Pressure Supply Line Slip Lining Project.

Item Summary
The scope of this project will include slip lining of an approximately 3.5-mile long, 24-inch low-pressure
water line, with a 20-inch high-pressure water line along Quaker Avenue, from Marsha Sharp Freeway to
Clovis Road. The purpose of the project is to increase the capacity and reliability of the existing concrete
transmission line that connects Pump Station 16 and Low Head B, utilizing a trenchless construction
method.

In response to RFP 21-15872-TF, three proposals were received on May 27, 2021, with the following
proposal amounts:
  

Contractor  Amount
Spiess Construction Co., Inc., Orcutt, California $5,583,295.00
Horseshoe Construction, Inc., La Porte, Texas $5,585,147.50
MH Civil Constructors, Inc., Amarillo, Texas $6,996,000.00

The proposals were evaluated using the following criteria: 60 Points for Price, 25 Points for Contractor
Qualifications, 5 Points for Safety Record Questionnaire, and 10 Points for Construction Time. The
maximum point value is 100 points per evaluator. After the proposals were evaluated, the following
ranking was obtained:
  

Contractor Points out of 600
Horseshoe Construction, Inc., of La Porte, Texas 580.52
Spiess Construction Co., Inc., of Orcutt, California 549.83
MH Civil Constructors, Inc., of Amarillo, Texas 468.96

Staff and the Evaluation Committee recommend award of the unit price contract to the highest ranked
proposer, Horseshoe Construction, Inc. of La Porte, Texas in the amount of $5,585,147.50.  This
contract is awarded by the unit price and actual expenditures may be more or less depending on field
conditions.

Time for substantial completion is 210 calendar days from the Notice to Proceed.

Fiscal Impact
This contract is in the amount of $5,585,147.50 and is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92659,



This contract is in the amount of $5,585,147.50 and is funded in Capital Improvements Project 92659,
Low Pressure Supply Line Lining Project.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Mike Keenum, Division Director of Engineering

Attachments
Resolution 
Construction Contract 
Location Map 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 
Project Summary Sheet 















As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the 
Government Code,  this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, 
engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative 
location of property boundaries.

QU
AK

ER
 A

VE

18TH ST

0 2,000 4,000 6,0001,000
Feet

±
MARSHA SHARP FW

Y   US 62/82

Low Pressure Supply Line Lining Project

19TH ST   SH 114

4TH ST   FM 2255

W LOOP 289
ERSKINE ST

IN
DI

AN
A 

AV
E

CLOVIS RD   US 84

LINE A

LINE B



Capital Project Number:

Capital Project Name:

Encumbered/Expended Budget

Staff Time 7,047$                      

Design Contract 15015 with Kimley-Horn 480,000                    

Agenda Item  June 22, 2021

Contract 15872 with Horseshoe Construction, Inc. 5,585,148                 

Encumbered/Expended To Date 6,072,195                 

Estimated Cost for Remaining Appropriation

Low Pressure Supply Line Lining Project 927,805                    

Remaining Appropriation 927,805                    

Total Appropriation 7,000,000$               

City of Lubbock

92659

Low Pressure Supply Line Lining Project

Capital Project 

Project Cost Detail

June 22, 2021



FY 2020-21 Operating Budget and Capital Program 124



 
 

 

 

Purchasing and Contract Management  

 

Project Summary 

 
RFP 21-15872-TF Low Pressure Supply Line Lining   

  

Notice was published in the Lubbock Avalanche Journal on May 2 & May 9, 2021. 

Notice was published on the Purchasing Web Site under Bid Opportunities. 

Notice was published on BidSync.com and Bonfire.com from May 2 to May 27, 2021. 

21 individuals attended the pre-proposal conference. 

74 vendors viewed using BidSync.com and Bonfire.com.  

44 vendors downloaded the documents. 

9 vendors were notified separately.  

3 vendors submitted a proposal. 

 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 13.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Engineering: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Professional Services
Agreement Contract 15977, with Freese and Nichols, Inc., for professional engineering services
associated with the Elevated Storage Tank (EST) Design and Pressure Zone Delineation.

Item Summary
A Water Distribution System Master Plan for the City of Lubbock was completed in June 2017. The
Master Plan identifies a need for ten million gallons of elevated storage by the year 2034.  In order to
meet this projected demand, it is recommended that 5 two million gallon elevated storage tanks be
installed over the next several years. The City currently owns 3 elevated storage tanks with a total
capacity of four million gallons, with three million gallons in the west pressure zone, and one million
gallons in the east pressure zone. The existing elevated storage tanks are below the City’s current and
future hydraulic grade line (HGL) and therefore cannot be relied upon as functional storage capacity.
 
The Texas Commission of Environmental Quality (TCEQ) requires 100 gallons of elevated storage per
connection, resulting in a future need for four million gallons of elevated storage capacity on the east
pressure zone, and six million gallons on the west pressure zone, for a total of ten million gallons across
the City. These storage tanks will also provide an opportunity to optimize pump station efficiencies
within the City of Lubbock, reducing electric, operations, and maintenance costs as well as providing
pressure during power outages. In order for these elevated storage tanks to function properly, the City
must establish and delineate the pressure plane between the east/west pressure zones. The initial review
of the pressure plane that runs along Indiana Avenue has revealed that there are inoperable valves and
valves that cannot be located along the boundary. This project will include the replacement or
rehabilitation of broken valves and installation of additional piping where a proper pressure zone cannot
be established within the current system.   
 
Staff recommends award of the professional service agreement to Freese and Nichols, Inc. of Fort Worth,
Texas, for $955,522.62.  Time for substantial completion is 365 calendar days from the Notice to
Proceed. 

Fiscal Impact
This contract is in the amount of $955,522.62 and is funded in Capital Improvement Projects 92452,
Elevated Storage Tanks and 8622, Pressure Zone Delineation.

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Mike Keenum, Division Director of Engineering

Attachments



Attachments
Resolution 
Professional Service Agreement 
Budget Detail 
CIP Detail 
CIP Detail 









































































Capital Project Number: 8622

Capital Project Name:

Capital Project Number: 92452

Capital Project Name:

Budget

Encumbered/Expended 8622 92452 Total

City of Lubbock Staff 2,642$        43,067            45,710$          

Professional Services 608                 608                 

Contract 13900- PSA - Freese and Nichols, Inc. 79,581        1,246,967       1,326,547       

2 - 2 MG Storage tanks - Contract 14949 -                  10,640,600     10,640,600     

Contract 15792 - MH Civil Constructors 305,000      800,000          1,105,000       

Contract 15977 - PSA - Freese and Nichols, Inc. 102,116      853,406          955,523          

Encumbered/Expended to Date 489,339      13,584,648     14,073,988     

Estimated Costs for Remaining Appropriation

Elevated Storage Tank Construction 5,661          417,191          422,851          

Remaining Appropriation 5,661          417,191          422,851          

Total Appropriation To Date 495,000$    14,001,839     14,496,839$   

Capital Project 

City of Lubbock, TX

Agenda Item June 22, 2021

Pressure Zone Deliniation and Valve Repair Project

Elevated Storage Tanks

June 22, 2021

Project Cost Detail



Project Name Pressure Zone Delineation and Valve Repair Project Project Number 8622

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Public Works Engineering

Josh Kristinek

Infrastructure Improvements

Approved

This project will properly establish and delineate the pressure plane between the east and west pressure zones.  The project will utilize 

City field crews and engineering staff to verify locations and functionality of valves across the pressure plane zone boundary along 

Indiana Avenue.  An initial review of the pressure plane boundary has discovered inoperable valves and missing valves along the 

boundary.  This project will replace or rehabilitate broken valves along the pressure plane boundary and install pipe where a proper 

pressure zone cannot be established within the current water system.  

Currently the valves at 66th Street and Martin Luther King Boulevard on a 36 inch transmission line are broken in the wrong position 

and need to be repaired or replaced in order for the distribution system to function properly.

Project Justification

The 2017 Water Distribution System Master Plan identified the need for five elevated storage tanks (ESTs) throughout the water 

system.  The installation of these ESTs will save the city money in both electricity costs and operations and maintenance costs.  In 

order for these ESTs to function properly, the pressure plane zoned must be properly established to prevent water from moving across 

one zone to the other.

Project History

$495,000 was appropriated in the FY 2017-18 Budget, Ord. No. 2017-O0111, October 1, 2017.

FY 17-18 Pressure Zone Delineation between the east and west pressure Zones repairing valves and placing infrastructure to complete 

the pressure zone including Construction, Design and Surveying as needed.

The City of Lubbock currently has three pressure planes:  East, West and Southwest Zones.  The 2017 Water Distribution System 

Master Plan has identified that the City only needs two pressure planes to operate optimally.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26

Construction  470,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  470,000 

Design and Engineering  25,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  25,000 

Total Project Appropriation  495,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  495,000 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26

FY 2018 Water/Wastewater Cash  495,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  495,000 

Total Funding Sources  495,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  495,000 

39 FY 2020-21 Proposed Budget and Capital Program



Project Name Pressure Zone Delineation and Valve Repair Project Project Number 8622

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 

FY 2020-21 Proposed Budget and Capital Program 40



Project Name Elevated Storage Tanks Project Number 92452

Managing Department

Project Manager

Project Classification

Project Status

Project Scope

Water Production

Josh Kristinek

Infrastructure Improvements

Approved

This project includes the acquisition of land for new elevated storage tanks (ESTs), and the construction of five 2 million gallon ESTs 

within the next 20 years to meet the Texas Commission of Environmental Quality (TCEQ) elevated storage requirements for the 

projected population.  This project includes the engineering services and construction associated with elevated storage improvements 

for the City of Lubbock.

FY 20-21 Design of the remaining elevated storage tanks.

Project Justification

The TCEQ requires 100 gallons of elevated storage per connection resulting in 4 Million gallons on the east pressure plane and 6 

million gallons on the west pressure plane for a total of 10 million gallons across the City.  These storage tanks will also provide an 

opportunity to optimize pump efficiencies within the City of Lubbock saving on power costs and provide for pressure during power 

outages.  These tanks will save electrical costs for the City and lower the costs of operations and maintenance for pump stations by 

allowing the pump stations to run at optimal ranges.

Project History

The City currently has three elevated storage tanks (ESTs) with a total capacity of 4 million gallons with 3 million gallons in the west 

pressure zone and 1 million gallons in the east pressure zone.  The 2017 Water Distribution Master Plan identified a need for 10 

million gallons of elevated storage by the year 2034.  In order to meet this future demand it is recommended that five 2 million gallon 

ESTs be installed over the next 20 years.  Three ESTs are needed in the west pressure zone and two ESTs in the east pressure zone.  

The three existing ESTs will be decommissioned since they were not built to the necessary height needed today.  

FY 17-18 Budget is for Design of five elevated storage tanks.

FY 19-20 Design of the Milwaukee and 104th Street tank and 50th and Indiana Avenue will be completed.  Construction will begin in 

the summer of 2020 of these two elevated storage tanks.

$200,000 was appropriated in the FY 2016-17 Budget, Ord. No. 2016-O0135, October 1, 2016.

$2,250,000 was appropriated in the FY 2017-18 Budget, Ord. No. 2017-O0111, October 1, 2017. 

$9.4 million was appropriated in the FY 2019-20 Budget, Ord. No. 2019-O0129, October 1, 2019.

$2,151,839 was appropriated in FY 2019-20, BCR# 1920-7, March 13, 2020.

Unappropriated Planning Years

Appropriation Detail

Appropriation to

Date

Total Project 

Amount
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26

 Land Acquisition  200,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  200,000 

Construction  11,551,839  0  0  12,000,000  0  6,000,000  0  29,551,839 

Design and Engineering  2,250,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  2,250,000 

Total Project Appropriation  14,001,839  0  0  12,000,000  0  6,000,000  0  32,001,839 

57 FY 2020-21 Proposed Budget and Capital Program



Project Name Elevated Storage Tanks Project Number 92452

Unappropriated Planning Years

Funding to

Date

Total

FundingFunding Detail
FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26

FY 2010 Water Revenue CO's  1,311,275  0  0  0  0  0  0  1,311,275 

FY 2011 10-year Water Revenue 

CO's

 48,240  0  0  0  0  0  0  48,240 

FY 2014 10-year Water Revenue 

CO's

 700,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  700,000 

FY 2014 Water Revenue CO's  190,485  0  0  0  0  0  0  190,485 

FY 2017 Water Cash  200,000  0  0  0  0  0  0  200,000 

FY 2020 Water/Wastewater 

Revenue CO's

 11,551,839  0  0  0  0  0  0  11,551,839 

FY 2022 Water/Wastewater 

Revenue CO's

 0  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 

FY 2023 Water/Wastewater 

Revenue CO's

 0  0  0  12,000,000  0  0  0  12,000,000 

FY 2025 Water/Wastewater 

Revenue CO's

 0  0  0  0  0  6,000,000  0  6,000,000 

Total Funding Sources  14,001,839  0  0  12,000,000  0  6,000,000  0  32,001,839 

Unappropriated Planning Years

Total ImpactFY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26Operating Budget Impact

 0 No Impact Anticipated  0  0  0  0  0  0 

Total Operating Budget Impact  0  0  0  0  0  0  0 

FY 2020-21 Proposed Budget and Capital Program 58



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 14.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Works:  Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Sole Source
Contract 15777, with Hydra-Stop, for a service agreement to provide Hydra-Stop parts, fittings and
insertion valves.

Item Summary
On February 25, 2019, the City Council approved the purchase of Hydra-Stop insertion valve equipment
from KW Sharp, for use by our water pipeline crews. This Hydra-Stop insertion valve equipment is used
in emergency situations when valve failure occurs to assist in shutting off water within the system. Since
the Hydra-Stop equipment was purchased, pipeline crews have successfully installed more than 20
insertion valves within our distribution system. These Hydra-Stop valves were also purchased through
KW Sharp. 

The current item for consideration is a service agreement with the manufacturer, Hydra-Stop, to
provide insertion valves, fitting, and parts directly to the City of Lubbock warehouse. This will allow for
shorter lead times during times of emergency, by having parts available in the warehouse. This contract
will also lower costs by allowing direct purchase from the manufacturer.

Fiscal Impact
The estimated annual expenditure for these insertion valves under this service agreement is $100,000,
and may be more or less depending upon the needs of the water system.  These insertion valves will be
inventory within the warehouse, and the parts will be charged to operating or capital as they are used
within the distribution system. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Wood Franklin, Division Director of Public Works

Attachments
Resolution-Hydra-Stop 
Contract-Hydra Stop 





 

                                                                                                                                        Contract 15777 
City of Lubbock, TX 

Hydra-Stop 
Agreement     

 

This Service Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of the      day of                          20____ 
(“Effective Date”) by and between Hydra-Stop, (the Contractor), and the City of Lubbock (the “City”).     

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the parties enter into this agreement in accordance with Local Government Code 
(LGC) § 252.022 (7) (A); Hydra-Stop is the sole designer and manufacturer of the Hydra-Stop; and  

 
WHEREAS, Contractor desires to perform as an independent contractor to provide HYDRA-STOP 

PARTS, FITTINGS AND  INSERTION VALVES,  upon terms and conditions maintained in this 
Agreement; and 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, the City and 
Contractor agree as follows:  

City and Contractor acknowledge the Agreement consists of the following exhibits which are attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference, listed in their order of priority in the event of inconsistent or 
contradictory provisions: 

1. Exhibit A – Request for Exemption from Local Government Code 252 
2. Exhibit B – Sole Source Justification  
3. Exhibit C – Hydra-Stop Price Sheet  

Scope of Work 

Contractor shall provide the materials that are specified in Exhibit C.  

Article 1  

    1.1 The contract term shall be for an initial one (1) year period, said date of term beginning upon 
City Council date of formal approval. The City and the contractor may, upon written mutual 
consent, extend the contract for four (4) additional one (1) year periods. The City does not 
guarantee any specific amount of compensation, volume, minimum or maximum amount of 
services under this contract. 

1.2 Prices quoted shall be set for a period for one (1) year, said date of term beginning upon City 
Council date of formal approval.  The rate may be adjusted upward or downward at this time 
at a percentage not to exceed the effective change in Consumer Price Index (CPI) or Product 
Price Index (PPI), whichever is most appropriate for the specific contract for the previous 12-
months at the City’s discretion, the effective change rate shall be based on either the local or 
national index average rage for all items.  If agreement cannot be reached, the contract is 
terminated at the end of the current contract period. 

 

1.3 The Contractor shall not assign any interest in this Agreement and shall not transfer any 
interest in the Agreement, whatsoever, without prior consent of the City.  

1.4 All funds for payment by the City under this Agreement are subject to the availability of an 
annual appropriation for this purpose by the City. In the event of non-appropriation of funds 



 

by the City Council of the City of Lubbock for the goods or services provided under the 
Agreement, the City will terminate the Agreement, without termination charge or other 
liability, on the last day of the then-current fiscal year or when the appropriation made for the 
then-current year for the goods or services covered by this Agreement is spent, whichever 
event occurs first.  If at any time funds are not appropriated for the continuance of this 
Agreement, cancellation shall be accepted by the contractor on 30 days prior written notice, 
but failure to give such notice shall be of no effect and the City shall not be obligated under 
this Agreement beyond the date of termination. 

1.5 This contract shall remain in effect until the first of the following occurs: (1) the expiration 
date, (2) performance of services ordered, or (3) termination of by either party with a 30 day 
written notice. The City of Lubbock reserves the right to award the canceled contract to the 
next lowest and best bidder as it deems to be in the best interest of the city. 

Article 2 Miscellaneous. 

2.1 This Agreement is made in the State of Texas and shall for all purposes be construed in 
accordance with the laws of said State, without reference to choice of law provisions. 

2.2 This Agreement is performable in, and venue of any action related or pertaining to this 
Agreement shall lie in, Lubbock, Texas. 

2.3 This Agreement and its Exhibits contains the entire agreement between the City and 
Contractor and supersedes any and all previous agreements, written or oral, between the 
parties relating to the subject matter hereof.  No amendment or modification of the terms of 
this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties unless reduced to writing and signed by both 
parties. 

2.4       This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. 

2.5 In the event any provision of this Agreement is held illegal or invalid, the remaining provisions 
of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby. 

2.6 The waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by any parties or the failure of any 
parties otherwise to insist upon strict performance of any provision hereof shall not constitute 
a waiver of any subsequent breach or of any subsequent failure to perform. 

2.7       This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their 
respective heirs, representatives and successors and may be assigned by Contractor or the City 
to any successor only on the written approval of the other party. 

2.8 All claims, disputes, and other matters in question between the Parties arising out of or relating 
to this Agreement or the breach thereof, shall be formally discussed and negotiated between 
the Parties for resolution.  In the event that the Parties are unable to resolve the claims, 
disputes, or other matters in question within 30 days of written notification from the aggrieved 
Party to the other Party, the aggrieved Party shall be free to pursue all remedies available at 
law or in equity. 

2.9 At any time during the term of the contract, or thereafter, the City, or a duly authorized audit 
representative of the City or the State of Texas, at its expense and at reasonable times, reserves 
the right to audit Contractor's records and books relevant to all services provided to the City 
under this Contract.  In the event such an audit by the City reveals any errors or overpayments 
by the City, Contractor shall refund the City the full amount of such overpayments within 30 



 

days of such audit findings, or the City, at its option, reserves the right to deduct such amounts 
owing the City from any payments due Contractor. 

    2.10 The City reserves the right to exercise any right or remedy to it by law, contract, equity, or 
otherwise, including without limitation, the right to seek any and all forms of relief in a court 
of competent jurisdiction. Further, the City shall not be subject to any arbitration process prior 
to exercising its unrestricted right to seek judicial remedy. The remedies set forth herein are 
cumulative and not exclusive, and may be exercised concurrently. To the extent of any conflict 
between this provision and another provision in, or related to, this do.  

     2.11    The contractor shall not assign or sublet the contract, or any portion of the contract, without 
written consent from the Director of Purchasing and Contract Management.  Should consent 
be given, the Contractor shall insure the Subcontractor or shall provide proof of insurance 
from the Subcontractor that complies with all contract Insurance requirements document, this 
provision shall control.  

2.12 Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, 
fully understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the 
descriptive material contained herein and any additional associated documents and 
Amendments. The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor unless 
agreed upon in writing by the parties. In the event of conflict between these terms and 
conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions 
provided herein shall prevail. The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms 
agreed upon by the parties, and any prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

2.13 Contractor acknowledges by supplying any Goods or Services that the Contractor has read, 
fully understands, and will be in full compliance with all terms and conditions and the 
descriptive material contained herein and any additional associated documents and 
Amendments. The City disclaims any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor unless 
agreed upon in writing by the parties. In the event of conflict between these terms and 
conditions and any terms and conditions provided by the Contractor, the terms and conditions 
provided herein shall prevail. The terms and conditions provided herein are the final terms 
agreed upon by the parties, and any prior conflicting terms shall be of no force or effect. 

2.14 Contracts with Companies Engaged in Business with Iran, Sudan, or Foreign Terrorist 
Organization Prohibited.  Pursuant to Section 2252.152 of the Texas Government Code, 
prohibits the City from entering into a contract with a vendor that is identified by The 
Comptroller as a company known to have contracts with or provide supplies or service with 
Iran, Sudan or a foreign terrorist organization. 
 

2.15 Texas Public Information Act.  The requirements of Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government 
Code, may apply to this contract and the contractor or vendor agrees that the contract can be 
terminated if the contractor or vendor knowingly or intentionally fails to comply with a 
requirement of that subchapter. To the extent Subchapter J, Chapter 552, Government Code 
applies to this agreement, Contractor agrees to:  (1) preserve all contracting information 
related to the contract as provided by the records retention requirements applicable to the 
governmental body for the duration of the contract; (2) promptly provide to the governmental 
body any contracting information related to the contract that is in the custody or possession of 
the entity on request of the governmental body; and (3) on completion of the contract,  

 



 

either: (A) provide at no cost to the governmental body all contracting information related to 
the contract that is in the custody or possession of the entity; or (B) preserve the contracting 
information related to the contract as provided by the records retention requirements 
applicable to the governmental body. 

 

2.16     No Boycott of Israel.  Pursuant to Section 2271.002 of the Texas Government Code, Respondent 
certifies that either (i) it meets an exemption criteria under Section 2271.002; or (ii) it does not 
boycott Israel and will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract resulting from this 
solicitation. Respondent shall state any facts that make it exempt from the boycott certification 
in its Response. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

-----INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK-----

  

















   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 15.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving a Downtown Grant Program
(Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Sherwood Design and
Construction, LLC, at 1611 Avenue L, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated
Bylaws of Market Lubbock Economic Development Corporation. 

Item Summary
Sherwood Design and Construction, LLC, is renovating their property at 1611 Avenue L, which is
located within the Downtown Tax Increment Financing District Boundary, as designated by the City of
Lubbock. The scope of the permittable project includes demolition of the existing facade, new concrete,
windows and doors. 

The cost of the permittable project is estimated to be $75,550, and the requested grant amount is $7,555.
The Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors approved this amount at their May 26, 2021 Board
Meeting, and recommend approval by the City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $75,550, with $7,555 to be paid upon completion with the
requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Brianna Gerardi, Director of Business Development
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Supporting Documentation 





























   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 16.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving a Downtown Grant Program
(Facade) Expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Sherwood Design and Construction,
LLC, at 1611 Avenue L, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of
Market Lubbock Economic Development Corporation. 

Item Summary
Sherwood Design and Construction, LLC, is renovation their property at 1611 Avenue L, which is
located within the Downtown Tax Increment Financing District Boundary, as designated by the City of
Lubbock. The scope of the facade project includes fencing, landscaping and painting. 

The cost of the project is estimated to be $50,000, and the requested grant amount is $25,000. The
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors approved this amount at their May 26, 2021 Board Meeting,
and recommend approval by the City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $50,000, with $25,000 to be paid upon completion with the
requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Brianna Gerardi, Director of Business Development
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Supporting Documentation 





























   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 17.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving a Downtown Grant Program
(Permittable) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc. to be provided to N2 Electrical Contractors, LLC, at
701 Broadway, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5, of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of Market
Lubbock Economic Development Corporation. 

Item Summary
N2 Electrical Contractors, LLC, is renovating their property at 701 Broadway, which is located within
the Downtown Tax Increment Financing District Boundary, as designated by the City of Lubbock. The
scope of the permittable project includes concrete work, metal work, plumbing, mechanical and
electrical work. 

The cost of the project is estimated to be $1,165,401, and the requested grant amount is $100,000. The
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors approved this amount at their May 26, 2021 Board Meeting,
and recommend approval by the City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $1,165,401, with $100,000 to be paid upon completion
with the requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Brianna Gerardi, Director of Business Development
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Supporting Documentation 































   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 18.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving a Downtown Grant Program
(Facade) Expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to N2 Electrical Contractors, LLC, at 701
Broadway, pursuant to Article IV, Section 5 of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of Market Lubbock
Economic Development Corporation. 

Item Summary
N2 Electrical Contractors, LLC, is renovating their property at 701 Broadway, which is located within
the Downtown Tax Increment Financing District boundary, as designated by the City of Lubbock. The
scope of the facade project includes a renovation of the aluminum-framed entrance to the property. 

The cost of the project is estimated to be $61,920, and the requested grant amount is $25,000. The
Market Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors approved this amount at their May 26, 2021 Board Meeting,
and recommend approval by the City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $61,920, with $25,000 to be paid upon completion with the
requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Brianna Gerardi, Director of Business Development
Market Lubbock Inc. Board of Directors

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Supporting Documentation 































   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 19.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Business Development: Consider a resolution approving a Downtown Grant Program
(Facade) expenditure of Market Lubbock, Inc., to be provided to Fred Bowers at 1401 Texas Avenue,
pursuant to Article IV, Section 5 of the Amended and Restated Bylaws of Market Lubbock Economic
Development Corporation. 

Item Summary
Fred Bowers of Bowers Law Office is renovating his property at 1401 Texas Avenue, which is located
within the Downtown Tax Increment Financing District boundary, as designated by the City of
Lubbock. The scope of the facade project includes the installation of an exit door and garage door on the
east side of the property, along with electrical work. 

The cost of the project is estimated to be $5,587, and the requested grant amount is $2,794. The Market
Lubbock, Inc. Board of Directors approved this amount at their May 26, 2021 Board Meeting, and
recommend approval by the City Council. 

Fiscal Impact
The total cost of the project is estimated to be $5,587, with $2,794 to be paid upon completion with the
requested grant. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Brianna Gerardi, Director of Business Development
Market Lubbock Inc. Board of Directors

Attachments
Resolution 
Market Lubbock Resolution 
Market Lubbock Supporting Documentation 



















   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 20.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Public Health Services: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a
Memorandum of Understanding for Central Distribution Model Participants, Department State Health
Services Contract No. HHS001031800017, between the City of Lubbock Health Department and the
State of Texas Department of State Health Services, to treat and control the spread of infectious disease
across Texas.

Item Summary
This agreement will provide the City of Lubbock Health Department the opportunity to treat and control
the spread of infectious disease across Texas, through the U.S. Federal Government, 340B Drug Pricing
Program.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Katherine Wells, Director of Public Health Services

Attachments
Resolution 
MOU DSHS HHS001031800017 





 

 

 

 

 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001031800017  Page 1 of 9 
 

 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

FOR CENTRAL DISTRIBUTION MODEL PARTICIPANTS 
DSHS CONTRACT NO.  HHS001031800017 

 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), is between Department of State Health Services 

(DSHS) and City of Lubbock each a “Party” and collectively “Parties” to this MOU to treat and 

control the spread of infectious disease across Texas through the U.S. federal government 340B Drug 

Pricing Program (the “Program”).  

  

1. Purpose  

  

Establish roles and responsibilities concerning Parties’ compliance with the Program, while 

providing listed medications available through DSHS’ Inventory Tracking Electronic Asset 

Management System (ITEAMS) platform.  

 

2. Joint Responsibilities  

 

2.1 Ensure policies and procedures align with Program guidelines and expectations of 

compliance; 

2.2 Monitor and track medication from DSHS Pharmacy Branch to patient receipt; and  

2.3 Ensure all policies and procedures are implemented and adhered to. 

 

3. DSHS Responsibilities 

 

3.1 Create, review and update policies and procedures to ensure compliance of Program;   

3.2 Purchase medications for the treatment of sexually transmitted diseases (STDs) and 

tuberculosis (TB) with state and federal funds allocated for specific public health purposes 

that are administered and dispensed in compliance with Program regulations, as authorized 

by the Texas Health and Safety Code, Chapters 81, 85 and 1001; 

3.3 Review, approve and monitor Clinic’s registration in Office of Pharmacy Affairs 

Information System (OPAIS); 

3.4 May review and approve the eligibility for each Clinic location to participate in Program; 

3.5 Ensure TB medications provided are through local, pre-authorized health department and 

entities; 

3.6 Provide education concerning Program compliance to Clinic through initial and ongoing 

trainings by submitting information on how to sign-up for the Apexus PVP Program, a 

Health Resources and Services Administration (HRSA) contractor for further education; 

3.7 Monitor and support Clinic on all compliance elements of the Program addressed in the 

policies outlined by the DSHS HIV/STD Program, which can be accessed at: 

https://www.dshs.texas.gov/hivstd/policy/; and 
3.8 Monitor and support Clinic on all compliance elements of the Program addressed in the policies 

outlined by the DSHS Tuberculosis and Hansen’s Disease Branch in the Texas Tuberculosis Work 

Plan, which can be accessed at: https://www.dshs.texas.gov/idcu/disease/tb/policies/ . 

https://www.dshs.texas.gov/hivstd/policy/
https://www.dshs.texas.gov/idcu/disease/tb/policies/


 

 

 

 

 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001031800017  Page 2 of 9 
 

 

 

4. Clinic Responsibilities 

 

4.1 Determine eligibility of participation in the Program for each Clinic location;  

4.2 Obtain medications through ITEAMS platform for outpatient treatment of STDs or for TB 

services and medications;  

4.3 Distribute medications at no charge to uninsured, eligible patients; 

4.4 Ensure medications are used only for the treatment of STDs and TB; 

4.5 Ensure medications from the Program are not sold or exchanged to any individual or entity;  

4.6 Maintain a Class D pharmacy license; Clinics without a Class D Pharmacy license are only 

permitted to order medications under a physician’s license for direct administration to 

patients onsite and for patient-delivered partner therapy using single-dose oral medications 

for chlamydia and gonorrhea. i.e. azithromycin and cefixime.  

4.7 Designate a staff member who oversees the ordering, provision, reconciliation and 

reporting of medications obtained through the ITEAMS platform, with reconciliation of 

the medications occurring prior to the last day of each month; 

4.8 Maintain a tangible or electronic tracking-log documenting the following information for 

each medication distributed: 

4.8.1 Link to the patient to ensure that it is administered or dispensed to an eligible patient 

of clinical services in an outpatient setting; 

4.8.2 The National Drug Code (NDC); 

4.8.3 Total quantity of medication dispended or administered; and 

4.8.4 Reconciled medication inventory.  

4.9 Maintain records of Program information establishing appropriate use of each Program 

medication -- as records may be requested and audited by DSHS or for an internal review 

at any time to ensure compliance. Records include, but are not limited to: billing records, 

medication tracking logs, and relevant patient records; 

4.10 Ensure all Program medications for treatment of STDs comply with current policies and 

procedures outlined by the DSHS HIV/STD Program, which can be accessed at:  

https://www.dshs.texas.gov/hivstd/policy/; 

4.11 Ensure all Program medications for TB services comply with current policies and 

procedures outlined by the DSHS Tuberculosis and Hansen’s Disease Branch in the Texas 

Tuberculosis Work Plan, which can be accessed at:  

https://www.dshs.texas.gov/idcu/disease/tb/policies/;  

4.12 Develop and implement policies and procedures for Program medication tracking and 

distribution that are accessible to DSHS. Clinic may adopt guidance from DSHS or create 

their own so long as they follow Program guidelines and do not contradict DSHS’ Program 

policies and procedures; and 

4.13 Register as a covered entity in OPAIS database, maintaining registration each year this 

contract is enforceable, using the DSHS Program grant number for each program for which 

Clinic receives funding or in-kind contributions from DSHS. The OPAIS database can be 

accessed at: https://340bopais.hrsa.gov/.  

 

 

https://www.dshs.texas.gov/hivstd/policy/
https://www.dshs.texas.gov/hivstd/policy/
https://www.dshs.texas.gov/idcu/disease/tb/policies/
https://340bopais.hrsa.gov/


 

 

 

 

 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001031800017  Page 3 of 9 
 

 

5. Duration and Termination  

  

This MOU will commence on September 1, 2021 or  on the last date of signature by the Parties 

to sign this MOU, whichever is later, and terminates on August 31, 2023, with the option to 

renew, by written agreement, in one-year increments, not exceeding a total of five years.   

  

Either Party may terminate this MOU upon providing 30 calendar days’ advance written notice 

to the other Party.  

 

6. Additional Terms and Conditions  

 

6.1 Confidentiality.  

6.1.1 Clinic will comply with the Privacy, Security and Breach Notification incorporated 

into this MOU as Attachment B.  

6.1.2 Clinic will maintain confidentiality and not disclose to third parties without DSHS’ 

prior written consent, and any DSHS information including but not limited to DSHS 

Data, business activities, practices, systems, conditions and services. This section 

will survive termination or expiration of this MOU. The obligations of Clinic under 

this section will survive termination or expiration of this MOU. 

6.1.3 All confidential information requirements must be included in all subcontract 

awarded by Clinic.  

6.2 DSHS Data.  

6.2.1 As between the Parties, all data and information acquired, accessed, or made 

available to Clinic by, through, or on behalf of DSHS or DSHS contractors, 

including all electronic data generated, processed, transmitted, or stored by Clinic 

in the course of providing data processing services in connection with Clinic’s 

performance hereunder (the “DSHS Data”), is owned solely by DSHS 

6.2.2 Clinic has no right has no right or license to use, analyze, aggregate, transmit, create 

derivatives of, copy, disclose, or process the DSHS Data except as required for 

Clinic to fulfill its obligations under the Contract or as authorized in advance in 

writing by DSHS 

6.2.3 For the avoidance of doubt, Clinic is expressly prohibited from using, and from 

permitting any third party to use, DSHS Data for marketing, research, or other non-

governmental or commercial purposes, without the prior written consent of DSHS 

6.2.4 Clinic shall make DSHS Data available to DSHS, including to DSHS’ designated 

vendors, as directed in writing by DSHS. The foregoing shall be at no cost to DSHS. 

6.2.5 Furthermore, the proprietary nature of Clinic’s systems that process, store, collect, 

and/or transmit the DSHS Data shall not excuse Clinic’s performance of its 

obligations hereunder. 

6.3 No Cost. This is a “no cost” agreement; the Comptroller shall not be obligated to make any 

payments of any amounts to Clinic or other parties as a result of this MOU. Any costs and 



 

 

 

 

 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001031800017  Page 4 of 9 
 

 

expenses incurred under the terms of this MOU will be paid by the Party incurring the cost 

or expense. No funds appropriated to either Party will be exchanged under this MOU. 

6.4 Public Information Act. Information, documentation and other material related to this 

MOU may be subject to public disclosure pursuant to Chapter 552 of the Tex. Gov’t Code 

(the “Public Information Act” or “PIA”). In accordance with Tex. Gov’t Code section 

2252.907, Local Government is required to make any information created or exchanged 

with DSHS pursuant to this MOU, and not otherwise excepted from disclosure under the 

PIA, available in a format that is accessible by the public at no additional charge to DSHS.  

6.5 Record Maintenance and Retention.  

6.5.1 Clinic shall keep and maintain under GAAP or GASB, as applicable, full, true, and 

complete records necessary to fully disclose to the DSHS, the Texas State Auditor’s 

Office, the United States Government, and their authorized representatives’ 

sufficient information to determine compliance with the terms and conditions of 

this Contract and all state and federal rules, regulations, and statutes. 

6.5.2 Clinic shall maintain and retain legible copies of this Contract and all records 

relating to the performance of the Contract including supporting fiscal documents 

adequate to ensure that claims for contract funds are in accordance with applicable 

State of Texas requirements. These records shall be maintained and retained by 

Clinic for a minimum of seven (7) years after the Contract expiration date or seven 

(7) years after the completion of all audit, claim, litigation, or dispute matters 

involving the Contract are resolved, whichever is later.  

6.6 DSHS’ Right to Audit. 

6.6.1 Clinic shall make available at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, and for 

reasonable periods, work papers, reports, books, records, supporting documents 

kept current by Clinic pertaining to the Contract for purposes of inspecting, 

monitoring, auditing, or evaluating by DSHS and the State of Texas 

6.6.2 In addition to any right of access arising by operation of law, Clinic and any of 

Clinic’s affiliate or subsidiary organizations, or Subcontractors shall permit the 

DSHS or any of its duly authorized representatives, as well as duly authorized 

federal, state or local authorities, unrestricted access to and  the right  to examine 

any site where business is conducted or Services are performed, and all records, 

which includes but is not limited to financial, client and patient records, books, 

papers or documents related to this Contract. If the Contract includes federal funds, 

federal agencies that shall have a right of access to records as described in this 

section include: the federal agency providing the funds, the Comptroller General of 

the United States, the General Accounting Office, the Office of the Inspector 

General, and any of their authorized representatives. In addition, agencies of the 

State of Texas that shall have a right of access to records as described in this section 

include: the DSHS, HHSC, HHSC's contracted examiners, the State Auditor’s 

Office, the Texas Attorney General's Office, and any successor agencies. Each of 

these entities may be a duly authorized authority 



 

 

 

 

 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001031800017  Page 5 of 9 
 

 

6.6.3 If deemed necessary by the DSHS or any duly authorized authority, for the purpose 

of investigation or hearing, Clinic shall produce original documents related to this 

Contract 

6.6.4 DSHS and any duly authorized authority shall have the right to audit billings both 

before and after payment, and all documentation that substantiates the billings 

6.6.5 Clinic shall include this provision concerning the right of access to, and 

examination of, sites and information related to this Contract in any Subcontract it 

awards 

6.7 Compliance with Audit or Inspection Findings.   

6.7.1 Clinic must act to ensure its and its Subcontractors’ compliance with all corrections 

necessary to address any finding of noncompliance with any law, regulation, audit 

requirement, or generally accepted accounting principle, or any other deficiency 

identified in any audit, review, or inspection of the Contract and the Services and 

Deliverables provided. Any such correction will be at Clinic’s or its Subcontractor's 

sole expense. Whether Clinic's action corrects the noncompliance shall be solely 

the decision of the DSHS 

6.7.2 As part of the Responsibilities, Clinic must provide to DSHS upon request a copy 

of those portions of Clinic's and its Subcontractors' internal audit reports relating to 

the Services and Deliverables provided to the State under the MOU 

6.8 State Auditor’s Right to Audit. The Parties acknowledge the State Auditor’s authority to 

conduct audits of state agencies under Chapter 321 of the Texas Government Code. Clinic 

shall comply with any rules and procedures of the state auditor in the implementation and 

enforcement of Section 2262.154 of the Texas Government Code.  

6.9 Amendment. This MOU may be modified by written amendment signed by the Parties.  

6.10 Change in Law and Compliance with Laws. Clinic shall comply with all laws, regulations, 

requirements and guidelines applicable to a vendor providing services and products 

required by this MOU to the State of Texas, as these laws, regulations, requirements and 

guidelines currently exist and as amended throughout the term of the MOU. DSHS reserves 

the right, in its sole discretion, to unilaterally amend the MOU to incorporate any 

modifications necessary for DSHS’ compliance, as an agency of the State of Texas, with 

all applicable state and federal laws, regulations, requirements and guidelines 

6.11 Governing Law and Venue. This MOU shall be governed by and construed in accordance 

with the laws of the State of Texas, without regard to the conflicts of law provisions. The 

venue of any suit arising under the Contract is fixed in any court of competent jurisdiction 

of Travis County, Texas, unless the specific venue is otherwise identified in a statute which 

directly names or otherwise identifies its applicability to the DSHS.  

6.12 Dispute Resolution.  

6.12.1 The dispute resolution process provided for in Chapter 2260 of the Texas 

Government Code must be used to attempt to resolve any dispute arising under the 

Contract. If the Clinic’s claim for breach of contract cannot be resolved informally 

with the DSHS, the claim shall be submitted to the negotiation process provided in 



 

 

 

 

 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001031800017  Page 6 of 9 
 

 

Chapter 2260. To initiate the process, the Clinic shall submit written notice, as 

required by Chapter 2260, to the individual identified in the Contract for receipt of 

notices. Any informal resolution efforts shall in no way modify the requirements or 

toll the timing of the formal written notice of a claim for breach of contract required 

under §2260.051 of the Texas Government Code. Compliance by the Clinic with 

Chapter 2260 is a condition precedent to the filing of a contested case proceeding 

under Chapter 2260. 

6.12.2 The contested case process provided in Chapter 2260 is the Clinic’s sole and 

exclusive process for seeking a remedy for an alleged breach of contract by the 

DSHS if the Parties are unable to resolve their disputes as described above.  

6.12.3 Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, unless 

otherwise requested or approved in writing by the DSHS, the Clinic shall continue 

performance and shall not be excused from performance during the period of any 

breach of contract claim or while the dispute is pending. However, the Clinic may 

suspend performance during the pendency of such claim or dispute if the Clinic has 

complied with all provisions of Section 2251.051, Texas Government Code, and 

such suspension of performance is expressly applicable and authorized under that 

law 

6.13 Limitation on Authority. 

6.13.1 Any authority granted to Clinic by the DSHS is limited to the terms of this MOU.  

6.13.2 Clinic shall not have any authority to act for or on behalf of the DSHS or the State 

of Texas except as expressly provided for in the Contract; no other authority, power, 

or use is granted or implied. Clinic may not incur any debt, obligation, expense, or 

liability of any kind on behalf of DSHS or the State of Texas 

6.13.3 Clinic may not rely on implied authority and is not granted authority under the 

MOU to:  

6.13.3.1 Make public policy on behalf of DSHS; 

6.13.3.2 Promulgate, amend, or disregard administrative regulations of 

program policy decisions made by State and federal agencies 

responsible for administration of a DSHS program; or  

6.13.3.3 Unilaterally communicate or negotiate with any federal or state 

agency or Texas Legislature on behalf of DSHS regarding DSHS 

programs or this MOU.  

6.14 Severability. If any provision of the Contract is held to be illegal, invalid or unenforceable 

by a court of law or equity, such construction will not affect the legality, validity or 

enforceability of any other provision or provisions of this Contract. It is the intent and 

agreement of the Parties this Contract shall be deemed amended by modifying such 

provision to the extent necessary to render it valid, legal and enforceable while preserving 

its intent or, if such modification is not possible, by substituting another provision that is 

valid, legal and enforceable and that achieves the same objective. All other provisions of 

this Contract will continue in full force and effect.  



 

 

 

 

 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001031800017  Page 7 of 9 
 

 

6.15 Force Majeure. Neither Party shall be liable to the other for any delay in, or failure of 

performance of, any requirement included in the Contract caused by force majeure. The 

existence of such causes of delay or failure shall extend the period of performance until 

after the causes of delay or failure have been removed provided the non-performing party 

exercises all reasonable due diligence to perform. Force majeure is defined as acts of God, 

war, fires, explosions, hurricanes, floods, failure of transportation, or other causes that are 

beyond the reasonable control of either party and that by exercise of due foresight such 

party could not reasonably have been expected to avoid, and which, by the exercise of all 

reasonable due diligence, such party is unable to overcome 

6.16 No Waiver. Nothing in the Contract shall be construed as a waiver of the DSHS’ or the 

State’s sovereign immunity. This Contract shall not constitute or be construed as a waiver 

of any of the privileges, rights, defenses, remedies, or immunities available to the DSHS 

or the State of Texas. The failure to enforce, or any delay in the enforcement of, any 

privileges, rights, defenses, remedies, or immunities available to the DSHS or the State of 

Texas under the Contract or under applicable law shall not constitute a waiver of such 

privileges, rights, defenses, remedies, or immunities or be considered as a basis for 

estoppel. DSHS does not waive any privileges, rights, defenses, or immunities available to 

DSHS by entering into the Contract or by its conduct prior to or subsequent to entering into 

the Contract.  

6.17 Entire Contract and Modification. This Contract constitutes the entire agreement of the 

Parties and is intended as a complete and exclusive statement of the promises, 

representations, negotiations, discussions, and other agreements that may have been made 

in connection with the subject matter hereof. Any additional or conflicting terms in any 

future document incorporated into the Contract will be harmonized with this Contract to 

the extent possible.  

 

7. Authorized Representatives  

  

The following will act as the designated Representative authorized to administer activities 

including, but not limited to, notices, consents, approvals or other general communications to 

the maximum extent possible.  The designated Party Representatives are:  

 

 

DSHS Clinic 

Melissa D. Tafoya-Cortez. CTCM 

DSHS Contract Management 

P.O. Box 149347  

Austin, Texas 78714-9347 

Phone: (512) 776-2643 

Melissa.Cortez@dshs.texas.gov 

Kim Swacina 

City of Lubbock 

806 18th Street 

Lubbock, Texas 79401 

Phone: (806) 775-2908 

kswacina@mylubbock.us 

 



 

 

 

 

 

DSHS Contract No. HHS001031800017  Page 8 of 9 
 

 

Either Party may change its designated Representative by providing written notice to the other 

Party at least ten calendar days prior to the change. 

 

8. Authorized Signatures 

 

By signing, Parties acknowledge that they have read the MOU in its entirety, agreeing to its terms. 

The persons whose signatures appear below have the requisite authority to execute this MOU on 

behalf of the named party.  

 

 

Signature Page follows



 

Page 9 of 9 

 

SIGNATURE PAGE FOR 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
DSHS CONTRACT NO.  HHS001031800017 

 

  

  

DSHS 

  

CLINIC 

By: ___________________________________  

  

 

Printed Name: __________________________ 

By: __________________________________  

  

 

Printed Name: __________________________ 

  

Date of Signature: _______________________ 

  

Date of Signature: _______________________ 

  

  

 

THE FOLLOWING ATTACHMENTS ARE ATTACHED AND INCORPORATED AS PART OF THE 

CONTRACT: 

 

ATTACHMENT A--CLINIC’S PARTICIPATING LOCATIONS 

ATTACHMENT B--PRIVACY, SECURITY, AND BREACH NOTIFICATION 

 

ATTACHMENTS FOLLOW 



 

 

ATTACHMENT A 

CLINIC’S PARTICIPATING LOCATIONS 
DSHS CONTRACT NO.  HHS001031800017 

 

 

Clinic Name Address City Zip Phone 

Number 

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

     

 

  



 

 

ATTACHMENT B 

PRIVACY, SECURITY, AND BREACH NOTIFICATION 
DSHS CONTRACT NO.  HHS001031800017 

 

1.0 Definitions 

“Breach” means the acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of Confidential Information in an 

unauthorized manner which compromises the security or privacy of the Confidential Information. 

“DSHS Confidential Information” means any communication or record (whether oral, written, 

electronically stored or transmitted, or in any other form) provided to or made available to the 

CLINIC electronically or through any other means that consists of or includes any or all of the 

following:  

(a) Protected Health Information in any form including without limitation, Electronic 

Protected Health Information or Unsecured Protected Health Information (as these 

terms are defined in 45 C.F.R. §160.103); 

(b) Sensitive Personal Information defined by Texas Business and Commerce Code 

Chapter 521; 

(c) Federal Tax Information (as defined in Internal Revenue Service Publication 1075);  

(d) Personal Identifying Information (as defined in Texas Business and Commerce Code 

Chapter 521);  

(e) Social Security Administration Data (defined as information received from a Social 

Security Administration federal agency system of records), including, without 

limitation, Medicare or Medicaid information (defined as information relating to an 

applicant or recipient of Medicare or Medicaid benefits); 

(f) All information designated as confidential under the constitution and laws of the State 

of Texas and of the United States, including the Texas Health & Safety Code and the 

Texas Public Information Act, Texas Government Code, Chapter 552. 

1.1 DSHS Confidential Information  

Any DSHS Confidential Information received by the CLINIC under this Contract may be 

disclosed only in accordance with applicable law.  By signing this Contract, the CLINIC 

certifies that the CLINIC is, and intends to remain for the term of this Contract, in compliance 

with all applicable state and federal laws and regulations with respect to privacy, security, 

and breach notification, including without limitation the following:   

(a) Title 5 United States Code (USC) Part I, Chapter 5, Subchapter II, Section552a, 

Records Maintained on Individuals, The Privacy Act of 1974, as amended by the 

Computer Matching and Privacy Protection Act of 1988; 

(b). Title 26 USC, Internal Revenue Code,  

 (c). Title 42 USC Chapter 7, Subchapter XI, Part C, Administrative Simplification, the 

relevant portions of the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 

(HIPAA); 

(d) Title 42 USC Chapter 7, the relevant portions of the Social Security Act;    



 

 

(e) Title 42 USC Chapter I, Subchapter A, Part 2, Confidentiality of Substance Use 

Disorder Patient Records 

(f)  Title 45 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Chapter A, Subchapter C, Part 160, 

General Administrative Requirements 

(g) Title 45 CFR Chapter A Subchapter C, Part 164, Security and Privacy;  

(h) Internal Revenue Service Publication 1075, Tax Information Security Guidelines for 

Federal, State and Local Agencies, Safeguards for Protecting Federal Tax Returns 

and Return Information;  

(i) Office of Management and Budget Memorandum 17-12, Preparing for and 

Responding to a Breach of Personally Identifiable Information;  

(j) Texas Business and Commerce Code Title 11, Subtitle B, Chapter 521 Unauthorized 

Use of Identifying Information;  

(k) Texas Government Code, Title, 5, Subtitle A, Chapter 552, Public Information, as 

applicable,  

(l) Texas Health and Safety Code, Title 2, Subtitle D, Chapter 81, Section 81.006, Funds 

(m) Texas Health and Safety Code Title 2, Subtitle I, Chapter 181, Medical Records 

Privacy;   

(n) Texas Health and Safety Code Title 7, Subtitle E, Chapter 611, Mental Health 

Records;  

(o) Texas Human Resources Code, Title 2, Subtitle A, Chapter 12, Section 12.003, 

Disclosure of Information Prohibited; 

(p) Texas Occupations Code, Title 3, Health Professions, as applicable; 

(q) Constitutional and common law privacy; and  

(r) Any other applicable law controlling the release of information created or obtained in 

the course of providing the services described in this Contract. 

The CLINIC further certifies that the CLINIC will comply with all amendments, regulations, and 

guidance relating to those laws, to the extent applicable. 

 

1.2 Cybersecurity Training 

All of CLINIC’s authorized users, workforce and subcontractors with access to a state 

computer system or database will complete a cybersecurity training program certified under 

Texas Government Code, Title 10, Subtitle B, Chapter 2054, Section 2054.5192, 

Cybersecurity Training Required: Certain State Contractors, by the Texas Department of 

Information Resources. 

1.3 Business Associate Agreement  

CLINIC will ensure that any subcontractor of CLINIC who has access to DSHS Confidential 

Information will sign a HIPAA-compliant Business Associate Agreement with CLINIC, and 

CLINIC will submit a copy of that Business Associate Agreement to DSHS upon request.  

  



 

 

1.4 CLINIC's Incident Notice, Reporting and Mitigation  
The CLINIC’s obligation begins at discovery of any unauthorized disclosure of Confidential 
Information or any privacy or security incident that may compromise Confidential 
Information.  “Incident” is defined as an attempted or successful unauthorized access, use, 
disclosure, modification, or destruction of information or interference with system 
operations in an information system. The CLINIC’s obligation continues until all effects of 
the Incident are resolved to DSHS’s satisfaction, hereafter referred to as the "Incident 
Response Period".  

 
1.5 Notification to DSHS.  
 

(a) The CLINIC must notify DSHS within the timeframes set forth in Section (c) below.  
 
(b) The CLINIC must require that its Subcontractors and contractors take the 

necessary steps to assure that the CLINIC can comply with all of the following 
Incident notice requirements.  

 
(c) Incident Notice:  
 

1. Initial Notice.  
 

Within twenty-four (24) hours of discovery, or in a timeframe otherwise approved by 
DSHS in writing, the CLINIC must preliminarily report on the occurrence of an 
Incident to the DSHS Privacy and Security Officers via email at: 
privacy@HHSC.state.tx.us.  
 
This initial notice must, at a minimum, contain: 
(i) all information reasonably available to CLINIC about the Incident, (ii) confirmation 
that the CLINIC has met any applicable federal Breach notification requirements, 
and  
(iii) a single point of contact for the CLINIC for DSHS communications both during 
and outside of business hours during the Incident Response Period.  
 

2. Formal Notice.  
 

No later than three (3) Business Days after discovery of an Incident, or when the 

CLINIC should have reasonably discovered the Incident, the CLINIC must provide 

written formal notification to DSHS using the Potential Privacy/Security Incident 

Form which is available on the HHSC website at 
https://hhsconnection.hhs.texas.gov/rights-responsibilities/office-chief-counsel/privacy. 

The formal notification must include all available information about the Incident, 

and the CLINIC's investigation of the Incident.  

 
1.6 CLINIC Investigation, Response, and Mitigation.  
 

The CLINIC must fully investigate and mitigate, to the extent practicable and as soon as 
possible or as indicated below, any Incident. At a minimum, the CLINIC will:  

(a) Immediately commence a full and complete investigation;  

mailto:privacy@HHSC.state.tx.us
https://hhsconnection.hhs.texas.gov/rights-responsibilities/office-chief-counsel/privacy


 

 

(b) Cooperate fully with DSHS in its response to the Incident;  
(c) Complete or participate in an initial risk assessment;  
(d) Provide a final risk assessment;  
(e) Submit proposed corrective actions to DSHS for review and approval;  
(f) Commit necessary and appropriate staff and resources to expeditiously respond;  
(g) Report to DSHS as required by DSHS and all applicable federal and state laws for 

Incident response purposes and for purposes of DSHS’s compliance with report 
and notification requirements, to the satisfaction of DSHS;  

(h) Fully cooperate with DSHS to respond to inquiries and/or proceedings by federal 
and state authorities about the Incident;  

(i) Fully cooperate with DSHS’s efforts to seek appropriate injunctive relief or to 
otherwise prevent or curtail such Incidents;  

(j) Recover, or assure destruction of, any Confidential Information impermissibly 
disclosed during or as a result of the Incident; and  

(k) Provide DSHS with a final report on the Incident explaining the Incident’s resolution. 
 
1.7 Breach Notification to Individuals and Reporting to Authorities.  
 

(a) In addition to the notices required in this section, the CLINIC must comply with all 
applicable legal and regulatory requirements in the time, manner, and content of any 
notification to individuals, regulators, or third-parties, or any notice required by other 
state or federal authorities, including without limitation, notifications required in Title 45 
CFR Chapter A, Subchapter C Part 164, Subpart D   Notification in the Case of Breach 
of Unsecured Protected Health Information  and Texas Business and Commerce Code, 
Title 11, Subtitle B, Chapter 521, Section 521.053(b), Notification Required Following 
Breach of Security of Computerized Data, or as specified by DSHS following an Incident.   

 
 

(b) The CLINIC must assure that the time, manner, and content of any Breach notification 
required by this section meets all federal and state regulatory requirements.  

 
(c) Breach notice letters must be in the CLINIC's name and on the CLINIC's letterhead and 

must contain contact information to obtain additional information, including the name and 
title of the CLINIC's representative, an email address, and a toll-free telephone number.  

 
(d) The CLINIC must provide DSHS with copies of all distributed communications related to 

the Breach notification at the same time the CLINIC distributes the communications.  

(e) The CLINIC must demonstrate to the satisfaction of DSHS that any Breach notification 
required by applicable law was timely made. If there are delays outside of the CLINIC's 
control, the CLINIC must provide written documentation to DSHS of the reasons for the 
delay.  

    

 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 21.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Community Development: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute
Contract 15950 and all related documents, between the City of Lubbock and the Salvation Army of
Lubbock, a Georgia Corporation, for the Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) program, to provide
services to the homeless.

Item Summary
Grantee: Salvation Army of Lubbock, a Georgia Corporation
Funding Source: ESG from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
Use of Funds: Emergency Shelter Operations, Essential Services and Rapid Re-Housing
Allocation: Up to $204,535.50
Terms: June 1, 2021 – September 30, 2021

Fiscal Impact
There is no fiscal impact to the General Fund. Funds used originate from HUD.  Maximum amount
allocated to the Salvation Army for the ESG program is $204,535.50. 

Staff/Board Recommending
Bill Howerton, Deputy City Manager
Karen Murfee, Director of Community Development 

Attachments
Resolution 
Contract 



RESOLUTION

BE IT RESOLVED BY THH CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LUBBOCK:

THAT the Mayor of the City of Lubbock is hereby authorized and directed to execute for and
on behalf of the City of Lubbock, a Community Development Funding Agreement 15950 for
the  Emergency  Solutions  Grant  (ESG) program to provide  services to the homeless,  and all
related  documents,  between  the  City  of Lubbock  and  the  Salvation  Army  of Lubbock,  a
Georgia Corporation. Said Contract is attached hereto and incorporated in this resolution as if
fully set forth herein and shall be included in the minutes of the City Council.

Passed by the City Council on

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR

ATTEST:

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

APPROVED AS T0 CONTENT:

APPROVED AS T0 FORM:

ccdocs/RES. CD ESG Funding Contract  15950 Salvation Army
05.21.21



1  

EMERGENCY SOLUTIONS GRANT (ESG) FUNDING AGREEMENT  

BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF LUBBOCK 

AND 
SALVATION ARMY OF LUBBOCK, A GEORGIA CORPORATION 

 
This Emergency Solutions Grant (ESG) Program (the “Agreement”) Contract No.15950 is made by and 
between the City of Lubbock, a State of Texas home rule municipal corporation (the “City”) and Salvation 
Army of Lubbock, A Georgia Corporation, (the “Grantee”), (each a “Party”, and collectively the 
“Parties”) acting by and through the Parties’ representative officers and officials, and is hereby entered into 
by the Parties on this _____day of __________, 2021 (the “Effective Date”). 

 
RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, the City is obligated to do and perform certain services in its undertaking of an Emergency 
Solutions Grant (ESG).  These funds pursuant to Subpart B of Title IV of the Stewart B. McKinney Homeless 
Assistance Act (42 U.S.C. 11371-11378), as amended by the Homeless Emergency and Rapid Transition to 
Housing Act of 2009 (Public Law 111-22) (HEARTH Act); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Grantee operates a non-profit center offering services to the homeless throughout Lubbock 
County, Texas. 

 
WHEREAS, the Grantee and the services it provides have been found to meet the criteria for funding under 
provisions of the Emergency Solutions Grant Regulation for Nonprofit Recipients; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Grantee proposes to provide a service or program which will provide funds to enhance its 
ability for emergency shelter, rapid re-housing, and a homeless management information system (the 
“Program”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the continuing supervision by the City with statutory and contractual requirements provide 
sufficient assurance that the public purpose of this Agreement will be accomplished; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has found that the Grantee has the special expertise, knowledge, and experience 
necessary for the operation of the Program and that the City will receive adequate consideration in the form 
of substantial public benefit; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City desires to enter into this Agreement with the Grantee to make available the services 
provided under the Program; and NOW, THEREFORE: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

THE PARTIES, FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 



2  

I. SCOPE OF PROGRAM 
 
A. General Administration 

In compliance with all of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Grantee agrees to provide the 
services set forth in the EXHIBIT A, which provides a description of each activity, including the services 
to be performed, the person(s) or entity providing the services, the estimated number of recipients of the 
services, and the manner and means of the services. The Grantee represents and warrants that the services 
to be provided to implement the Scope of Work shall be performed in a competent, professional and 
satisfactory manner in accordance with the ESG. The Grantee further certifies that all information 
presented in the ESG application submitted to the City upon which this Agreement is based shall be true 
and correct and incorporated by reference into this Agreement. 

 
B. Levels of Accomplishment – Goals and Performance Measures 

 
The Grantee shall be responsible to accomplish the levels of performance as set forth in the EXHIBIT A 
and report such measures monthly to the City. If the Grantee estimates such goals will not be met, the 
Grantee is to contact the City, at which time the City will determine if any adjustment to the grant award is 
appropriate. 

 
C. Staffing; Relationship of Parties; No Third Party Rights 

 
The Grantee shall ensure adequate and appropriate staffing is allocated to each ESG activity. Nothing 
contained in this Agreement is intended to, or shall be construed by the Parties, or by any third party, as 
creating or establishing the relationship of employer/employee, principal and agent, partnership or joint 
venture between the Parties, it being understood and agreed that Grantee is and will be at all times an 
independent contractor pursuant to this Agreement and shall not, in any way, be considered to be an officer, 
agent or employee of the City. The Parties intend that no rights or remedies be granted to any third party as a 
beneficiary of this Agreement or of any covenant, duty, obligation or undertaking established herein. 

 
II. TERM OF AGREEMENT 

 
This Agreement shall take effect on June 1, 2021, and shall terminate on September 30, 2021, unless 
otherwise cancelled or modified according to the terms of this Agreement. 

 
III. DISBURSEMENT AND FUNDS 

 
A. Maximum Amount of Disbursements; Method of Disbursement. 

 

City agrees to reimburse Grantee when, if and to the extent federal funds are received under provisions of 
the Act a sum not to exceed Two Hundred Four Thousand Five Hundred Thirty-Five Dollars 50/100 
($204,535.50) for Grantee's performance of the Scope of Work in accordance with the Budget attached hereto 
as EXHIBIT A.  Requests for reimbursements by Grantee shall be made by Grantee sending to the City, not 
more frequently than monthly, commencing on the 10th day of every month. Such schedule may be modified 
with the approval of the City. The City shall distribute ESG funds within 14 business days after approval from 
the City.  Grantee has the ability to adjust line item amounts in the Budget with the prior written approval of 
the City’s Director of Community Development, so long as the total Budget amount does not increase. 

 
 



3  

B. Payment 
 
Payment is subject to the receipt and approval of such invoices and monthly activity reports, as hereinafter 
more fully set forth below under Reporting, with the final payment being due and payable upon the receipt 
of an invoice and report for the last month of the term of this Agreement and the City's approval thereof, 
which invoice and report shall be due on or before October 15, 2021 following the expiration of the term of 
this Agreement. The City shall pay such invoices within thirty (30) days after receipt thereof, provided the 
City is satisfied that such expenses have been incurred within the scope of this Agreement and that the 
Grantee is in compliance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The thirty (30) day period will 
discontinue if the reimbursement request is determined to be incomplete and will restart the thirty day (30) 
timeline once the remaining required elements have been submitted. 

 
Failure to provide any of the required documentation and reporting will cause the City to withhold all or a 
portion of a request for reimbursement until such documentation and reporting has been received and 
approved by the City. 

 
C. Use of Funds 

 
The grantee agrees to use said funds pursuant to this Agreement to pay for necessary and reasonable costs 
allowable under federal law and regulations to operate said ESG program only. Said amounts shall include 
and will be limited to, emergency shelter operations, essential services and rapid re-housing assistance input 
into the Homeless Management Information Systems (“HMIS”) data contribution as set forth in 24 CFR §§ 
576.101 – § 576.107. Allowable program costs are detailed in the Budget, as set forth in EXHIBIT A. The 
Grantee's failure to perform, as required, may, in addition to other remedies set forth in this Agreement, result in 
readjustment of the amount of funds the City is otherwise obligated to pay to the Grantee pursuant to the terms 
hereof. 

 
D. Condition of Funding 

 
(1) The City advises the Grantee that a significant change in entitlement funding may result in 
a change in the current process utilized by the City to determine funding allocations. The Grantee 
acknowledges that the obligation of the City is contingent upon the availability of Federal, State or 
Local government funds, which are appropriated or allocated for the payment of such an obligation. 
If funding levels are significantly affected by Federal budgeting or if funds are not allocated and 
available for the continuance of the function performed by the Grantee, this Agreement may be 
terminated by the City at the end of the period for which funds are available. In the event of funding 
reduction, the City may reduce the Budget for this Agreement as a whole or may limit the rate by which 
Grantee receives the ESG funds for providing Grantee’s services hereunder. At the earliest 
opportunity, the City shall notify the Grantee of any services, which may be affected by a shortage 
of funds.  
No penalty shall accrue to the City in the event this provision is exercised and the City shall not be 
liable for any damages as a result of termination under this provision of this Agreement. Nothing 
herein shall be construed as obligating the City to expend funds in excess of appropriations 
authorized by law. 
 

 The Grantee shall allow representatives of the City or HUD and their agents and representatives to 
inspect facilities which are used in connection with the Agreement or which implement programs 
funded under this Agreement and to observe the provision of services. The City is under no duty to 
supervise the provision of Grantee’s services. Any inspection or examination by the City is for the 
sole purpose of protecting and preserving the City’s rights under this Agreement.  



4  

 No default of Grantee shall be waived by any inspection by the City. In no event shall any inspection 
by the City be a representation that there has been or will be compliance with this Agreement or that 
Grantee is in compliance with any federal, state and local laws, ordinances, regulations and 
directives applicable to the performance of this Agreement or the provision of Grantee’s services. 

 
(2) Where the City has reasonable grounds to question the fiscal accountability, financial 
soundness, or compliance with this Agreement by the Grantee, the City may suspend the operation 
of this Agreement for up to sixty (60) days upon three (3) days' notice to Grantee of the City’s 
intention to so act, pending an audit or other resolution of such questions. 

 
E. Matching 

 
The Grantee is required to make matching contributions to supplement the ESG program in an amount 
that equals or exceeds the amount of ESG funds provided by HUD through the City. Such contributions 
shall be entirely consistent with the Matching Requirements as outlined by 24 CFR 
§ 576.201. 

 
F. Program Income 

 
(1) Definition. Program income means, as provided by 2 CFR § 200.80, gross income 
received by the Grantee directly generated by a grant supported activity, or earned only as a result 
of the grant Agreement during the grant period. For purposes of ESG, program income will also 
include any amount of a security or utility deposit returned to the Grantee. 

 
(2) Use. The Grantee shall use all income received from said funds only for the same purposes 
for which said funds may be expended pursuant to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 
(3) Counts toward Matching. Costs paid by program income may count toward meeting the 

matching requirements, provided the costs are eligible ESG costs that supplement the program and 
are consistent with the requirements in 24 CFR 576.201. 

 
G. Separation of Accounts 

 
All funds received by the Grantee from the City pursuant to this Agreement shall be maintained, or of any 
principal or member of the Grantee, in an account (the “Account”) at a federally insured banking or savings 
and loan institution with record keeping of such Accounts maintained pursuant to applicable legal requirements. 
The Grantee shall keep all records of the Account in a manner that is consistent with generally accepted 
accounting principles. No monies shall be withdrawn from the Account except for expenditures relating to 
ESG Program costs that are eligible, allowable and allocable, as authorized hereunder.  
All disbursements from the Account shall be for obligations incurred in the performance of this Agreement 
and shall be supported by contracts, invoices, vouchers, and other data, as appropriate, evidencing the 
necessity of such expenditure. The City may withhold payment allocation requests if the Grantee fails to 
comply with the above requirements until such compliance is demonstrated to the satisfaction of the City. 

 
H. Expenditure of Funds 

 
Much like how HUD requires the City, pursuant to 24 CFR § 576.203, to expend all of the grant funds for 
eligible activity costs within 24 months after the date that HUD signs the grant Agreement with the City, 
it is a requirement for the Grantee to expend all of the grant funds for eligible activity costs within the term 
of this Agreement.  



5  

For the purposes of this paragraph, expenditure means either an actual cash disbursement for a direct 
charge for goods or services or an indirect cost, or the accrual of a direct charge for goods or services or 
an indirect cost. Failure to expend said funds within said timeframe can result in a reallocation of funds. 

 
I. Prohibited Use 

 
(1) Generally. The Grantee hereby certifies and agrees that it will not use funds provided through 
this Agreement to pay for meals for persons and families other than those identified as eligible program 
participants. Said funds shall not be used for entertainment purposes or for gifts. The Grantee certifies 
that it will not use said funds for illegal or dishonest conduct; rather, the use of ESG funds will remain 
in compliance with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, including applicable laws not outlined 
in this Agreement. 

 
(2) Lobbying. The Grantee certifies and agrees that it  will  comply  with federal law (31 
U.S.C. 1352) and regulations found at 24 CFR Part 87, which provide that no appropriated funds may 
be expended by the recipient of a federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative Agreement to pay any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, Member of 
Congress, or an officer or employee of a Member of Congress in connection with awarding of any 
federal contract, the making of any federal grant or loan, entering into any cooperative Agreement and 
the extension, renewal, amendment, or modification of any federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative 
Agreement. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 
Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection 
with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative Agreement, the undersigned shall complete and 
submit a "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," 

IV. GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
Coordinated Entry the City of Lubbock has adopted the Texas Balance of State Continuum of Care’s 
Coordinated Entry Written Standards EXHIBIT B, which can be located https://www.thn.org/wp-
content/uploads/2020/07/TX-BoS-CoC-CE-WS-Version2-Final.pdf The Grantee agrees to work with the 
City to ensure compliance with the Coordinated Entry Policies and Procedures, including the use of HMIS 
to collect and manage participant data and required prioritization for Rapid Re- Housing (RRH) assistance. 
Grantee agrees to serve as a Coordinated Entry access point. Grantee agrees to accept referrals for services 
RRH people who are served outside their own agency. 

 
A. Evaluation of Program Participants Eligibility and Needs 

 
The Grantee must conduct initial evaluations and periodic re-evaluations to determine the eligibility of 
each individual or family’s eligibility for ESG assistance in accordance with 24 CFR 
§ 576.401. 

 
B. Terminating Assistance 

 
If a program participant violates program requirements, the Grantee may terminate the assistance in 
accordance with a formal process established by the Grantee that recognizes the rights of individuals 
affected and in compliance with 24 CFR § 576.402. 

 
 
 
 

https://www.thn.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/TX-BoS-CoC-CE-WS-Version2-Final.pdf
https://www.thn.org/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/TX-BoS-CoC-CE-WS-Version2-Final.pdf


6  

C. Shelter and Housing Standards 
 
The Grantee certifies that shelters and housing supported by ESG funds and used by ESG 
beneficiaries will conform to 24 CFR § 576.403. 

 
D. Homeless Involvement 

 
The Grantee certifies that it will involve, to the maximum extent practicable, homeless individuals and 
families in constructing, renovating, maintaining, and operating facilities assisted under the ESG program, 
and in providing services for occupants of these facilities. See 24 CFR § 576.405(c) and 42 USC 11375(d). 

 
E. Independent Contractor 

 
Nothing contained in this Agreement is intended to, or shall be construed in any manner, as creating or 
establishing the relationship of employer/employee between the Parties. City assumes no liability for 
Grantee's actions and performance; nor does the City assume responsibility for taxes, bonds, payments, or 
other commitments, implied or explicit, by or for Grantee. Grantee shall not have authority to act as an 
agent on behalf of City unless specifically authorized to do so in writing. Grantee acknowledges that it is 
aware that because it is an independent contractor, City is making no deduction from any amount paid to 
Grantee and is not contributing to any fund on its behalf. Grantee disclaims the right to any fee or benefits 
except as expressly provided for in this Agreement. 

 
As respects all acts or omissions of Grantee relating to Grantee’s responsibility for taxes, bonds, payments, 
or other commitments, implied, or explicit, by or for Grantee, the Grantee agrees to indemnify, defend (at 
the City's option), and hold harmless the City, its officers, agents, employees, representatives, and volunteers 
from and against any and all claims, demands, reasonable defense costs, or liability of any kind or nature 
to the extent arising out of or in connection with the Grantee's performance or failure to perform under this 
Section. 

 
F. Subcontracts 

 
(1) Content Requirements. The Grantee will include all relevant provisions of this Agreement in all 
subcontracts entered into as part of the activities undertaken in furtherance of this Agreement and will 
take appropriate action pursuant to any subcontract upon a finding that the subcontractor is in violation 
of regulations issued by any federal agency. The Grantee will not subcontract with any entity where it 
has notice or knowledge that the latter has been found in violation of regulations under 24 CFR Part 
135 (Economic Opportunities for Low- and Very Low-Income Persons) and will not allow any 
subcontract unless the entity has first provided it with a preliminary statement of ability to comply with 
the requirements of these regulations. 

 
(2) Submission to the City. The Grantee must submit all subcontracts and other Agreements that relate 
to this Agreement to the City. 

 
G. Licensing 

 
The Grantee agrees to obtain and maintain, at its sole cost and expense, all required licenses, registrations, 
accreditation, permits and approvals as may be required by law for its operations and the performance of its 
services under this Agreement.  
 



7  

The Grantee shall ensure that its staff and subcontractors shall also obtain and maintain all required licenses, 
registrations, accreditation, permits and approvals as may be required by law for the performance of services 
hereunder. Such licensing requirements include obtaining a City business license, as applicable. Grantee shall 
have the sole obligation to pay for any fees, assessments and taxes, plus applicable penalties and interest, 
which may be imposed by law and which arise from or are necessary for the performance of the services 
required by this Agreement. 

 
H. Responsibilities Toward Employees 

 
The Grantee accepts full responsibility for payment of any and all unemployment compensation, insurance 
premiums, workers’ compensation premiums, income tax withholdings, social security withholdings, and 
any and all other taxes or payroll withholdings required for all employees engaged in the performance of 
the work and activities authorized by the Agreement. The Grantee accepts full responsibility for providing 
workers with proper safety equipment and taking any and all necessary precautions to guarantee the safety 
of workers or persons otherwise affected. 

 
I. Insurance and Bonding 

 
(1) Generally. The Grantee shall maintain liability and property insurance to cover actionable 
legal claims for liability or loss which are the result of injury to or death of any person, or damage 
to property (including property of Grantee) caused by the negligent acts or omissions, or negligent 
conduct of the Grantee, its employees, agents or subcontractors, to the extent permitted by law, in 
connection with the activities pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
The Grantee shall comply with the bonding and insurance requirements of 2 CFR § 200.427, and 2 
CFR § 200.447. 

 
The Grantee shall obtain prior to commencing any services or activities under this Agreement, at its 
sole cost, and maintain during the term of this Agreement, insurance coverage as set forth below. 

 
(2) Limits. The Grantee shall maintain, at all times, the following minimum levels of Insurance, 
and shall, without in any way altering its liability, obtain, pay for, and maintain insurance for the 
coverages and amounts of coverage not less than those set forth below: 

 
(a) Workers’ Compensation Insurance, as required by State statutes. 

 
(b) Comprehensive General Liability Insurance or Commercial General Liability Insurance, 
including coverage for Premises and Operations, Contractual Liability, Personal Injury 
Liability, Products/Completed Operations Liability, Broad-Form Property Damage, 
Independent Contractor's Liability and Fire Damage Legal Liability, in an amount of not less 
than $1,000,000 combined single limit of liability for bodily injuries, death, and property damage 
resulting from any one occurrence. 

 
(c) Comprehensive Automobile Liability coverage, including - as applicable - owned, non-
owned and hired autos, in an amount of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) per 
occurrence, combined single limit, written on an occurrence form. 

 
 
 
 
 



8  

The Grantee’s self-insured retention or deductible per line of coverage shall not exceed $25,000 without 
the permission of the City. 

 
Grantee hereby agrees to waive subrogation, which any insurer of the Grantee may acquire from the Grantee 
by virtue of the payment of any loss. If requested by City, Grantee agrees to obtain and deliver to City an 
endorsement from Grantee’s general liability and automobile insurance insurer to effect this waiver of 
subrogation. 

(3) Required Certificates and Endorsements. Prior to commencement of any work under this 
Agreement, the Grantee shall deliver to City (i) insurance certificates confirming the existence 
of the insurance required by this Agreement, and including the applicable clauses referenced 
above and (ii) endorsements to the above-required policies, which add to these policies the 
applicable clauses referenced above. Such endorsements shall be signed by an authorized 
representative of the insurance company and shall include the signatory’s company affiliation and 
title. Grantee’s responsibility to see that City receives documentation, acceptable to City, which 
sustains that the individual signing such endorsements, is indeed authorized to do so by the 
insurance company. In addition, City reserves the right at any time to demand, and to receive 
within a reasonable time, certified copies of any insurance policies required under this 
Agreement, including endorsements effecting the coverage required by these specifications. 

 
(4) Company Rating. All insurance coverage shall be written with a company having an AM. Best 

Rating “A” or better and financial size VIII or larger. 
 

(5) Failure to Comply. In the event of any failure by the Grantee to comply with these provisions, the 
City may, after notice to the Grantee, suspend the program for cause until there is full compliance. 

 
J. Zoning. 

 
The Grantee agrees that any facility/property used in furtherance of said program shall be specifically zoned and 
permitted for such use(s) and activity (ies). Should the Grantee fail to have the required land entitlement and/or 
permits, thus violating any local, state, or federal rules and regulations relating thereto, the Grantee shall 
immediately make good-faith efforts to gain compliance with local, state, or federal rules and regulations 
following written notification of said violation(s) from the City or other authorized citing agency. The Grantee 
shall notify the City immediately of any pending violations. Failure to notify the City of pending violations, 
or to remedy such known violation(s), shall result in termination of grant funding hereunder. The Grantee must 
make all corrections required to bring the facility/property into compliance with the law within sixty (60) days 
of notification of the violation(s); failure to gain compliance within such time shall result in termination of grant 
funding hereunder. 

 
K. Displacement and Relocation. 

 
The Grantee must assure that it has taken all reasonable steps to minimize displacement of persons. 
Relocation must be consistent with requirements as set forth in 24 CFR § 576.408. 

 
L. Provisions Required by Law Deemed Inserted. 

 
Each and every provision of law and clause required by law to be inserted in this contract shall be deemed 
to be inserted herein and the Agreement shall be read and enforced as though it were included herein, and 
if through mistake or otherwise any such provision is not inserted or correctly inserted, then upon the 
application of either Party, the contract shall forthwith be physically amended to make such insertion or 
correction. 



9  

V. ASSURANCES AND CERTIFICATIONS 
 
A. Non-Profit Status 

 
The Grantee certifies that: 

 
(1) The Grantee is a duly organized and existing non-profit corporation in good standing and 
authorized to do business under the laws of the City of Lubbock and in possession of required non-
profit status under the United States Internal Revenue Code [for example, 26 USC § 501(c)(3)]. The 
Grantee has full right, power, and lawful authority to accept the funding hereunder and to undertake 
all obligations as provided herein and the execution, performance, and delivery of this Agreement by 
the Grantee has been fully authorized by all requisite actions on the part of the Grantee. 

 
(2) If the Grantee’s non-profit status changes at any time during this Agreement, it will advise 
the City within 15 days of such change. 

 
(3) If the Grantee is a private non-profit, it hereby agrees that the members of its Board of 
Directors will receive no compensation, directly or indirectly, from any funds generated from or 
because of the ESG program, for their services. 

 
(4) As a non-profit, the Grantee acknowledges that administration of its operation and 
services are subject to the requirements as established in 2 CFR § 200. 

 
B. Adherence to Federal, State, and Local Laws and Regulations 

 

(1) General. The Grantee agrees to comply with all requirements of the ESG program as stated 
in 24 CFR 576 and applicable crosscutting Federal, State, and Local requirements. 

 
(2) Economic Opportunities for Low- and Very Low-income Persons. The Grantee shall ensure 
that employment and other economic opportunities generated by the Program shall, to the greatest 
extent feasible, be directed to low- and very low-income persons, particularly those who are 
recipients of government assistance for housing. Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development 
Act of 1968, 12 U.S.C. 1701u, and regulations at 24 CFR part 135 apply, except that homeless 
individuals have priority over other Section 3 residents in accordance with § 576.405(c). 

 
(3) Civil Rights. The Grantee agrees to comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 
amended, Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended, Section 109 of the Title I of the 
Housing and Community Development Act of 1974, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 
the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, and 41 CFR 
Chapter 60. 

 
(4) Nondiscrimination and Equal Employment Opportunity. During the performance under this 
Agreement, the Grantee shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
based on race, color, creed, religion, sex, age, handicap, disability, ancestry, national origin, marital 
status, familial status, sexual orientation, or any other basis prohibited by applicable law. The 
Grantee shall take affirmative action to ensure that all applicants and employees are treated without 
regard to race, color, creed, religion, sex, age, handicap, disability, ancestry, national origin, marital 
status, familial status, and sexual orientation. The Grantee shall comply with all provisions of 
Executive Order 11246, Equal Employment Opportunity, as amended by Executive Orders 11375 
and 12086. 



10  

 
(5) Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity in Participation. The requirements     in 
24 CFR part 5, subpart A are applicable, including the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity 
requirements at 24 CFR § 5.105(a). The Grantee shall not discriminate against any participant on 
the ground of race, color, creed, religion, sex, age, handicap, disability, ancestry, national origin, 
marital status, familiar status, sexual orientation, or any other basis prohibited by applicable law. The 
Grantee shall, through affirmative outreach, make known that use of the facilities, assistance, and 
services are available to all on a nondiscriminatory basis. The Grantee must take appropriate steps 
to ensure effective communication with persons with disabilities. 

 
(6) Americans with Disabilities Act. The Grantee agrees to comply with any federal 
regulations issued pursuant to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibits 
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and 
Local government services, and public accommodations. 

 
(7) Fair Housing. Under section 808(e)(5) of the Fair Housing Act, HUD has a statutory duty to 
affirmatively further fair housing. HUD requires the same of its funded sub- recipients. The Grantee 
has a duty to affirmatively further fair housing opportunities for classes protected under the Fair 
Housing Act. 

 
C. Falsification of Information 

 

The Grantee represents and warrants that it has made no false statements to the City in the process 
of obtaining this award of the ESG Funds. 

 
D. Drug Free Workplace 

 
The Grantee represents and warrants that it has established the following drug-free workplace policy: 

 
(1) The unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled 
substance is prohibited in the workplace for any employee involved in a federally funded program. 

 
(2) As an employee working in conjunction with a federally funded program, the employees of 
the Grantee will be required to: 

 
a. Abide by the terms above in statement (1), and 

 
b. Notify the appropriate Grantee authorities and City officials of any criminal drug 
statute conviction for a violation occurring in the workplace. 
Such notification shall be made no later than five (5) days after conviction. 

 
(3) The City and the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development will be 
notified within ten days after receiving notice of any such violation. 

 
(4) Within thirty (30) days of receiving such notice, appropriate personnel action will be taken 
against such employee, up to and including termination. 

 
(5) Each such employee shall be required to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance 
or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State or Local health, law 
enforcement, or other appropriate agency. 



11  

 
E. Religious Organization 

 
The Grantee may not engage in inherently religious activities, such as worship, religious instruction, or 
proselytization as part of said program or services. If the Grantee conducts such activities, the activities must 
be offered separately, in time or location, from said programs or services, and participation must be 
voluntary for the program participants. The Grantee shall not discriminate against a program participant or 
prospective program participant based on religion or religious belief.  
If the Grantee is a religious organization, it retains its independence from Federal, State, and Local 
governments, and may continue to carry out its mission, including the definition, practice, and expression 
of its religious beliefs, provided that the religious organization does not use direct ESG funds to support any 
inherently religious activities. The Grantee agrees that rehabilitation of structures by the religious 
organization in connection with said program must be in sound accord with the provisions under 24 CFR § 
576.406. 

 
F. Additional Terms between the City and HUD 

 
The Grantee agrees further that it shall be bound by the standard terms and conditions used in the Grant 
Agreement between HUD and the City and such other rules, regulations, or requirements as HUD may 
reasonably impose in addition to the aforementioned assurances at or subsequent to the execution of this 
Agreement by the Parties hereto. 

 
G. OSHA 

 
Where employees are engaged in activities not covered under the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 
1970, they shall not be required or permitted to work, be trained, or receive services in buildings or 
surroundings or under working conditions, which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to the 
participants’ health or safety. 

 
H. Hatch Act 

 
The Grantee agrees that no funds provided, nor personnel employed under this Agreement, shall be in 
any way or to any extent engaged in the conduct of political activities in violation of the Hatch Act, 5 
U.S.C. Section 1501 et seq. 

 
I. Davis-Bacon Act 

The provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a to 276a-5) do not apply to the ESG 
program. 

VI. ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS 
 
Generally 

 
The following requirements and standards must be complied with as stated in 2 CFR Part 200, et al. 
GRANTEE shall procure all materials, property, or services in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR 
§ 200.318-326. 

 
 
 



12  

A. Procurement 
 

(1) Compliance. The Grantee shall comply with current HUD and City policies concerning the 
procurement of equipment, goods, and services, and shall maintain inventory records of all non-
expendable personal property as defined by such policy as may be procured with funds provided 
herein. The Grantee shall report to the City all program assets (unexpended program income, 
property, equipment, etc.), and upon the CITY’S request, such assets shall revert to the City upon 
termination of this Agreement. 

 
(2) Pursuant to 2 CFR § 200.331 (a) (4), the Indirect Cost Rate for the Grantee’s award shall be 
an approved federally recognized cost rate negotiated between the Grantee and the Federal 
government, or, if no cost rate exists, the de minimis indirect cost rate, as defined in 2 CFR § 
200.414(b) Indirect (F & A) costs, shall be used. For this Agreement, the de minimis indirect cost of 
10% will apply. 

 
(3) Use and Reversion of Assets. The use and disposition of equipment under this Agreement 
shall comply with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200. 

 
B. Reporting 

 

Reporting requirements must conform to the policies and procedures as established by the City and in 
compliance with 24 CFR § 576.500. The Grantee shall submit to the City, on or before the 10th day of 
each month: 

(1) Payment Request. An original request for reimbursement and true copies of invoices, receipts, 
Agreements, or other documentation supporting and evidencing how the ESG Funds have been 
expended during the applicable month. 

 
(2) Monthly Activities and written cumulative (year-to-date) reports of activities, program 
accomplishments, new program information, and up-to-date program statistics on expenditures, 
caseload and activities. Failure to provide any of the required documentation and reporting will cause 
the City to withhold all or a portion of a request for reimbursement until such documentation and 
reporting has been received and approved by the City. 

 
(3) Matching. Monthly certification of match contribution and expense,

 plus documentation of match source. 
 

(4) Any other such reports as the City (or HUD) shall reasonably require and/or request, 
including but not limited to the following information: monthly records of all ethnic and racial 
statistics of persons and families benefited by the Grantee in the performance of its obligations under 
this Agreement. 

 
C. Record Keeping 

 
Sufficient records must be established and maintained to enable the City and HUD to determine whether 
the ESG requirements are being met. Record keeping requirements must conform to the policies and 
procedures as established by the City.  
 
 



13  

All accounting records, reports, all evidence pertaining to costs, expenses, and ESG Funds of the Grantee, 
and all documents related to this Agreement shall be maintained and kept available at the Grantee’s office 
or place of business for the duration of the Agreement and thereafter for five (5) years post- completion of 
an audit in conformity with the ESG requirements, except as hereinafter provided relating to retention of 
any records or documentation existing, created, or maintained in compliance with Lead-based Paint 
regulations, which likely require longer retention as outlined below.  
Records which relate to (a) complaints, claims, administrative proceedings or litigation arising out of the 
performance of this Agreement,  or  (b)  costs  and  expenses  of  this  Agreement  to  which  the  City  or  
any   other governmental agency takes exception, shall be retained beyond the five (5) years until complete 
resolution or disposition of such appeals, litigation claims, or exceptions. All said records must be retained 
for the greater of the aforementioned duration or the periods specified in 24 CFR § 576.500(y). All records 
relating to, or created or maintained in compliance with, the Lead-Based Paint regulations shall be retained 
and maintained by the Grantee indefinitely, including without limitation, all inspection report(s), disclosure 
statement(s), and clearance report(s). Copies made by microfilming, photocopying, or similar methods 
may be substituted for the original records. The City, HUD and auditors shall have the right to access all 
Grantee records for as long as the records are retained by the Grantee. In the event the Grantee does not 
make the above- referenced documents available within the City of Lubbock, the Grantee agrees to pay all 
necessary and reasonable expenses incurred by the City in conducting any audit at the location where said 
records and books of account are maintained. The Grantee agrees to meet the requirements set forth in 24 
CFR § 576.500. 

 
Confidentiality of Records. Grantee shall adhere to the requirements of 24 CFR 576.500(x) and any 
written procedures developed by the City and provided to Grantee from time to time during the Term of 
the Agreement. 

 
D. Homeless Management Information Systems (HMIS) City of Lubbock has adopted the Texas 
Balance of State Continuum of Care Written Standards – Service Delivery. EXHIBIT C, which can be 
located https://www.thn.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/Approved_TX-BoS-CoC-Written- Standards-
2018-19.pdf 

 
(1) The Grantee must ensure that data is entered on all persons served and all activities assisted under 
ESG are entered into the applicable community-wide HMIS in the area in which those persons and 
activities are located, or with the express knowledge and written consent of the City, a comparable 
database, in accordance with HUD’s standards on participation, data collection, and reporting under a 
local HMIS, using the HMIS – Data Standards Manual. EXHIBIT D, which can be located 
https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/HMIS-Data-Standards-Manual.pdf 

 
(2) HMIS Agency Agreement. The Grantee shall execute an Agreement with the HMIS Lead Agency, 
appointed by the Texas Balance of State CoC, to participate in the regionally established HMIS system. 
The Grantee shall distribute a copy of the Grantee's Agreement with the HMIS Lead Agency to the City 
within five (5) business days of this Agreement’s execution. In the case of Domestic Violence service 
providers or other agencies prohibited from entering data into HMIS, the Grantee shall submit to the 
City documentation from the HMIS Lead Agency certifying that the Grantee is using a comparable 
database within five (5) business days of this Agreement’s execution. 

 
(3) HMIS Interagency Data Sharing Agreement. The Grantee shall enter into an Interagency Data 
Sharing Agreement with the HMIS Lead Agency where the Grantee agrees to share HMIS data with 
other ESG agencies regarding clients that are served in ESG funded programs, unless prohibited by law. 
A copy of such Agreement shall be delivered to the City. Include HMIS Client Release of Information 
consent form. EXHIBIT E, which can be located https://www.thn.org/wp- 
content/uploads/2018/01/HMIS-Client-ROI.pdf 

https://www.thn.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/Approved_TX-BoS-CoC-Written-Standards-2018-19.pdf
https://www.thn.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/Approved_TX-BoS-CoC-Written-Standards-2018-19.pdf
https://www.thn.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/Approved_TX-BoS-CoC-Written-Standards-2018-19.pdf
https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/HMIS-Data-Standards-Manual.pdf
https://www.thn.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/HMIS-Client-ROI.pdf


14  

 
(4) HMIS Data Input. Grantee must enter data directly into the Texas Balance of State CoC HMIS 
System, and adhere to all implementation guidelines developed under the Continuum of Care. HMIS 
participation includes, but is not limited to, the input of all programmatic and client data for the 
generation of all mandated monthly, quarterly and closeout reports. Grantee must input client data in real 
time, or no more than twenty-four (24) hours after date of program entry. Services rendered to clients 
must be entered into HIMS within twenty-four (24) hours from date of services. All clients who exit the 
program must have updated status in HIMS within twenty- four (24) hours of actual exit date. Failure to 
meet the above Data Input requirements will constitute a violation of the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement and subject to the remedies set forth in Section XV below. 

 
(5) HMIS User Requirements. Grantee must assign no less than two (2) HMIS users, including but not 
limited to agency Director for the agency. If for any reason an HMIS user provides notice of resignation, 
or has been terminated from his/her position, the agency must notify the City no less than 72 hours after 
notice is given, or after termination. The exiting employee(s) must deactivate his/her user ID and another 
employee must be established after training has been completed. 

 
E. Audit Report Requirements 

 
The Grantee agrees that if the Grantee expends One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000) or more in federal 
funds, the Grantee shall have an annual audit conducted by a certified public accountant in accordance with 
the standards as set forth and published by the United States Office of Management and Budget (2 CFR § 
200.501a). The Grantee shall provide the City with a copy of said audit by April 1 of the year following the 
program year in which this Agreement is executed. Further, the Grantee shall comply and/or cause compliance 
with audit report(s) required by applicable provisions of the Lead- Based Paint Regulations as further detailed 
below. 
VII. EVALUATION AND MONITORING 

 
A. Generally 

 
The City will monitor the performance of the Grantee against goals and performance standards as required 
herein. The Grantee shall provide the City all necessary reporting information as required by the City in the 
administration and review of the Program. Substandard performance as determined by the City will 
constitute noncompliance with this Agreement. If action to correct such substandard performance is not 
taken by the Grantee within a reasonable period after being notified by the City, contract suspension or 
termination procedures will be initiated. 

 
B. Access to Records 

 
The Grantee gives the City and HUD, including their authorized representative, access to and the right to 
examine all records, books, papers, items, emails, and documents, both physical and electronic, relating to 
the program. 

 
C. Audit 

 
The City shall have the right to audit and monitor any program income as a result of an ESG activity. Upon 
request by the City and for audit purposes, the Grantee further agrees to provide all files, records, and 
documents pertaining to related activities and clientele demographic data. 

 



15  

VIII. LIABILITY 
 
A. Generally 

 
Each Party to this Agreement acknowledges that it will be liable for its own negligent acts or negligent 
omissions by or through itself, its employees, agents, and subcontractors. Each Party further agrees to defend 
itself and themselves, and to pay any judgments and costs arising out of such negligent acts or omissions, 
and nothing in this Agreement shall impute or transfer any such liability from one to the other. In other 
words, the Grantee agrees to be fully responsible for its negligent acts or omissions, or any intentional 
tortuous acts, which result in claims, or suits against the City, and agrees to be liable for any damages 
proximately caused by said acts or omissions. Nothing herein shall be construed as consent by a State or 
City agency or subdivision to be sued by third parties in any matter arising out of any contract, and nothing 
herein is intended to serve as a waiver of sovereign immunity where sovereign immunity applies. 

 
B. City not Liable for Funds 

 
The Grantee further acknowledges that the source of the ESG Funds is a federal pass- through grant to the 
Grantee. The City shall have no obligation to advance or pay the Grantee with any funds other than the ESG 
Funds the City receives from HUD. 
C. Hold Harmless 

 
The Grantee shall defend, indemnify and save harmless the City, its officers, agents, employees, 
representatives, volunteers, and student externs from and against any and all claims, demands, defense costs, 
liability or damages of any kind or nature resulting from or arising out of the acts, errors or omissions of the 
Grantee, its officers, directors, employees, agents, subcontractors, and suppliers in the performance of 
Grantee's services and activities under this Agreement. 

 
IX. ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS 

 
A. Generally 

 
ESG activities are subject to environmental review by the City under the environmental regulations in 24 CFR 
Part 58. The Grantee, or any contractor of the Grantee, may not acquire, rehabilitate, convert, lease, repair, 
dispose of, demolish, or construct property for a project or activity under this part, or commit or expend 
ESG or local funds for eligible activities under this part unless and until the City has performed an 
environmental review under 24 CFR part 58 and the Grantee has received City approval of the project. 

 
The Grantee agrees to comply with all applicable environmental requirements insofar as they apply to the 
performance of this Agreement, including but not limited to the Clean Air Act, the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act and the Flood Disaster Protection Act. If applicable, the Grantee also shall comply with the 
Historic Preservation requirements of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966. 

 
B. Lead-based paint remediation and disclosure 

 
The Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4821–4846), the Residential Lead- Based Paint 
Hazard Reduction Act of 1992 (42 U.S.C. 4851–4856), and implementing regulations in 24 CFR part 35, 
subparts A, B, H, J, K, M, and R apply to all shelters assisted under ESG and all housing occupied by 
program participants that were built before 1978. 

 



16  

C. Assignment of Responsibilities 
 

By this Agreement, the Grantee will accept assignment from the City of all responsibilities set 
forth in Subpart K of 24 CFR 35. 

 
D. Compliance with Subpart K 

 
The purpose of Subpart K is to establish procedures to eliminate as far as practicable lead-based paint 
(“LBP”) hazards in a residential property that receives Federal assistance under certain HUD programs for 
acquisition, leasing, support services, or operation. In connection with the grant funds under this Agreement, 
the City requires that the Grantee comply and show evidence of compliance with all applicable subparts of 
24 CFR 35, and especially, Subpart K (“LBP Regs”). The Grantee shall conduct the following activities for 
the dwelling unit, common areas servicing the dwelling unit, and the exterior surfaces of the building in 
which the dwelling unit is located: 

 
(1) A visual assessment of all painted surfaces in order to identify deteriorated paint; 

 
 

(2) Paint stabilization of each deteriorated paint surface, and clearance, in accordance with §§ 
35.1330(a) and (b), before occupancy of a vacant dwelling unit or, where a unit is occupied, 
immediately after receipt of Federal assistance; 

 
(3) Ongoing lead-based paint maintenance activities into regular building operations, in 
accordance with § 35.1355(a), if the dwelling unit has a continuing, active financial relationship with 
a Federal housing assistance program, except that mortgage insurance or loan guarantees are not 
considered to constitute an active programmatic relationship for the purposes of this part; and 

 
(4) Notice to occupants in accordance with §§ 35.125(b)(1) and (c), describing the results of 
the clearance examination. 

 
E. Notification of LBP Hazard 
The Grantee shall provide to all occupants of housing: 

 
(1) In accordance with Section 35.130 of the LBP Regs - the LBP hazard information pamphlet. 
The pamphlet shall be the EPA/HUD/Consumer Product Safety Commission lead hazard information 
pamphlet or an EPA-approved equivalent. 

 
(2) In accordance with 24 CFR 35, Subpart A, all available information and knowledge 
regarding the presence of LBP and LBP hazards prior to leasing a housing unit. 

 
(3) In accordance with 24 CFR 35, Subpart A, notification in writing of the results of the 
presumption of LBP and/or LBP hazards, results of any lead hazard evaluation, and any lead hazard 
reduction work. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BpubNum=1000547&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3Bcite=24CFRS35.1330&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BoriginationContext=document&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BtransitionType=DocumentItem&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BcontextData=(sc.Category)&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3Bco_pp_8b3b0000958a4
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BpubNum=1000547&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3Bcite=24CFRS35.1330&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BoriginationContext=document&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BtransitionType=DocumentItem&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BcontextData=(sc.Category)&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3Bco_pp_8b3b0000958a4
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BpubNum=1000547&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3Bcite=24CFRS35.1330&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BoriginationContext=document&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BtransitionType=DocumentItem&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BcontextData=(sc.Category)&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3Bco_pp_a83b000018c76
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BpubNum=1000547&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3Bcite=24CFRS35.1355&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BoriginationContext=document&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BtransitionType=DocumentItem&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BcontextData=(sc.Category)&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3Bco_pp_8b3b0000958a4
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BpubNum=1000547&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3Bcite=24CFRS35.125&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BoriginationContext=document&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BtransitionType=DocumentItem&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BcontextData=(sc.Category)&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3Bco_pp_3fed000053a85
https://1.next.westlaw.com/Link/Document/FullText?findType=L&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BpubNum=1000547&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3Bcite=24CFRS35.125&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BoriginationContext=document&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BtransitionType=DocumentItem&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3BcontextData=(sc.Category)&amp;amp%3Bamp%3Bamp%3Bco_pp_4b24000003ba5


17  

F. LBP Information Summary 
 

For purposes of information only and in no respect intended to be a representation or warranty of the 
provisions of the LBP Regulations, the City has caused to be prepared an information summary relating to 
the LBP Regulations and Application to dwelling units that may be occupied by recipients of services and/or 
funding from the Grantee under this Agreement. City staff will cooperate with and be available to the 
Grantee to assist in implementation of compliance with the LBP Regs as to residential dwelling units to be 
assisted by the Grantee. The Parties acknowledge and agree the City shall not be liable or responsible for 
the accuracy of such summary, and the Grantee is directed to the LBP Regulations and implementing 
guidance published and provided by HUD relating to compliance with such LBP Regulations. 

 
G. Exemptions 

 

Section 35.115(a) provides exemptions from Subparts B through R. For example, lead-based paint 
requirements do not apply to housing assistance if the assistance lasts less than one hundred 
(100) days. 
 
X. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

 
The Grantee shall comply with 2 CFR § 200.112 with respect to the use of ESG funds to procure services, 
equipment, supplies, or other property. With respect to all other decisions involving the use of ESG funds, 
the following restriction shall apply: No person who is an employee, agent, consultant, officer, or elected 
or appointed official of the Grantee and who exercises or has exercised any functions or responsibilities with 
respect to assisted activities, or who is in a position to participate in a decision making process or gain inside 
information with regard to such activities, may obtain a personal or financial interest or benefit from the 
activity, or have an interest in any contract, subcontract, or Agreement with respect thereto, or the proceeds 
there under, either for himself or herself, or for those with who he or she has family or business ties, during 
his or her tenure or for one (1) year thereafter. The Grantee agrees to abide by the ESG Program’s Conflict 
of Interest provisions as expressly detailed in 24 CFR§576.404 regarding Organizational Conflicts of Interest 
and Personal Conflicts of Interest. All contractors of the Grantee must comply with the same requirements 
that apply to the Grantee under this section. 

The Grantee may not, with respect to individuals or families occupying housing owned by the 
Grantee, or any parent or subsidiary of the Grantee, carry out the initial evaluation required under 
24 CFR  576.401 or administer homelessness prevention assistance under 24 CFR  576.103 

 
XI. ASSIGNABILITY 

 
None of the duties of, or work to be performed by, the Grantee under this Agreement shall be subcontracted 
or assigned to any agency, consultant or person without the prior written consent of the City. The Grantee 
must submit all subcontracts and other Agreements that relate to this Agreement to the City. No subcontract 
or assignment shall terminate or alter the legal obligations of the Grantee pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
XII. EXCLUSIVITY OF AGREEMENT 

 
This Agreement supersedes any and all other Agreements, either oral or in writing, between the Parties 
hereto with respect to the use of the City's ESG funds by the Grantee and contains all the covenants and 
Agreements between the Parties with respect to such ESG Funds in any manner whatsoever.  
 
 



18  

Each Party to this Agreement acknowledges that no representations, inducements, promises or Agreements, 
orally or otherwise, have been made by any Party, or anyone acting on behalf of any Party, which are not 
embodied herein, and that no other Agreement or amendment hereto shall be effective unless executed in 
writing and signed by both the City and the Grantee. 

 
XIII. AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATIONS 

 
The Grantee shall not obligate, encumber, spend, or otherwise utilize ESG funds for any activity or purpose 
not included or not in conformance with the budget as apportioned and as submitted to the City unless: 

 
(1) The Grantee has received explicit written approval from the City to undertake such actions, 
or 

 
(2) Budget changes may be made among approved program activities and among approved 
budget categories so long as the specific project activity has been approved, there is no change to the 
total grant amount, and the changes to the budget are documented. 

 
Any program modification request by the Grantee must be requested at least forty-five 
(45) days prior to the end of the term of this Agreement. No modification to this Agreement shall be binding 
by either Party unless in writing and signed by both Parties. 

 
In the event that the City approves any amendment to the funding allocation, the Grantee shall be notified 
in writing and such notification shall constitute an official amendment. The City may, at its discretion and 
upon provision of proper notice to the Grantee, amend this Agreement to conform to changes in Federal, State, 
and/or the City laws, regulations, guidelines, directives, and objectives. Such amendments shall be 
incorporated by written amendment as a part of this Agreement. 

 
XIV. VIOLATION OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
A. Events of Default. 

 
For purposes of this Section XIV, the word “Default” shall mean the failure of Grantee to perform any of 
Grantee’s duties or obligations or the breach by Grantee of any of the terms and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement. In addition, Grantee shall be deemed to be in Default upon Grantee’s 
(i) application for, consent to, or suffering of, the appointment of a receiver, trustee or liquidator for all or 
a substantial portion of its assets, (ii) making a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, (iii) being 
adjudged bankrupt, (iv) filing a voluntary petition or suffering an involuntary petition under any 
bankruptcy, arrangement, reorganization or insolvency law (unless in the case of an involuntary petition, 
the same is dismissed within thirty (30) days of such filing), or (v) suffering or permitting to continue 
unstayed and in effect for fifteen (15) consecutive days any attachment, levy, execution or seizure of all or 
a substantial portion of Grantee’s assets or of Grantee’s interests hereunder. 

 
City shall not be deemed to be in Default in the performance of any obligation required to be performed 
by City hereunder unless and until City has failed to perform such obligation for a period of thirty (30) 
days after receipt of written notice from Grantee specifying in reasonable detail the nature and extent of 
any such failure; provided, however, that if the nature of City’s obligation is such that more than thirty 
(30) days are required for its performance, then City shall not be deemed to be in Default if City shall 
commence to cure such performance within such thirty (30) day period and thereafter diligently prosecute 
the same to completion. 

 



19  

B. Institution of Legal Actions. 
 
In addition to any other rights and remedies, and subject to the restrictions otherwise set forth in this 
Agreement, either Party may institute an action at law or in equity to seek the specific performance of the 
terms of this Agreement, to cure, correct or remedy any Default, to recover damages for any Default or to 
obtain any other remedy consistent with the purpose of this Agreement. 

 
C. Rights and Remedies Are Cumulative. 

 
Except as otherwise expressly stated in this Agreement, the rights and remedies of the Parties are 
cumulative, and the exercise by either Party of one or more of such rights or remedies shall not preclude 
the exercise by it, at the same or different times, of any other rights or remedies for the same Default or 
any other Default by the other Party. 

 
D. Inaction Not a Waiver of Default. 

 
Any failures or delays by either Party in asserting any of its rights and remedies as to any Default shall not 
operate as a waiver of any Default or of any such rights or remedies, or deprive such Party of its right to 
institute and maintain any actions or proceedings which it may deem necessary to protect, assert or enforce 
any such rights or remedies. 

 
E. Attorneys’ Fees. 

 
City and Grantee agree that in the event of litigation to enforce this Agreement or terms, provisions and 
conditions contained herein, to terminate this Agreement, or to collect damages for a Default hereunder, the 
prevailing Party shall be entitled to all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred in 
connection with such litigation. 

 
F. Immediate Termination for Grantee’s Default. 

 
In the event of any Default by Grantee, City may immediately terminate this Agreement. Such termination 
shall be effective immediately upon receipt by Grantee of written notice from City. In such event, Grantee 
shall have no further rights hereunder; City shall have all other rights and remedies as provided by law. 

 
G. Termination Without Cause. 

 
City may terminate this Agreement at any time without the necessity of cause or Default by Grantee by 
giving fifteen (15) days' notice in writing to Grantee. In such event, Grantee shall have no further rights 
hereunder, except that Grantee shall be paid for all Services rendered prior to receipt of notice of such 
termination. 

 
H. Time for Performance. 

 
Time is of the essence in the performance of this Agreement. Grantee shall perform and complete 

all of Grantee's services in a timely and expeditious manner. Grantee shall not be responsible for delays 
caused by circumstances beyond its reasonable control, provided that Grantee has delivered to the City 
written notice of the cause of any such delay within ten (10) days of the occurrence of such cause. 

 
 



20  

XV. CLOSE-OUT 
 
The Grantee agrees to comply with the closeout procedures detailed in 2 CFR 200.343, including the 
following: 

 
(1) Grantee must submit, no later than ninety (90) calendar days after the expiration of the term 
all financial, performance, and other reports as required by the terms and conditions of the Federal 
award; 
(2) Unless the City authorizes an extension, Grantee must liquidate all obligations incurred 
under the Federal award not later than ninety (90) calendar days after the end date of the period of 
performance as specified in the terms and conditions of the Federal award; 

 
(3) Grantee must promptly refund any balances of unobligated cash that the City paid in 
advance or paid and that is not authorized to be retained by Grantee for use in other projects (See  2  
CFR 200.345); 

 
(4) Grantee must account for any real and personal property acquired with Federal funds or 
received from the Federal government in accordance with 2 CFR 200.310-200.316 and 200.329; and, 

 
(5) The City should complete all closeout actions for the Federal award no later than one year 
after receipt and acceptance of all required final reports. 

 
XVI. VALIDITY AND SEVERABILITY 

 
The invalidity in whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of 
any other provision of this Agreement. Whenever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall be 
interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this 
Agreement is held to be prohibited by or invalid under applicable law, such provision shall be ineffective 
only to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the remainder of such provisions 
of this Agreement. 

 
XVII. WAIVER 

 
No delay or omission by the city hereto to exercise any right or power accruing upon any non- compliance 
or default by the Grantee with respect to any of the terms of this Agreement shall impair any such right or 
power or be construed to be a waiver thereof. A waiver by either of the Parties hereto of any of the 
covenants, conditions, or Agreements to be performed by the other shall not be construed to be a waiver of 
any succeeding breach thereof or of any other covenant, condition, or Agreement herein contained. 

 
XVIII. AGREEMENT DOCUMENT, EXHIBITS, AND ATTACHMENTS 

 
All of the attachments and exhibits attached to this Agreement are deemed incorporated by reference. This 
document may be executed in three (3) counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original. Each 
undersigned represents and warrants that its signature herein below has the power, authority and right to bind 
their respective Parties to each of the terms of this Agreement, and shall indemnify the City fully, including 
reasonable costs and attorney’s fees, for any injuries or damages to the City in the event that such authority or 
power is not, in fact, held by the signatory or is withdrawn. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HAVE EXECUTED THIS AGREEMENT AS OF 
THE RESPECTIVE DATES SET FORTHBELOW. 



21  

 
 
 
 
 

(Remainder of page intentionally left bank; signatures on next page) 



22  

 
 

SIGNATURES 
 
 

FOR: THE CITY OF LUBBOCK FOR: SALVATION ARMY OF LUBBOCK, 
A GEORGIA CORPORATION 

 
 
 
 
 

DANIEL M. POPE, MAYOR Lt. Colonel Ronnie Raymer, 
 Divisional Commander, DHQ 

 
 
 
 
 

Peter Griffith, Board President 
 
 

FED. I.D. # 58-0660607 
ATTEST: 

 
 
 
 
 

Rebecca Garza, City Secretary 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
 
 
 
 

Karen Murfee, Community Development Director 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
 

Kelli Leisure, Assistant City Attorney 



EXHIBIT A 

FY 2020 – 2021  

EMERGENCY SOLUTIONS GRANT (ESG) 
 

GRANTEE -    Salvation Army of Lubbock, a Georgia Corporation 

TERM -    June 1, 2021 – September 30, 2021 
PROGRAM -   Shelter Operations, Essential Services and Rapid Re-Housing 
20-21 ALLOCATION -  $204,535.50 
MATCH –    (100% of allocation) $204,535.50 
 
PROGRAM DELIVERY-  
• Assist homeless individuals and families at or below 30% AMI 
• Shelter services provided at 1614 Ave. J, Lubbock, TX 7940l 
• Provide emergency shelter & essential services for men, women, children, and transitional living. Salvation Army also provides  
Rapid Re-Housing through TX BoS Coordinated Entry. 

 
LEVEL OF ACCOMPLISHMENT - In addition to the normal administrative services required as part of this Agreement, the Grantee 
agrees to provide the following levels of program services in its performance of the Program. 
 
Activity   Timeline    Accomplishments 
ESG   June 1, 2021 – September 30, 2021  1,200 Unduplicated Individuals 

 
Monthly Reports and Reimbursement Request are due by the 10th of each month.  Year End and Outcome Report due no later than 
October 10, 2021. 

 
BUDGET -    
Line Item       Funding Year    Amount 
Emergency Shelter Operations/Essential Services  2020 - 2021    $83,400.00 
Carry-over Rapid Re-Housing    2019 - 2020    $37,735.50 
Rapid Re-Housing     2020 – 2021    $83,400.00 

TOTAL:               $204,535.50 
 
 
 
CONTACT INFORMATION 
Communication and details concerning this Agreement shall be directed to the following: 
 

For the City:   For the Grantee: 
Community Development  Salvation Army of Lubbock   
1708 Crickets Ave.  Erica Hitt, Social Services Director  
P.O. Box 2000   1111 16th St 
Lubbock, TX  79457  Lubbock, TX  79401 
(806) 775-2296   (806) 765-9434    



   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 22.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Police: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor, on behalf of the City of Lubbock and
its Police Department, to execute an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement, and all related documents, with
the Lubbock Regional MHMR Center DBA StarCare Specialty Health System, for the creation of the
Lubbock Community Crisis Intervention Team (LCCIT).

Item Summary
The Interlocal Cooperation Agreement between the City of Lubbock Police Department (LPD) and
StarCare Specialty Health System, will be used to establish a community-based initiative of experienced
professionals to engage individuals experiencing crises related to behavioral health. The LPD will
provide law enforcement services, and StarCare will provide qualified mental health professional
services. This purpose of this partnership is to:  

Provide the Lubbock Community more appropriate behavioral health population-based needs
assessments, by leveraging community resources, partnerships and collaborations;

1.

Allow LPD and StarCare to work together to integrate emergency behavioral health screening and
evaluation in the field;

2.

Allow for data analysis for impact/efficacy of the pilot program in the City of Lubbock, utilizing
reports; and

3.

Help disengage emergency responders from behavioral health calls so that such limited resources
can be made available to respond to high priority calls.

4.

The agreement will be in effect from June 1, 2021, through August 31, 2022.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Floyd Mitchell, Chief of Police

Attachments
MOU-LPDStar Care (c)- RESOLUTION 
MOU-LPDStar Care (c)- CONTRACT 

















   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 23.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Secretary: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute Professional
Services Agreement 15708, with Bickerstaff Heath Delgado Acosta LLP, for Redistricting Services, for
and on behalf of the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, and Lubbock Independent School District. 

Item Summary
This is a professional services agreement for redistricting services, for and on behalf of the City of
Lubbock, Lubbock County, and the Lubbock Independent School District (LISD). The various voting
districts of each of these parties often share boundaries of the voting districts of the other. For those
reasons, the three parties found it advantageous and cost effective to cooperate in conducting the
redistricting activities, including the selection of any required qualified expert consultant.. An Interlocal
Agreement, by and between the City of Lubbock, Lubbock County, and LISD, was approved by the City
Council on March 23, 2021, Resolution No. 2021-R0111.

The City, County, and LISD are required to comply with federal law, in particular the Voting Rights Act
of 1965 (52 U.S.C. Sec. 10301 et seq.), in determining the boundaries of the geographical areas of voters
that are represented by a seat or position in each party's respective legislative bodies ("Voting Districts"),
and the boundaries of each voting precinct within such Voting Districts.

Every 10 years, upon the completion of the United States Census process, redistricting activities are
required. Redistricting activities often require each party to hire an expert consultant to determine the
number and make-up of the voters in each Voting District, to acquire any needed public input, and to
analyze resulting data acquired to best determine the boundaries of the Voting Districts, in order to
comply with federal law.
 

Fiscal Impact
The agreement is for $114,810 (not to exceed) and is paid by the City, County, and LISD.  ($36,930
from the City of Lubbock; $40,950 from Lubbock County; and $36,930 from LISD)

Staff/Board Recommending
Rebecca Garza, City Secretary

Attachments
Resolution-Redistricting Services 
Redistricting Services Agreement 











































































































   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 24.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution authorizing the City Manager, or his or her
designees, to waive charges for the production of public information, when the cost of producing such
information for any single request totals less than Thirty Dollars.

Item Summary
This item adopts the rules promulgated by the Texas Attorney General regarding charges assessed to
requestors of public information under the Texas Public Information Act, and clarifies that in all cases
where the total of the charge for receiving information is less than $30.00, the charges are waived.  The
City uses the charges approved by the Attorney General today, although we do not have an official
policy regarding when charges can be waived.  Adoption of this resolution provides clarity to the public
and City departments regarding these charges.

Fiscal Impact
Any fiscal impact will be on the revenue side and completely de minimis.

Staff/Board Recommending
W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - Freedom of Information Act 







   
Regular City Council Meeting 6. 25.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - City Manager: Consider a resolution continuing and affirming the Mayor's 12th
Declaration of Disaster regarding the COVID-19 (Coronavirus) pandemic, which continues this disaster
declaration without any local restrictions on businesses or individuals in the City.

Item Summary
Continuation of this disaster declaration maintains disaster readiness but does not place any local
restrictions on businesses or individuals in the City.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
W. Jarrett Atkinson, City Manager

Attachments
Resolution - Continuing Mayor's 12th Declaration 
Mayor's 12th Declaration of Disaster 















   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 1.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 1139-B, a request of Eric Valdez for
Keystone Properties, for a zone change from Local Retail District (C-2) to Commercial District (C-4)
with a Specific Use for a Nightclub at 5015 University Avenue, Suite 11A, located east of University
Avenue and south of 50th Street, Agee-Pharr Addition, the balance of Lot 1, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on June 3, 2021, and recommended denial of the request by a unanimous
vote. A super-majority vote of 6 out of the 7 Council members is required for the request to be approved
due to the recommendation of denial and there being 38% of the land area in opposition to the request. 

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Bryan Isham, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinanace 1139-B 
Staff Report 1139-B 
Documentation 1139-B 
Documentation 1139-B 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 
City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 1139-B 
City Council Meeting June 22, 2021 

Applicant Eric Valdez 

Property Owner  Keystone Properties 

Council District  2 

Recommendations 
• Staff recommends Approval of this request.

Prior Board or Council Action 
• February 24, 1955: The property was annexed through Ordinance No. 1651 and zoned Single-Family

District (R-1).
• June 28, 1963, Zone Case 1112: Subject Property rezoned to Multifamily District R-3 from R-1.
• September 26, 1963, Zone Case 1139: Zone change to Restricted Local Retail District (C-2A) from R-3.
• September 13, 1979, Zone Case 1139-A: Subject property zoned to Local Retail District (C-2) from C-2A.
• June 3, 2021, Zone Case 1139-B: Planning and Zoning Commission recommended denial of a zone change

from Local Retail District (C-2) to Commercial District (C-4) Specific Use for a Night Club by a unanimous vote.

Notification Summary 
• Notifications Sent: 16
• Received In Favor: 1
• Received In Opposition: 9

Site Conditions and History 
The current development on the property, University Park Shopping Center, was constructed in 1980. The prior 
occupant of the subject tenant space was a bar and grill which had a small dancefloor as an incidental use. 

Adjacent Property Development 
The properties to the north are occupied by professional and medical offices zoned C-2A and General Retail 
District (C-3). To the east is an office complex zoned Apartment-Medical District (AM) Specific Use. Directly south 
is a church developed on property zoned C-2 Specific Use. A residential neighborhood zoned R-1 and Two-Family 
District (R-2) abuts the subject property to the southeast. Across University Avenue, to the west, is Plains Capital 
Bank on property zoned R-1 Specific Use. 

Zoning Request and Analysis 
Item Summary 
The subject property is addressed as 5015 University Avenue, located east of University Avenue and south of 50th 
Street. The applicant requests a zone change from Local Retail District (C-2) to Commercial District (C-4) with a 
Specific Use for a Nightclub, on a property described as Agee-Pharr Addition, the balance of Lot 1. The intent of 
the request is to expand the existing dancefloor in Suite 11A and sell alcohol. 

Local Retail District (C-2) 

Commercial District (C-4) with a Specific Use for a Nightclub 

Current zoning: 

Requested zoning:  



Page 2 of 2 

Intent Statements
The intent of the current C-2 zoning is, “… to provide limited local retail and service commercial uses which 
serve one of several neighborhoods.” 

The intent of the requested C-4 zoning is “… to provide for heavy retail and wholesale commercial uses which 
serve a city-wide or regional area.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 
The proposed zone change location is along University Avenue, which is designated as a Principal Arterial by the 
Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Arterials function to serve high volume needs for the city and region. The 
current infrastructure is suitable for the requested zone change. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 
The proposed zone change is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the 
existing development. University Park Shopping Center is already home to a variety of commercial uses, and the 
addition of a nightclub will be compatible with the other commercial properties along the intersection of 
University Avenue and 50th Street.  

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 
The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates the subject property for commercial/ light retail 
uses. The Comprehensive Plan identifies shopping centers and restaurants as examples of the intended uses 
within the district (p. 60). The property is also located within a retail node, designated for a mix of transition 
uses between commercial and residential. The base zone change from C-2 to C-4 will not alter any existing uses 
found in the University Park Shopping Center. Furthermore, the addition of a nightclub fulfills a goal for 
introducing new entertainment options in the city. Entertainment was identified as the most needed type of 
development per the Comprehensive Plan (p. 38). 

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 
The proposed zone change is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate for the existing 
shopping center use already established.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 
The property is suitable for the proposed use and will not need additional public improvements. 

Attachments 

A. Case Information
B. Thoroughfare Map
C. Notification Map
D. Aerial Map
E. Zoning Map
F. Future Land Use Map
G. Photos
H. Application and supporting documentation
I. Notification Replies

Kristen Sager 
Planning and Zoning Manager 
Planning Department 

Staff Contacts 
Bailey Shillings  
Planner  
Planning Department 
806-775-3147 806-775-2109
bshillings@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:acalloway@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A   Page 1 of 3 

Case Information: Zone Case 1139-B 

Allowable Uses: Commercial District (C-4) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from University Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

University Avenue 
Principal Arterial, 

Completed 

R.O.W. 110 feet, six-lane, 
divided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, six-
lane, divided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

4.1 Case 1139-B: Eric Valdez for Keystone Properties 

Request for a zone change to Commercial District (C-4) with a Specific Use for a Nightclub from 

Local Retail District (C-2) at: 

• 5015 University Avenue Suite 11-A, located east of University Avenue and south of 50th

Street, Agee-Pharr Addition, the balance of Lot 1.

PLANNER BAILEY SHILLINGS stated there were sixteen (16) notifications sent out and one (1) returned in 

favor and nine (9) returned in opposition. The letters received in opposition are generally concerned about 

increased vagrancy and an unsafe environment for the neighborhood to the southeast. She explained the 

applicant will still need to go to City Council for a variance to the separation requirement from a school. 

Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the 

surrounding property.  Staff recommends approval of the request.  

BOARDMEMBER JAMES BELL asked how often zone cases are limited to a suite. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

APPLICANT ERIC VALDEZ 5015 University Avenue Suite 11-A advised the property already has a TABC 

license, the new business will bring jobs to the area, and he has adequate staff to handle any situations.  

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON asked what business is operating there currently.  Applicant stated they 

are not operating now. Mr. Wilson stated he has seen ongoing renovations at the property. Applicant 

stated they are removing walls and painting at this time.  

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001395
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001395


Zone Case 1139-B 

Attachment A   Page 2 of 3 

ED AINSWORTH, pastor of Generations Church at 5201 University, which is south of the subject 

property, advised their church has been there for 5 years and 8 months and feels vandalism of their 

property will continue if this request is approved. Additionally, litter is a problem and his main concern 

is on weekends and twice a week that they have activities for 5-11 year olds at the church. Youth also 

meet at the building and he does not want to put them at risk. You cannot legislate morality, but a 

nightclub should not be placed near a church and school. Children should be protected from those who 

are intoxicated and he wants to protect the property. He is concerned how property values will be 

affected, along with the nightclub bringing additional noise and traffic. 

BARRY BALLINGER, 5010 University, West Texas Regional Chairman for Plains Capital Bank, advised he 

has worked at this branch for 44 years. There are 150 employees at this location. The shopping center has 

been C-2A or C-2 since 1963 and that zoning is appropriate. A nightclub will not promote health, safety, 

etc. and he disagrees with the staff assessment. The area continues to experience demographic changes, 

and he is having to employ police officers to protect employees, customers, and tenants in the parking 

lot. There have been several attempted assaults. He understands economic development, but this is the 

wrong place for this type of business and there would be no buffer between other uses. Of the 16 property 

owners who received notice, he has spoken with 13 (one being the bank) and all were opposed.  

DR. VICTOR CHAVEZ, 5015 University, owns property at the southwest corner of the shopping center and 

has been there since 1982. There was a bar and grill previously that would be really busy and they would 

park in his lot. There would be trash, broken beer bottles, beer cans, etc. The shopping center does not 

clean their property. In the past 10 years he has seen deterioration of the area and more homeless 

people. They come into their office to use the public bathroom without permission. They leave 

paraphernalia in the floors. People will sit in the lobby to rest or charge their phones. They are not there 

to be seen by a doctor, but to protect themselves from the elements. No businesses or residents will 

benefit from this and there is no moral benefit. Why should the zoning change now? 

STEVEN FANNIN, 2323 52nd Street, has owned the duplex on this property since 1970. He has two 

tenants, one moved in in 1988 and the other 1994. They are elderly and he keeps rent low so they can 

have a nice place to live. They are the first buffer from this property on 52nd and he is concerned about 

their safety. There are only a few duplexes and the rest of the properties are single family residences. He 

personally does not have an issue with bars or drinking, but this is not the right location. There are only 

200 parking spaces in the entire lot and he is worried about overflow.  

GILBERT SALDANA, 5015 University, advised he is the manager that will run the nightclub. Their hours of 

operation will not overlap with the other tenants in the shopping center. They will pick up trash and clean 

up anything their inconsiderate patrons have done. There are establishments like 7-11 and Family Dollar 

that sell beer and wine even closer to the school. It is time to evolve. The City has projected University to 

being an entertainment district. A TABC license is not a magnet to homeless people. His daughter 

graduated from Richard Millburn and he witnessed many fights in their parking lot and students smoking. 

The influence is everywhere. Everyone has to make their own decisions. A nightclub will not make anyone 

a bad person. The former bar and grill sold very little food if any. They are trying to do the right thing. He 

has zero violations with TABC, a strict policy to prohibit violence, and a great staff. 

CHAIR ZACH SAWYER advised this does impact the surrounding area, as you are increasing the capacity 

on the area, parking, etc, and you have to consider hours of operation. It is already a dense area. 



Zone Case 1139-B 

Attachment A   Page 3 of 3 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON understands the staff discussion of entertainment and the Comprehensive 

Plan, but he is concerned about the proximity to the church, residential, and school. He is also concerned 

about inserting C-4 into a shopping center, which would stay with the property. Feels like this is not the 

correct location for a nightclub and he sees more negative than positive with this case. 

BOARDMEMBERS JAMES BELL and TANNER NOBLE are concerned about rezoning just one suite and not 

the whole shopping center, and setting a precedent. What would happen if they wanted to expand more? 

Since they have approved should they be approved again? 

BOARDMEMBER ABEL HERNANDEZ advised this would allow a gathering of people with on premise 

alcohol sales and he is concerned about the proximity to the church and school. 

In the matter of Zone Case 1139-B a motion was made by DAN WILSON and seconded by JAMES 

BELL to approve the case as presented The Commission members voted 0 (in favor) to 5 (in opposition) 

to approve the motion. Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 













Zone Case 1139-B 
 

 
 

 

View east. Subject Site.  View north. 
 
 

 

 

View west. View south. 



























Attachment A   Page 1 of 3 

Case Information: Zone Case 1139-B 

Allowable Uses: Commercial District (C-4) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from University Avenue. 

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

University Avenue 
Principal Arterial, 

Completed 

R.O.W. 110 feet, six-lane, 
divided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, six-
lane, divided, paved 

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments: No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

4.1 Case 1139-B: Eric Valdez for Keystone Properties 

Request for a zone change to Commercial District (C-4) with a Specific Use for a Nightclub from 

Local Retail District (C-2) at: 

• 5015 University Avenue Suite 11-A, located east of University Avenue and south of 50th

Street, Agee-Pharr Addition, the balance of Lot 1.

PLANNER BAILEY SHILLINGS stated there were sixteen (16) notifications sent out and one (1) returned in 

favor and nine (9) returned in opposition. The letters received in opposition are generally concerned about 

increased vagrancy and an unsafe environment for the neighborhood to the southeast. She explained the 

applicant will still need to go to City Council for a variance to the separation requirement from a school. 

Staff shared the location of the property including pictures and maps and discussed the 

surrounding property.  Staff recommends approval of the request.  

BOARDMEMBER JAMES BELL asked how often zone cases are limited to a suite. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

APPLICANT ERIC VALDEZ 5015 University Avenue Suite 11-A advised the property already has a TABC 

license, the new business will bring jobs to the area, and he has adequate staff to handle any situations.  

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON asked what business is operating there currently.  Applicant stated they 

are not operating now. Mr. Wilson stated he has seen ongoing renovations at the property. Applicant 

stated they are removing walls and painting at this time.  

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001395
https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001395


Zone Case 1139-B 

Attachment A   Page 2 of 3 

ED AINSWORTH, pastor of Generations Church at 5201 University, which is south of the subject 

property, advised their church has been there for 5 years and 8 months and feels vandalism of their 

property will continue if this request is approved. Additionally, litter is a problem and his main concern 

is on weekends and twice a week that they have activities for 5-11 year olds at the church. Youth also 

meet at the building and he does not want to put them at risk. You cannot legislate morality, but a 

nightclub should not be placed near a church and school. Children should be protected from those who 

are intoxicated and he wants to protect the property. He is concerned how property values will be 

affected, along with the nightclub bringing additional noise and traffic. 

BARRY BALLINGER, 5010 University, West Texas Regional Chairman for Plains Capital Bank, advised he 

has worked at this branch for 44 years. There are 150 employees at this location. The shopping center has 

been C-2A or C-2 since 1963 and that zoning is appropriate. A nightclub will not promote health, safety, 

etc. and he disagrees with the staff assessment. The area continues to experience demographic changes, 

and he is having to employ police officers to protect employees, customers, and tenants in the parking 

lot. There have been several attempted assaults. He understands economic development, but this is the 

wrong place for this type of business and there would be no buffer between other uses. Of the 16 property 

owners who received notice, he has spoken with 13 (one being the bank) and all were opposed.  

DR. VICTOR CHAVEZ, 5015 University, owns property at the southwest corner of the shopping center and 

has been there since 1982. There was a bar and grill previously that would be really busy and they would 

park in his lot. There would be trash, broken beer bottles, beer cans, etc. The shopping center does not 

clean their property. In the past 10 years he has seen deterioration of the area and more homeless 

people. They come into their office to use the public bathroom without permission. They leave 

paraphernalia in the floors. People will sit in the lobby to rest or charge their phones. They are not there 

to be seen by a doctor, but to protect themselves from the elements. No businesses or residents will 

benefit from this and there is no moral benefit. Why should the zoning change now? 

STEVEN FANNIN, 2323 52nd Street, has owned the duplex on this property since 1970. He has two 

tenants, one moved in in 1988 and the other 1994. They are elderly and he keeps rent low so they can 

have a nice place to live. They are the first buffer from this property on 52nd and he is concerned about 

their safety. There are only a few duplexes and the rest of the properties are single family residences. He 

personally does not have an issue with bars or drinking, but this is not the right location. There are only 

200 parking spaces in the entire lot and he is worried about overflow.  

GILBERT SALDANA, 5015 University, advised he is the manager that will run the nightclub. Their hours of 

operation will not overlap with the other tenants in the shopping center. They will pick up trash and clean 

up anything their inconsiderate patrons have done. There are establishments like 7-11 and Family Dollar 

that sell beer and wine even closer to the school. It is time to evolve. The City has projected University to 

being an entertainment district. A TABC license is not a magnet to homeless people. His daughter 

graduated from Richard Millburn and he witnessed many fights in their parking lot and students smoking. 

The influence is everywhere. Everyone has to make their own decisions. A nightclub will not make anyone 

a bad person. The former bar and grill sold very little food if any. They are trying to do the right thing. He 

has zero violations with TABC, a strict policy to prohibit violence, and a great staff. 

CHAIR ZACH SAWYER advised this does impact the surrounding area, as you are increasing the capacity 

on the area, parking, etc, and you have to consider hours of operation. It is already a dense area. 



Zone Case 1139-B 

Attachment A   Page 3 of 3 

BOARDMEMBER DAN WILSON understands the staff discussion of entertainment and the Comprehensive 

Plan, but he is concerned about the proximity to the church, residential, and school. He is also concerned 

about inserting C-4 into a shopping center, which would stay with the property. Feels like this is not the 

correct location for a nightclub and he sees more negative than positive with this case. 

BOARDMEMBERS JAMES BELL and TANNER NOBLE are concerned about rezoning just one suite and not 

the whole shopping center, and setting a precedent. What would happen if they wanted to expand more? 

Since they have approved should they be approved again? 

BOARDMEMBER ABEL HERNANDEZ advised this would allow a gathering of people with on premise 

alcohol sales and he is concerned about the proximity to the church and school. 

In the matter of Zone Case 1139-B a motion was made by DAN WILSON and seconded by JAMES 

BELL to approve the case as presented The Commission members voted 0 (in favor) to 5 (in opposition) 

to approve the motion. Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 













Zone Case 1139-B 
 

 
 

 

View east. Subject Site.  View north. 
 
 

 

 

View west. View south. 



























   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 2.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 2011-I, a request of Asken Properties,
LLC for Frenship Independent School District, for a zone change from Light Manufacturing District
(M-1) to High-Density Apartment District (A-2) at 6401 43rd Street, located east of Milwaukee Avenue
and north of 43rd Street, Santa Fe Park Addition, Lot 14, and consider an ordinance.

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on June 3, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Bryan Isham, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission 

Attachments
Ordinanace 2011-I 
Staff Report 2011-I 
Documentation 2011-I 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 2011-I 
City Council Meeting June 22, 2021 

Applicant Asken Properties 

Property Owner Frenship Independent School District 

Council District 6 

Recommendations 

 Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 

• September 11, 1958: This property was annexed through Ordinance No. 002535 and zoned Single Family 
District (R-1).

• January 28, 1985, Zone Case 2011-A: This property was rezoned from Single-Family District (R-1) and 
Family Apartment (A-1) to Two Family (R-2) and Light Manufacturing (M-1) through Ordinance No. 008711.

• June 3, 2021, Zone Case 2011-I: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone 
change from Light Manufacturing District (M-1) to High-Density Apartment District (A-2) by a vote of 

5-0-0. 

Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 37

 Received In Favor: 3

 Received In Opposition: 2 (1 of which is outside the 200 foot notification boundary)

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was annexed in 1958 and has since remained undeveloped. 

Adjacent Property Development 

The property to the east is zoned Light Manufacturing District (M-1) and remains vacant. The property to the 

west is zoned General Retail District (C-3) and remains vacant, with a church to the south. The property to the 

north is zoned Single-Family District (R-1) and is developed with homes. The property to the south is zoned M-1 

and is developed with a school.  

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 6401 43rd Street and is located east of Milwaukee Avenue and north of 43rd 

Street, Santa Fe Park Addition, Lot 14. The applicant requests a zone change from M-1 to A-2, with the intent to 

construct apartments. 

Light Manufacturing District (M-1) 

High-Density Apartment District (A-2) 

Current zoning: 

Requested zoning: 



Page 2 of 2 

Intent Statements  
The intent of the proposed A-2 zoning is, “…to promote high-density multi-family developments and compatible 

land uses in harmony with lower-density uses. The regulations are designed to provide the occupants with safe 

and convenient housing within an aesthetically pleasing environment in proper relationship to adjacent land 

uses. 

The intent of the current M-1 zoning is “…to provide for light industrial uses and those commercial uses 

requiring outside storage and display. The regulations are designed to provide for a mixture of heavy 

commercial and light industrial or manufacturing uses with proper standards to encourage attractive working 

areas for citizens.” 

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed rezoning location will be along Milwaukee Avenue, which is designated as a Principle Arterial, and 

43rd Street, which is designated as a proposed Collector by the Master Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Both of these 

types of roads allows for an efficient and highly connected means of transportation by limiting trip lengths 

throughout the City and providing multiple route options for roadway users. 

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 

development. The proposed use is for the development for apartments. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Commercial” land uses and notes 

that land uses in these areas can take numerous forms depending on context. The level of intensity for A-2 is 

appropriate for this area. The Future Land Use Plan designates the surrounding properties for Commercial use. 

Although the A-2 zoning is not consistent with the Future Land Use Plan, it is appropriate next to the established 

residential use to the north and the school to the south of the subject property.   

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 

residential and commercial uses that are already established.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 

intensity of uses described in the A-2 zoning district. 

Attachments 

A. Case Information

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map

C. Notification Map

D. Aerial Map

E. Zoning Map

F. Future Land Use Map

G. Photos

H. Application and supporting documentation

I. Response Letters

Staff Contacts 

Ashley Vasquez  Kristen Sager 

Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-2107 806-775-2109

ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us 

mailto:ashleyvasquez@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 2011-I 

 

Allowable Uses:    High Density Apartment A-2  

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Milwaukee Avenue.  

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Milwaukee Avenue, 
Principal Arterial, 

Completed  

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-lane, 
undivided, paved 

R.O.W. 110 feet, five-
lane, undivided, paved 

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments.   

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

  

4.2 Case 2011-I: Asken Properties, LLC for Frenship Independent School District  

Request for a zone change to High-Density Apartment District (A-2) from Light Manufacturing 

District (M-1) at: 

• 6401 43rd Street, located east of Milwaukee Avenue and north of 43rd Street, Santa Fe 

Park Addition, Lot 14. 

PLANNER ASHLEY VASQUEZ stated there were thirty-seven (37) notifications sent out and we received 

three (3) in favor and one (1) in opposition, which stated concerns of increased crime, noise, traffic, and 

lower property values. Staff shared the report and maps of the subject property. Staff recommends 

approval of the request. 

OLIVER NASIELL 3420 Milwaukee Avenue Unit 1011 is working with the Frenship District and they really 

like the idea of multifamily homes in this location. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 2011-I a motion was made by JAMES BELL seconded by ABEL HERNANDEZ  

to approve the case as presented and the Commission members voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to 

approve the motion. Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001142












2011-I 

 

  

Subject property view to the north. View to the east. 

View to the west. View to the south. 

  



















   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 3.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Public Hearing - Planning: Consider a request for Zone Case 3435, a request of Studio 44 for
Heartbeat Midwifery, for a zone change from General Retail District (C-3) and C-3 Specific Use to
Apartment-Medical District (AM) at 4413 4th Street and 415 Raleigh Avenue, located south of 4th Street
and east of Raleigh Avenue, Rushland Park Addition, Tract M-1-A-2 and the south part of Tract B-1-A,
and consider an ordinance. 

Item Summary
For detailed information on this request, please refer to the Planning Department Staff Report attached
hereto. As noted in the report, staff recommends approval of the request. The Planning and Zoning
Commission heard this case on June 3, 2021, and recommended approval of the request by a unanimous
vote.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Bryan Isham, Director of Planning
Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
Ordinance 3435 
Staff Report 3435 
Documentation 3435 









Page 1 of 2 

Planning Department 

City of Lubbock 

Staff Report Zone Case 3435 
City Council Meeting June 22, 2021 

Applicant Studio 44 

Property Owner  Heartbeat Midwifery 

Council District  6 

Recommendations 

 Staff recommends Approval.

Prior Board or Council Action 

 September 11, 1958: This property was annexed through Ordinance No. 2535 and zoned Single-Family

District (R-1).

 January 24, 1963, Zone Case 1059: A portion of this property was zoned to Local Retail District (C-2) from

R-1.

 September 12, 1974, Zone Case 1968-A: A portion of this property was zoned to Apartment Medical (AM)

Specific Use from R-1.

 November 13, 1974, Zone Case 1968-A: A portion of this property was zoned to C-2 from R-1.

 September 13, 1984, Zone Case 1968-C: A portion of this property was zoned to General Retail District

(C-3) and C-2 from R-1 and C-2.

 November 10, 1988, Zone Case 1968-D: A portion of this property was zoned to C-3 Specific Use from C-

3.

 June 3, 2021, Zone Case 3298-C: The Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval of a zone

change to AM by a vote of 5-0-0.

Notification Summary 

 Notifications Sent: 8

 Received In Favor: 0

 Received In Opposition: 0

Site Conditions and History 

The subject property was annexed in 1958 and has remained vacant. 

Adjacent Property Development 

The property to the north of the subject property is zoned C-3 Specific Use and is developed with a bank. The 

properties to the east are zoned C-3 and have been developed with restaurants and a package store. The property 

to the south is zoned Garden Office (GO) and is developed with an office building. The property to the west is 

zoned R-1 and is developed with a park. The property to the southeast is zoned Apartment Medical (AM) and has 

been developed with an outpatient clinic.   

Zoning Request and Analysis 

Item Summary 

The subject property is addressed as 4413 4th Street and 415 Raleigh Avenue, and is located south of 4th Street 

and east of Raleigh Avenue. The applicant requests to rezone the subject property from C-3 and C-3 Specific Use 

to AM. 

Current zoning: General Retail District (C-3) and C-3 with a Specific Use 



Page 2 of 2 

Requested zoning: Apartment Medical District (AM) 

Intent Statements 

The intent of the current C-3 zoning is “…to provide for general commercial uses which are medium activity 

centers in terms of generated traffic. Such districts should be adjacent to local or regional thoroughfares such 

as state or federal highways. Because of the commercial nature of the permitted uses, compatibility with 

adjacent residential areas should be considered.” 

The intent of the proposed AM zoning is “…to provide for quality medical and related development through proper 

planning and design. The regulations are intended to produce an attractive environment which will ensure the 

compatibility between medical and other uses; encourage and protect future development; provide modern 

facilities for the public; provide proper accessory uses; and promote, stabilize, and enhance the city as a 

medical center."

Traffic Network/Infrastructure Impacts 

The proposed rezoning location is along Raleigh Avenue, which is designated as a Local Street by the Master 

Thoroughfare Plan, 2018. Local streets are designed for medium volumes of vehicles operating at lower speeds 

and provide access and movement within residential, commercial, and industrial areas (Comprehensive Plan, 

page 87). The proposed rezoning will be suitable for this type of road.  

Compatibility with Surrounding Property 

The proposed zoning is compatible with the surrounding area and will not change the character of the existing 

development. The proposed use is for a maternity clinic, which is appropriate adjacent to other commercial 

properties. 

Conformance with Comprehensive Plan Principles and Future Land Use Map 

The principles outlined in the Comprehensive Plan designates this area for “Commercial/Light Retail”. The level 

of intensity for a maternity clinic is appropriate for this area, and AM conforms to the Comprehensive Plan 

principles and Future Land Use Plan.  

Conformance with Zoning Ordinance 

The proposed zoning request is in conformance with the zoning ordinance and is appropriate adjacent to other 

uses that are already established.  

Suitability of Property for Allowed Uses 

The property is suitable for the proposed uses and will not need additional public improvements to support the 

intensity of uses described in the AM zoning district. 

Attachments 

A. Case Information

B. Thoroughfare Plan Map

C. Aerial Map

D. Zoning Map

E. Future Land Use Map

F. Photos

G. Application and supporting documents

Staff Contacts 

Jacob Hawkins  Kristen Sager 

Planner  Planning and Zoning Manager 

Planning Department Planning Department 

806-775-2096 806-775-2109

jhawkins@mylubbock.us ksager@mylubbock.us

mailto:jhawkins@mylubbock.us
mailto:ksager@mylubbock.us


Attachment A                                                                                                                                                            Page 1 of 1 
 

 

Case Information: Zone Case 3435 

 

Allowable Uses:   Apartment-Medical District (AM) 

Transportation:  The proposed development has points of access from Raleigh Avenue.   

Thoroughfare Existing 
Per Thoroughfare 
Development Plan 

Raleigh Avenue 
Local, Completed 

R.O.W. 60 feet, two-lane, 
undivided, paved 

Two-lane, undivided, 
paved  

  

Engineering Comments:  No comments. 

Public Works Comments:  No comments. 

Building Safety Comments:  No comments. 

Fire Marshal Comments:  No comments. 

Draft Planning and Zoning Commission Minutes 

 4.5 Case 3435: Studio 44 for Heartbeat Midwifery 

Request for a zone change to Apartment-Medical District (AM) from General Retail District (C-3) 

and C-3 Specific Use at: 

• 4413 4th Street and 415 Raleigh Avenue, located south of 4th Street and east of Raleigh 

Avenue, Rushland Park Addition, Tract M-1-A-2 and the south part of Tract B-1-A. 

PLANNER JACOB HAWKINS stated there were eight (8) notifications sent out and zero returned. Staff 

shared the report, maps and photos of the surrounding property. Staff recommends approval of the 

request. 

DEBRA PITTMAN 415 Raleigh Avenue is the designer for the subject property. Her client is a midwife and 

already has a business on 24th Street. This will be a new clinic with 3 birthing rooms. The design of the 

building is a residential style, which will be consistent with the surrounding area. 

No one spoke in favor or in opposition to the request. 

In the matter of Zone Case 3435 a motion was made by JAMES BELL seconded by TANNER NOBLE to 

approve the case as presented. The Commission members voted 5 (in favor) to 0 (in opposition) to 

approve the motion. Item will be forwarded to City Council for consideration. 

 

 

https://z2codes.franklinlegal.net/franklin/Z2Browser2.html?showset=lubbockset&collection=lubbock&doccode=z2Code_z20001175










3435 
 
 

 

View of subject property. View south. View of adjacent property. View west. 
 
 

 

 

View of adjacent property. View north. View of adjacent property. View east. 



Jacob Geyman4/30/2021



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 4.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Planning: Consider a resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute an Annexation
Agreement, with the Lubbock Economic Development Alliance (LEDA), for an area of land generally
described as approximately 407.28 acres adjacent to the eastern city limits of the City of Lubbock, south
of 4th Street and east of East Loop 289.

Item Summary
LEDA is the owner of the tracts of land containing approximately 407.28 acres that are adjacent to the
eastern city limits of the City of Lubbock. The owner is requesting consideration of voluntary
annexation of the land into the City.

The first step in the voluntary annexation process is to establish a service plan that both the City and the
property owner agrees upon. The proposed annexation agreement sets forth the plan for services
between the City of Lubbock and LEDA. If the agreement is approved by the City Council, staff will
schedule a public hearing to consider annexation of the property.

Fiscal Impact
None

Staff/Board Recommending
Jesica McEachern, Assistant City Manager
Bryan Isham, Director of Planning

Attachments
Resolution 
Municipal Service Agreement 
Annexation Map 
Exhibit "B" 

























As required by Chapter 2051, Geospatial Data Products of the 
Government Code,  this product is for informational purposes
and may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, 
engineering, or surveying purposes. It does not represent an
on-the-ground survey and represents only the approximate relative 
location of property boundaries.

CI
TY

 LI
MI

TS 
(IN

)

0 1,000 2,000 3,000500
Feet

±

Proposed Annexation Areas (408.29 Ac. Total) Located in 
Section 6, Block O, Lubbock County

E FM 40

O-5

Proposed Annexation
Area (155.82 Ac.)

E L
OO

P 2
89

PLANTERS

INDUSTRIAL

PARK

Proposed Annexation
Area (252.47 Ac.)

A-72O-6

CI
TY

 LI
MI

TS 
(O

UT
)

CITY OF LUBBOCK
Portion Not to be 

Annexed (~75' X 25')

Portion Not to be 
Annexed (~159.55' X 275')

E CR 6700E 19TH ST

E 4TH ST   E FM 40































   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 5.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Ordinance Single Reading - Finance: Consider approval of an ordinance providing for the issuance of
City of Lubbock, Texas, Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation, in one or more
series; levying a tax and pledging surplus water and wastewater system revenues in payment thereof;
providing for the award of the sale thereof in accordance with specified parameters; approving an
official statement; approving execution of a purchase contract; and enacting other provisions relating
thereto.

Item Summary
The City’s certificates of obligation (the “Certificates”) are hereby authorized to be issued and delivered
in accordance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, specifically Subchapter C, Chapter
271, Texas Local Government Code, as amended, Chapter 1371 and Article VIII of the City’s
Home-Rule Charter.

The Certificates may be issued, from time to time, in one or more series, on the dates and in the
aggregate principal amount designated in the Pricing Certificate therefor for the purpose of paying
contractual obligations to be incurred for the following purposes, to wit:
The bonds may be issued, from time to time, in one or more series, on the dates and in the aggregate
principal amount designated in the Pricing Certificate, for the purpose of:
(i) construction, renovation, improvement and extension of City streets and related infrastructure,
vehicles and equipment, including sidewalks, street lighting, traffic signals/controllers and traffic signal
communication systems, signage, drainage, landscaping, utility improvements, extensions, relocations
and acquisition of land and rights-of-way in connection therewith;
(ii) construction, improvement, renovation and equipment of fire department facilities and acquisition of
land, buildings and other facilities related thereto (collectively, the “Project”), and
(iii) payment of professional services of attorneys, financial advisors, engineers and other professionals
in connection with the Project and the issuance of the Certificates.

Fiscal Impact
The aggregate principal amount of all Bonds issued pursuant to this ordinance shall not exceed
$30,000,000.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer

Attachments
Lubbock Certificates Ser 2021A 





 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

Ordinance No. 2021 – O____ 

ORDINANCE 

relating to 

CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS 
COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE 

CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION 

Adopted:  June 22, 2021 

 

 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 

 

 -i- 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

 
Section 1.01 Definitions.............................................................................................................. 2 
Section 1.02 Findings.................................................................................................................. 5 
Section 1.03 Table of Contents, Titles, and Headings. ............................................................... 5 
Section 1.04 Interpretation. ......................................................................................................... 6 
 

ARTICLE II 
SECURITY FOR THE CERTIFICATES; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND; 

PRIOR LIEN OBLIGATIONS 
 
Section 2.01 Payment of the Certificates. ................................................................................... 6 
Section 2.02 Interest and Sinking Fund. ..................................................................................... 7 
Section 2.03 Issuance of Prior Lien Obligations; Additional Obligations. ................................. 7 
Section 2.04 Application of Prior Lien Obligations Covenants and Agreements. ..................... 8 
 

ARTICLE III 
AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS 

REGARDING THE CERTIFICATES 
 
Section 3.01 Authorization. ........................................................................................................ 8 
Section 3.02 Date, Denomination, Maturities, and Interest. ....................................................... 9 
Section 3.03 Medium, Method, and Place of Payment. .............................................................. 9 
Section 3.04 Execution and Registration of Certificates. ......................................................... 10 
Section 3.05 Ownership. ........................................................................................................... 11 
Section 3.06 Registration, Transfer, and Exchange. ................................................................. 11 
Section 3.07 Cancellation. ........................................................................................................ 12 
Section 3.08 Temporary Certificates. ....................................................................................... 12 
Section 3.09 Replacement Certificates. .................................................................................... 13 
Section 3.10 Book-Entry-Only System..................................................................................... 14 
Section 3.11 Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry-Only 

System. ................................................................................................................. 14 
Section 3.12 Payments to Cede & Co. ...................................................................................... 15 
 

ARTICLE IV 
REDEMPTION OF CERTIFICATES BEFORE MATURITY 

 
Section 4.01 Redemption. ......................................................................................................... 15 
Section 4.02 Optional Redemption. .......................................................................................... 15 
Section 4.03 Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. ................................................................ 15 
Section 4.04 Partial Redemption............................................................................................... 16 
Section 4.05 Notice of Redemption to Owners. ....................................................................... 16 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(continued) 

Page 

 

 -ii- 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

Section 4.06 Payment Upon Redemption. ................................................................................ 17 
Section 4.07 Effect of Redemption. .......................................................................................... 17 
Section 4.08 Lapse of Payment. ................................................................................................ 17 
 

ARTICLE V 
PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

 
Section 5.01 Appointment of Paying Agent/Registrar. ............................................................ 17 
Section 5.02 Qualifications. ...................................................................................................... 18 
Section 5.03 Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar. .................................................................. 18 
Section 5.04 Termination. ......................................................................................................... 18 
Section 5.05 Notice of Change to Owners. ............................................................................... 18 
Section 5.06 Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions....................................................... 18 
Section 5.07 Delivery of Records to Successor. ....................................................................... 18 
 

ARTICLE VI 
FORM OF THE CERTIFICATES 

 
Section 6.01 Form Generally. ................................................................................................... 18 
Section 6.02 CUSIP Registration. ............................................................................................. 19 
Section 6.03 Legal Opinion. ..................................................................................................... 19 
Section 6.04 Statement of Insurance. ........................................................................................ 19 
 

ARTICLE VII 
SALE AND DELIVERY OF CERTIFICATES; DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS 

 
Section 7.01 Sale of Certificates:  Official Statement. ............................................................. 19 
Section 7.02 Control and Delivery of Certificates. ................................................................... 21 
Section 7.03 Deposit of Proceeds. ............................................................................................ 22 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
INVESTMENTS 

 
Section 8.01 Investments. ......................................................................................................... 22 
Section 8.02 Investment Income. .............................................................................................. 22 
 

ARTICLE IX 
PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS 

 
Section 9.01 Payment of the Certificates. ................................................................................. 22 
Section 9.02 Other Representations and Covenants. ................................................................ 23 
Section 9.03 Covenants to Maintain Tax Exempt Status. ......................................................... 23 
 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
(continued) 

Page 

 

 -iii- 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

ARTICLE X 
DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

 
Section 10.01 Events of Default. ................................................................................................ 26 
Section 10.02 Remedies for Default. .......................................................................................... 26 
Section 10.03 Remedies Not Exclusive. ..................................................................................... 26 
 

ARTICLE XI 
DISCHARGE 

 
Section 11.01 Discharge. ............................................................................................................ 27 
 

ARTICLE XII 
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

 
Section 12.01 Annual Reports. ................................................................................................... 27 
Section 12.02 Event Notices. ...................................................................................................... 27 
Section 12.03 Identifying Information. ....................................................................................... 29 
Section 12.04 Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments. ........................................................ 29 
 

ARTICLE XIII 
AMENDMENTS; ATTORNEY GENERAL MODIFICATION 

 
Section 13.01 Amendments. ....................................................................................................... 30 
Section 13.02 Attorney General Modification. ........................................................................... 30 
 

ARTICLE XIV 
EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY 

 
Section 14.01 Effective Immediately. ......................................................................................... 31 
 
Exhibit A -  Description of Annual Disclosure of Financial Information ................................. A-1 
Exhibit B -  Sale Parameters ...................................................................................................... B-1 
Exhibit C -  Form of the Certificates ......................................................................................... C-1 
 
 
 



 

 1 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

 
AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF CITY 
OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS, COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE 
CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION, IN ONE OR MORE SERIES; 
LEVYING A TAX AND PLEDGING SURPLUS WATER AND 
WASTEWATER SYSTEM REVENUES IN PAYMENT 
THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR THE AWARD OF THE SALE 
THEREOF IN ACCORDANCE WITH SPECIFIED 
PARAMETERS; APPROVING AN OFFICIAL STATEMENT; 
APPROVING EXECUTION OF A PURCHASE CONTRACT; 
AND ENACTING OTHER PROVISIONS RELATING 
THERETO. 

WHEREAS, under the provisions of Subchapter C, Chapter 271, Texas Local Government 
Code, as amended, the City of Lubbock, Texas (the “City”), after giving proper notice, is 
authorized to issue and sell for cash its certificates of obligation (herein defined as the 
“Certificates”) that are secured by and payable from the ad valorem taxes and other revenues 
specified in Article II of this Ordinance, and that are issued in the amount, for the purposes, and 
with the provisions set forth in Section 3.01 of this Ordinance; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to a resolution heretofore passed by the City Council, notice of 
intention to issue the Certificates was (i) published in a newspaper of general circulation in the 
City and (ii) posted on the City’s website, in accordance with applicable law; 

WHEREAS, no petition signed by at least five percent of the qualified electors of the City 
has been filed with the City Secretary protesting the issuance of the Certificates; 

WHEREAS, no bond proposition to authorize the issuance of bonds for the same purpose 
as any of the projects being financed with the proceeds of the Certificates was submitted to the 
voters of the City during the preceding three years and failed to be approved; 

WHEREAS, the City Council is now authorized and empowered to proceed with the 
issuance and sale of the Certificates, and hereby finds and determines that it is necessary and in 
the best interests of the City and its citizens that it authorize the issuance of the Certificates in 
accordance with the terms and provisions of this Ordinance at this time; 

WHEREAS, the City is an “Issuer” within the meaning of Chapter 1371, Texas 
Government Code (“Chapter 1371”), as amended, and the City Council desires to delegate, 
pursuant to Chapter 1371 and the parameters of this Ordinance, to the Authorized Officer 
(hereinafter defined), the authority to approve the principal amount, the interest rate(s), the date(s) 
of sale and the number of series, the price and the other terms of the Certificates authorized hereby 
and to otherwise take such actions as are necessary and appropriate to effect the sale of the 
Certificates; and  

WHEREAS, the meeting at which this Ordinance is considered is open to the public as 
required by law, and public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as 
required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended;  



 

 2 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
LUBBOCK, TEXAS, THAT: 

ARTICLE I 
DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS 

Section 1.01 Definitions. 

Unless otherwise expressly provided or unless the context clearly requires otherwise in this 
Ordinance, the following terms shall have the meanings specified below: 

“Authorized Officer” means each of the Mayor, the City Manager and the Chief Financial 
Officer, acting individually. 

“Business Day” means any day other than a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday or other day 
on which banking institutions in the city where the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the 
Paying Agent/Registrar is located are required or authorized by law or executive order to close. 

“Certificate” means any of the Certificates. 

“Certificate Date” means the date designated as the initial date of the Certificates by 
Section 3.02(a) of this Ordinance. 

“Certificates” means the certificates of obligation authorized to be issued by Section 3.01 
of this Ordinance. 

“City” means the City of Lubbock, Texas. 

“Closing Date” means the date of the initial delivery of and payment for the Certificates. 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended by all legislation, if any, 
enacted on or before the Issue Date. 

 “Designated Payment/Transfer Office” means the Designated Payment/Transfer Office, 
as designated in the Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement, or such other location designated by the 
Paying Agent/Registrar. 

“DTC” means The Depository Trust Company of New York, New York, or any successor 
securities depository. 

“DTC Participant” means brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing 
corporations and certain other organizations on whose behalf DTC was created to hold securities 
to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions among DTC Participants. 

“EMMA” means the Electronic Municipal Market Access System. 

“Event of Default” means any event of default as described in Section 10.01 of this 
Ordinance. 



 

 3 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

“Financial Obligation” means a (a) debt obligation; (b) derivative instrument entered into 
in connection with, or pledged as security or a source of payment for, an existing or planned debt 
obligation; or (c) guarantee of a debt obligation or any such derivative instrument; provided that 
“financial obligation” shall not include municipal securities (as defined in the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended) as to which a final official statement (as defined in the Rule) has been 
provided to the MSRB consistent with the Rule. 

“Fiscal Year” means such fiscal year as shall from time to time be set by the City Council. 

 “Initial Certificate” means an initial Certificate authorized by Section 3.04 of this 
Ordinance. 

“Interest and Sinking Fund” means each interest and sinking fund or account established 
pursuant to Section 2.02 of this Ordinance. 

“Interest Payment Date” means the date or dates on which interest on the Certificates is 
scheduled to be paid until their respective dates of maturity or prior redemption, as set forth in the 
Pricing Certificate. 

“Investment” has the meaning stated in Section 1.148-1(b) of the Regulations. 

“Issue Date” for each series of Certificates is the respective date on which such series of 
Certificates is delivered against payment therefor. 

“MSRB” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

“Net Revenues” means all income, revenues and receipts of every nature derived from and 
received by virtue of the operation of the Water and Wastewater System including interest income 
and earnings received from the investment of moneys in the special Funds created by the 
ordinances authorizing Prior Lien Obligations, after deducting and paying, and making provisions 
for the payment of, current expenses of maintenance and operation thereof, including all salaries, 
materials, repairs and extensions necessary to render efficient service; provided, however, only 
such expenses for repairs and extensions as in the judgment of the City Council reasonably and 
fairly exercised, are necessary to keep the System in operation and to render adequate service to 
the City and the inhabitants thereof, or such as might be necessary to meet some physical accident 
or condition which would otherwise impair any obligations payable from Net Revenues of the 
System, shall be deducted in determining “Net Revenues”.  Contractual payments for the purchase 
of water or the treatment of sewage shall be a maintenance and operating expense of the System 
to the extent provided in the contract incurred therefor and as may be authorized by law.  
Depreciation shall never be considered as an expense of operation and maintenance.   

  “Official Statement” means a document described in Section 7.01(c) prepared for 
dissemination to potential investors in connection with the public offering and sale of Certificates. 

“Owner” means the person who is the registered owner of a Certificate or Certificates, as 
shown in the Register. 



 

 4 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

“Paying Agent/Registrar” means the bank or trust company identified in the Paying 
Agent/Registrar Agreement referred to in Section 5.01 of this Ordinance, or any successor thereto 
as provided in this Ordinance. 

“Preliminary Official Statement” means a document described in Section 7.01(c) prepared 
for dissemination to potential investors prior to the availability of the final Official Statement. 

“Pricing Certificate” means a certificate or certificates signed by an Authorized Officer 
establishing the terms and features of each series of Certificates in accordance with Section 7.01 
hereof. 

“Prior Lien Obligations” means all bonds or other similar obligations of the City presently 
outstanding or that may be hereafter issued, payable in whole or in part from and secured by a first 
lien on and pledge of the Net Revenues of the Water and Wastewater System or by a lien on and 
pledge of the Net Revenues subordinate to a first lien on and pledge of the Net Revenues but 
superior to the lien on and pledge of the Surplus Revenues made for the Certificates. 

“Proceeds” has the meaning stated in Section 1.148-1(6) of the Regulations. 

 “Purchase Contract” means any contract, agreement or investment letter pursuant to which 
the Certificates of each series are sold to the Purchaser thereof. 

“Purchaser” means the purchaser or purchasers of the Certificates of each series identified 
in the Pricing Certificate. 

 “Record Date” means the date specified in the Pricing Certificate. 

“Register” means the Register specified in Section 3.06(a) of this Ordinance. 

“Regulations” means the final or temporary Income Tax Regulations applicable to the Tax-
Exempt Certificates issued pursuant to Sections 141 through 150 of the Code.  Any reference to a 
section of the Regulations shall also refer to any successor provision to such section hereafter 
promulgated by the Internal Revenue Service pursuant to Sections 141 through 150 of the Code 
and applicable to the Tax-Exempt Certificates. 

“Representation Letter” means the Blanket Letter of Representations between the City and 
DTC. 

“Rule” means SEC Rule 15c2-12, as amended from time to time. 

“SEC” means the United States Securities and Exchange Commission. 

“Special Payment Date” means the Special Payment Date prescribed by Section 3.03(b). 

“Special Record Date” means the Special Record Date prescribed by Section 3.03(b). 



 

 5 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

“Surplus Revenues” means the Net Revenues of the Water and Wastewater System in an 
amount not to exceed $1,000 remaining after payment of all debt service, reserve and other 
requirements in connection with Prior Lien Obligations.   

“Taxable Certificates” means any Certificates for which the City does not intend that the 
interest thereon shall be excludable from gross income of the owners thereof for federal income 
tax purposes pursuant to Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code.  

“Tax-Exempt Certificates” means any Certificates for which the City intends that the 
interest thereon shall be excludable from gross income of the owners thereof for federal income 
tax purposes pursuant to Sections 103 and 141 through 150 of the Code.   

“Term Certificates” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.03 hereof. 

“Unclaimed Payments” means money deposited with the Paying Agent/Registrar for the 
payment of principal of or interest on the Certificates as the same come due and payable and 
remaining unclaimed by the Owners of such Certificates after the applicable payment or 
redemption date. 

“Water and Wastewater System” means the portion of the City’s combined water and 
wastewater system, including all properties and interest in properties (real, personal or mixed and 
tangible or intangible, including contract rights, water rights and permits) owned, operated, 
maintained, and vested in the City for the supply, storage, treatment and distribution of treated 
water for municipal, domestic, commercial, industrial and other uses and the collection and 
treatment of watered wastes, together with all future additions, extensions, replacements and 
improvements thereto; provided that, notwithstanding the foregoing, and to the extent now or 
hereafter authorized or permitted by law, the term Water and Wastewater System shall not include 
any water or wastewater facilities that are declared not part of the Water and Wastewater System 
and are acquired or constructed by the City with the proceeds from the issuance of “Special 
Facilities Bonds,” which are hereby defined as being special revenue obligations of the City which 
are not secured by or payable from the Net Revenues as defined herein, but which are secured by 
and payable solely from special contract revenues or payments received from any other legal entity 
in connection with such facilities, and thus constitute non-recourse debt; and such revenues or 
payments shall not be considered as or constitute gross revenues of the Water and Wastewater 
System, unless and to the extent otherwise provided in the ordinance or ordinances authorizing the 
issuance of such Special Facilities Bonds.   

Section 1.02 Findings. 

The declarations, determinations, and findings declared, made, and found in the preamble 
to this Ordinance are hereby adopted, restated, and made a part of the operative provisions hereof. 

Section 1.03 Table of Contents, Titles, and Headings. 

The table of contents, titles and headings of the Articles and Sections of this Ordinance 
have been inserted for convenience of reference only and are not to be considered a part hereof 
and shall not in any way modify or restrict any of the terms or provisions hereof and shall never 



 

 6 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

be considered or given any effect in construing this Ordinance or any provision hereof or in 
ascertaining intent, if any question of intent should arise. 

Section 1.04 Interpretation. 

(a) Unless the context requires otherwise, words of the masculine gender shall be 
construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders and vice versa, and 
words of the singular number shall be construed to include correlative words of the plural number 
and vice versa. 

(b) Any action required to be taken on a date which is not a Business Day shall be done 
on the next succeeding Business Day and have the same effect as if done on the date so required. 

(c) Any duty, responsibility, privilege, power or authority conferred by this Ordinance 
upon an officer shall extend to an individual who occupies such office in an interim, acting or 
provisional capacity. 

(d) This Ordinance and all the terms and provisions hereof shall be liberally construed 
to effectuate the purposes set forth herein. 

ARTICLE II 
SECURITY FOR THE CERTIFICATES; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND; 

PRIOR LIEN OBLIGATIONS 

Section 2.01 Payment of the Certificates. 

(a) Pursuant to the authority granted by the Texas Constitution and the laws of the State 
of Texas, there shall be levied and there is hereby levied for the current year and for each 
succeeding year thereafter while any of the Certificates or any interest thereon is outstanding and 
unpaid, an ad valorem tax on each one hundred dollars valuation of taxable property within the 
City, at a rate sufficient, within the limit prescribed by law, to pay the debt service requirements 
of the Certificates, being (i) the interest on the Certificates and (ii) a sinking fund for their 
redemption at maturity or a sinking fund of two percent (2%) per annum (whichever amount is the 
greater), when due and payable, full allowance being made for delinquencies and costs of 
collection. 

(b) The ad valorem tax thus levied shall be assessed and collected each year against all 
property appearing on the tax rolls of the City most recently approved in accordance with law, and 
the money thus collected shall be deposited as collected to the Interest and Sinking Fund. 

(c) Said ad valorem tax, the collections therefrom, and all amounts on deposit in or 
required hereby to be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund are hereby pledged and committed 
irrevocably to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Certificates when and as due and 
payable in accordance with their terms and this Ordinance. 

(d) The City hereby covenants and agrees that Surplus Revenues are hereby irrevocably 
pledged equally and ratably to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Certificates of 



 

 7 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

each series.  The City reserves the right to issue Prior Lien Obligations for any lawful purpose, at 
any time, in one or more installments. 

(e) The amount of taxes to be assessed annually for the payment of debt service on the 
Certificates shall be determined in the following manner: 

(i) The City’s annual budget shall reflect (A) the amount of debt service 
requirements to become due on the Certificates in the next ensuing Fiscal Year and (B) the 
amount on deposit and budgeted for deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund on the date 
such budget is approved. 

(ii) The amount required to be provided in the next succeeding Fiscal Year from 
ad valorem taxes shall be the amount, if any, that the debt service requirements on the 
Certificates to be paid during the next Fiscal Year exceeds the amount then on deposit and 
budgeted for deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund prior to the levy of such ad valorem 
taxes. 

(iii) Following approval of the City’s annual budget, the City Council shall, by 
ordinance, establish a tax rate that is sufficient to produce taxes in an amount which, when 
added to the amount then on deposit or budgeted for deposit in the Interest and Sinking 
Fund, will be sufficient to pay debt service on the Certificates when due during the next 
Fiscal Year. 

(f) If the liens and provisions of this Ordinance shall be released in a manner permitted 
by Article XI hereof, then the collection of such ad valorem tax may be suspended or appropriately 
reduced, as the facts may permit, and further deposits to the Interest and Sinking Fund may be 
suspended or appropriately reduced, as the facts may permit.  In determining the aggregate 
principal amount of outstanding Certificates, there shall be subtracted the amount of any 
Certificates that have been duly called for redemption and for which money has been deposited 
with the Paying Agent/Registrar for such redemption.   

Section 2.02 Interest and Sinking Fund. 

(a) A special fund or account for each series of Certificates (each, an “Interest Sinking 
Fund”) shall be and is hereby created solely for the benefit of the Certificates of such series and 
each such fund or account shall be maintained at an official depository bank of the City separate 
and apart from all other funds and accounts of the City. 

(b) Money on deposit in or required by this Ordinance to be deposited to the Interest 
and Sinking Fund established for each series of Certificates shall be used solely for the purpose of 
paying the interest on and principal of the Certificates of such series when and as due and payable 
in accordance with their terms and this Ordinance.   

Section 2.03 Issuance of Prior Lien Obligations; Additional Obligations.   

The City hereby expressly reserves the right to hereafter issue Prior Lien Obligations, 
without limitation as to principal amount but subject to any terms, conditions or restrictions 
applicable thereto under law or otherwise, payable, in whole or in part, from the revenues of the 



 

 8 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

System upon such terms and conditions as the City Council may determine.  Additionally, the City 
reserves the right to issue additional obligations payable, in whole or in part, from the Surplus 
Revenues and, to the extent provided, secured by a lien on and pledge of the Surplus Revenues of 
equal rank and dignity with the lien and pledge securing the payment of the Certificates.   

Section 2.04 Application of Prior Lien Obligations Covenants and Agreements.   

It is the intention of the City Council and accordingly hereby recognized and stipulated that 
the provisions, agreements and covenants contained herein bearing upon the management and 
operations of the Water and Wastewater System, and the administering and application of revenues 
derived from the operation thereof, shall to the extent possible be harmonized with like provisions, 
agreements and covenants contained in the ordinances authorizing the issuance of the Prior Lien 
Obligations, and to the extent of any irreconcilable conflict between the provisions contained 
herein and in the ordinances authorizing the issuance of the Prior Lien Obligations, the provisions, 
agreements and covenants contained therein shall prevail to the extent of such conflict and be 
applicable to this Ordinance but in all respects subject to the priority of rights and benefits, if any, 
conferred thereby to the holders of the Prior Lien Obligations.   

ARTICLE III 
AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS 

REGARDING THE CERTIFICATES 

Section 3.01 Authorization. 

(a) The City’s certificates of obligation (the “Certificates”) are hereby authorized to be 
issued and delivered in accordance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, 
specifically Subchapter C, Chapter 271, Texas Local Government Code, as amended, Chapter 
1371 and Article VIII of the City’s Home-Rule Charter.  The Certificates may be issued, from time 
to time, in one or more series, on the dates and in the aggregate principal amount designated in the 
Pricing Certificate therefor for the purpose of paying contractual obligations to be incurred for the 
following purposes, to wit:  (i) construction, renovation, improvement and extension of City streets 
and related infrastructure, vehicles and equipment, including sidewalks, street lighting, traffic 
signals/controllers and traffic signal communication systems, signage, drainage, landscaping, 
utility improvements, extensions, relocations and acquisition of land and rights-of-way in 
connection therewith; (ii) construction, improvement, renovation and equipment of fire department 
facilities and acquisition of land, buildings and other facilities related thereto (collectively, the 
“Project”), and (iii) payment of professional services of attorneys, financial advisors, engineers 
and other professionals in connection with the Project and the issuance of the Certificates.   

(b) The aggregate principal amount of Certificates issued pursuant to this Ordinance 
shall not exceed $30,000,000. 

(c) If Certificates are issue in more than one series, the provisions of this Ordinance 
shall apply to each such series in the manner, to the extent and subject to such terms and conditions 
as shall be specified in the Pricing Certificate therefor. 



 

 9 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

Section 3.02 Date, Denomination, Maturities, and Interest. 

(a) The Certificates shall be dated the date set forth in the Pricing Certificate (the 
“Certificate Date”).  The Certificates shall be in fully registered form, without coupons, in the 
denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof and shall be numbered separately from 
one upward, except the Initial Certificate, which shall be numbered T-1 or in such other manner 
provided in the Pricing Certificate. 

(b) The Certificates shall mature on the date or dates, in the years and in the principal 
amounts set forth in the Pricing Certificate. 

(c) Interest shall accrue and be paid on each Certificate respectively until its maturity 
or prior redemption, from the later of the Certificate Date or the most recent Interest Payment Date 
to which interest has been paid or provided for at the rates per annum for each respective maturity 
specified in the Pricing Certificate.  Such interest shall be payable on each Interest Payment Date 
until maturity or prior redemption.  Interest on the Certificates shall be calculated on the basis of 
a three hundred sixty (360) day year composed of twelve (12) months of thirty (30) days each, or 
on such other basis as set forth in the Pricing Certificate. 

Section 3.03 Medium, Method, and Place of Payment. 

(a) The principal of and interest on the Certificates shall be paid in lawful money of 
the United States of America. 

(b) Interest on the Certificates shall be payable to the Owners as shown in the Register 
at the close of business on the Record Date; provided, however, in the event of nonpayment of 
interest on a scheduled Interest Payment Date and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for 
such interest payment (a “Special Record Date”) shall be established by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, if and when funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the 
City.  Notice of the Special Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due interest 
(the “Special Payment Date,” which shall be fifteen (15) days after the Special Record Date) shall 
be sent at least five Business Days prior to the Special Record Date by first-class United States 
mail, postage prepaid, to the address of each Owner of a Certificate appearing on the Register at 
the close of business on the last Business Day next preceding the date of mailing of such notice. 

(c) Interest shall be paid by check, dated as of the Interest Payment Date, and sent 
United States mail, first class postage prepaid, by the Paying Agent/Registrar to each Owner, at 
the address thereof as it appears in the Register, or by such other customary banking arrangement 
acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar and the Owner; provided, however, that the Owner shall 
bear all risk and expense of such other banking arrangement.  At the option of an Owner of at least 
$1,000,000 principal amount of the Certificates, interest may be paid by wire transfer to the bank 
account of such Owner on file with the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(d) The principal of each Certificate shall be paid to the Owner thereof on the due date, 
whether at the maturity date or the date of prior redemption thereof, upon presentation and 
surrender of such Certificate at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar. 



 

 10 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

(e) If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Certificates shall be 
a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions in the city where the 
Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are required or 
authorized by law or executive order to close, then the date for such payment shall be the next 
succeeding day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions 
are required or authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect 
as if made on the original date payment was due and no additional interest shall be due by reason 
of nonpayment on the date on which such payment is otherwise stated to be due and payable. 

(f) Unclaimed Payments shall be segregated in a special escrow account and held in 
trust, uninvested by the Paying Agent/Registrar, for the account of the Owners of the Certificates 
to which the Unclaimed Payments pertain.  Subject to Title 6 of the Texas Property Code, 
Unclaimed Payments remaining unclaimed by the Owners entitled thereto for three (3) years after 
the applicable payment or redemption date shall be applied to the next payment on the Certificates 
thereafter coming due; to the extent any such moneys remain three (3) years after the retirement 
of all outstanding Certificates, such moneys shall be paid to the City to be used for any lawful 
purpose.  Thereafter, neither the City, the Paying Agent/Registrar, nor any other person shall be 
liable or responsible to any Owners of such Certificates for any further payment of such unclaimed 
moneys or on account of any such Certificates, subject to Title 6 of the Texas Property Code. 

Section 3.04 Execution and Registration of Certificates. 

(a) The Certificates shall be executed on behalf of the City by the Mayor and the City 
Secretary, by their manual or facsimile signatures, and the official seal of the City shall be 
impressed or placed in facsimile thereon.  Such facsimile signatures on the Certificates shall have 
the same effect as if each of the Certificates had been signed manually and in person by each of 
said officers, and such facsimile seal on the Certificates shall have the same effect as if the official 
seal of the City had been manually impressed upon each of the Certificates. 

(b) In the event that any officer of the City whose manual or facsimile signature appears 
on the Certificates ceases to be such officer before the authentication of such Certificates or before 
the delivery thereof, such manual or facsimile signature nevertheless shall be valid and sufficient 
for all purposes as if such officer had remained in such office. 

(c) Except as provided below, no Certificate shall be valid or obligatory for any 
purpose or be entitled to any security or benefit of this Ordinance unless and until there appears 
thereon the Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar substantially in the form provided herein, duly 
authenticated by manual execution by an officer or duly authorized signatory of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar.  It shall not be required that the same officer or authorized signatory of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar sign the Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar on all of the Certificates.  In lieu of 
the executed Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar described above, the Initial Certificate 
delivered at the Closing Date shall have attached thereto the Comptroller’s Registration Certificate 
substantially in the form provided herein, manually executed by (or, to the extent allowed by law, 
bearing a facsimile signature of) the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, or by 
his duly authorized agent, which certificate shall be evidence that the Certificate has been duly 
approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas, that it is a valid and binding obligation of 



 

 11 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

the City, and that it has been registered by the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of 
Texas. 

(d) On the Closing Date, one Initial Certificate of each series reflecting the terms set 
forth in the Pricing Certificate and representing the entire principal amount of all Certificates, 
payable in stated installments to the Purchaser, or its designee, executed by the Mayor and City 
Secretary of the City by their manual or facsimile signatures, approved by the Attorney General, 
and registered and manually signed by (or, to the extent allowed by law, bearing a facsimile 
signature of) the Comptroller of Public Accounts, will be delivered to the Purchaser or its designee.  
Upon payment for the Initial Certificate, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall cancel the Initial 
Certificate and deliver a single registered, definitive Certificate for each maturity, in the aggregate 
principal amount thereof, to DTC on behalf of the Purchaser. 

Section 3.05 Ownership. 

(a) The City, the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any other person may treat the person in 
whose name any Certificate is registered as the absolute owner of such Certificate for the purpose 
of making and receiving payment as herein provided (except interest shall be paid to the person in 
whose name such Certificate is registered on the Record Date or Special Record Date, as 
applicable), and for all other purposes, whether or not such Certificate is overdue, and neither the 
City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be bound by any notice or knowledge to the contrary. 

(b) All payments made to the Owner of a Certificate shall be valid and effectual and 
shall discharge the liability of the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar upon such Certificate to the 
extent of the sums paid. 

Section 3.06 Registration, Transfer, and Exchange. 

(a) So long as any Certificates remain outstanding, the City shall cause the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to keep at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office a register (the “Register”) in 
which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall 
provide for the registration and transfer of Certificates in accordance with this Ordinance. 

(b) The ownership of a Certificate may be transferred only upon the presentation and 
surrender of the Certificate at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar with such endorsement or other evidence of transfer as is acceptable to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar.  No transfer of any Certificate shall be effective until entered in the Register. 

(c) The Certificates shall be exchangeable upon the presentation and surrender thereof 
at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar for a Certificate or 
Certificates of the same series, maturity and interest rate and in a denomination or denominations 
of any integral multiple of $5,000, and in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unpaid 
principal amount of the Certificates presented for exchange The Paying Agent/Registrar is hereby 
authorized to authenticate and deliver Certificates exchanged for other Certificates in accordance 
with this Section. 

(d) Each exchange Certificate delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar in accordance 
with this Section shall constitute an original contractual obligation of the City and shall be entitled 



 

 12 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

to the benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Certificate or Certificates 
in lieu of which such exchange Certificate is delivered. 

(e) No service charge shall be made to the Owner for the initial registration, subsequent 
transfer, or exchange for a different denomination of any of the Certificates.  The Paying 
Agent/Registrar, however, may require the Owner to pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other 
governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed in connection with the registration, transfer, 
or exchange of a Certificate. 

(f) Neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to issue, transfer, 
or exchange any Certificate called for redemption, in whole or in part, where such redemption is 
scheduled to occur within forty-five (45) calendar days after the transfer or exchange date; 
provided, however, such limitation shall not be applicable to an exchange by the Owner of the 
uncalled principal balance of a Certificate. 

Section 3.07 Cancellation. 

All Certificates paid or redeemed before scheduled maturity in accordance with this 
Ordinance, and all Certificates in lieu of which exchange Certificates or replacement Certificates 
are authenticated and delivered in accordance with this Ordinance, shall be cancelled and proper 
records made regarding such payment, redemption, exchange, or replacement.  The Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall then return such cancelled Certificates to the City or may in accordance with 
law destroy such cancelled Certificates and periodically furnish the City with certificates of 
destruction of such Certificates. 

Section 3.08 Temporary Certificates. 

(a) Following the delivery and registration of the Initial Certificate and pending the 
preparation of definitive Certificates, the City may execute and, upon the City’s request, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, one or more temporary Certificates that are printed, 
lithographed, typewritten, mimeographed, or otherwise produced, in any denomination, 
substantially of the tenor of the definitive Certificates in lieu of which they are delivered, without 
coupons, and with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions, and other variations as the 
officers of the City executing such temporary Certificates may determine, as evidenced by their 
signing of such temporary Certificates. 

(b) Until exchanged for Certificates in definitive form, such Certificates in temporary 
form shall be entitled to the benefit and security of this Ordinance. 

(c) The City, without unreasonable delay, shall prepare, execute and deliver to the 
Paying Agent/Registrar the Certificates in definitive form; thereupon, upon the presentation and 
surrender of the Certificate or Certificates in temporary form to the Paying Agent/Registrar, the 
Paying Agent/Registrar shall cancel the Certificates in temporary form and shall authenticate and 
deliver in exchange therefor a Certificate or Certificates of the same maturity and series, in 
definitive form, in the authorized denomination, and in the same aggregate principal amount, as 
the Certificate or Certificates in temporary form surrendered.  Such exchange shall be made 
without the making of any charge therefor to any Owner. 



 

 13 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

Section 3.09 Replacement Certificates. 

(a) Upon the presentation and surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar of a mutilated 
Certificate, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor a 
replacement Certificate of the same series and of like tenor and principal amount, bearing a number 
not contemporaneously outstanding.  The City or the Paying Agent/Registrar may require the 
Owner of such Certificate to pay a sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governmental charge 
that is authorized to be imposed in connection therewith and any other expenses connected 
therewith. 

(b) In the event that any Certificate is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, 
the Paying Agent/Registrar, pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Texas and in the absence 
of notice or knowledge that such Certificate has been acquired by a bona fide purchaser, shall 
authenticate and deliver a replacement Certificate of the same series and of like tenor and principal 
amount, bearing a number not contemporaneously outstanding, provided that the Owner first: 

(i) furnishes to the Paying Agent/Registrar satisfactory evidence of his or her 
ownership of and the circumstances of the loss, destruction, or theft of such Certificate; 

(ii) furnishes such security or indemnity as may be required by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to save it and the City harmless; 

(iii) pays all expenses and charges in connection therewith, including, but not 
limited to, printing costs, legal fees, fees of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any tax or 
other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed; and 

(iv) satisfies any other reasonable requirements imposed by the City and the 
Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(c) If, after the delivery of such replacement Certificate, a bona fide purchaser of the 
original Certificate in lieu of which such replacement Certificate was issued presents for payment 
such original Certificate, the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to recover such 
replacement Certificate from the person to whom it was delivered or any person taking therefrom, 
except a bona fide purchaser, and shall be entitled to recover upon the security or indemnity 
provided therefor to the extent of any loss, damage, cost, or expense incurred by the City or the 
Paying Agent/Registrar in connection therewith. 

(d) In the event that any such mutilated, lost, apparently destroyed, or wrongfully taken 
Certificate has become or is about to become due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar, in its 
discretion, instead of issuing a replacement Certificate, may pay such Certificate when it becomes 
due and payable. 

(e) Each replacement Certificate delivered in accordance with this Section shall 
constitute an original additional contractual obligation of the City and shall be entitled to the 
benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Certificate or Certificates in lieu 
of which such replacement Certificate is delivered. 



 

 14 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

Section 3.10 Book-Entry-Only System. 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, upon initial issuance of the 
Certificates, the Certificates shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.  
The definitive Certificates shall be initially issued in the form of a single separate certificate for 
each of the maturities thereof. 

(b) With respect to Certificates registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of 
DTC, the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any 
DTC Participant or to any person on behalf of whom such a DTC Participant holds an interest in 
the Certificates.  Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the City and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the 
records of DTC, Cede & Co. or any DTC Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the 
Certificates, (ii) the delivery to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than an Owner, as 
shown on the Register, of any notice with respect to the Certificates, including any notice of 
redemption, or (iii) the payment to any DTC Participant or any other person, other than an Owner, 
as shown in the Register of any amount with respect to principal of or interest on the Certificates.  
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, the City and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall be entitled to treat and consider the person in whose name each Certificate 
is registered in the Register as the absolute owner of such Certificate for the purpose of payment 
of principal of and interest on Certificates, for the purpose of giving notices of redemption and 
other matters with respect to such Certificate, for the purpose of registering transfer with respect 
to such Certificate, and for all other purposes whatsoever.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay 
all principal of and interest on the Certificates only to or upon the order of the respective Owners 
as shown in the Register, as provided in this Ordinance, or their respective attorneys duly 
authorized in writing, and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and 
discharge the City’s obligations with respect to payment of interest on the Certificates to the extent 
of the sum, or sums so paid.  No person other than an Owner, as shown in the Register, shall 
receive a certificate evidencing the obligation of the City to make payments of amounts due 
pursuant to this Ordinance.  Upon delivery by DTC to the Paying Agent/Registrar of written notice 
to the effect that DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., the 
word “Cede & Co.” in this Ordinance shall refer to such new nominee of DTC. 

(c) An Authorized Officer is authorized and directed to execute and deliver the 
Representation Letter applicable to the City’s obligations (including the Certificates) delivered in 
book-entry-only form to DTC as securities depository for the Certificates. 

Section 3.11 Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry-Only 
System. 

In the event that the City determines that it is in the best interest of the City and the 
beneficial owners of the Certificates that they be able to obtain certificated Certificates, or in the 
event DTC discontinues the services described herein, the City shall (i) appoint a successor 
securities depository, qualified to act as such under Section 17(a) of the Securities and Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended, notify DTC and DTC Participants of the appointment of such successor 
securities depository and transfer one or more separate Certificates to such successor securities 
depository; or (ii) notify DTC and DTC Participants of the availability through DTC of 



 

 15 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

certificated Certificates and cause the Paying Agent/Registrar to transfer one or more separate 
registered Certificates to DTC Participants having Certificates credited to their DTC accounts.  In 
such event, the Certificates shall no longer be restricted to being registered in the Register in the 
name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, but may be registered in the name of the successor 
securities depository, or its nominee, or in whatever name or names Owners transferring or 
exchanging Certificates shall designate, in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 3.12 Payments to Cede & Co. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, so long as the 
Certificates are registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with 
respect to principal of and interest on such Certificates, and all notices with respect to such 
Certificates shall be made and given, respectively, in the manner provided in the Representation 
Letter of the City to DTC. 

ARTICLE IV 
REDEMPTION OF CERTIFICATES BEFORE MATURITY 

Section 4.01 Redemption. 

The Certificates are subject to redemption before their scheduled maturity only as provided 
in this Article IV and the Pricing Certificate. 

Section 4.02 Optional Redemption. 

(a) The City reserves the option to redeem Certificates on the terms and in the manner 
provided in the Form of Certificate attached hereto as Exhibit C, with such changes as are required 
by the Pricing Certificate. 

(b) Except as otherwise provided in the Pricing Certificate, if less than all of the 
Certificates are to be redeemed pursuant to an optional redemption, the City shall determine the 
maturity or maturities and the amounts thereof to be redeemed and shall direct the Paying 
Agent/Registrar to call by lot, or by any other customary method that results in a random selection, 
the Certificates, or portions thereof, within such maturity or maturities and in such principal 
amounts for redemption. 

(c) The City, at least forty-five (45) days before the redemption date, unless a shorter 
period shall be satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, shall notify the Paying Agent/Registrar 
of such redemption date and of the principal amount of Certificates to be redeemed. 

Section 4.03 Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption. 

Certificates designated as “Term Certificates,” if any, in the Pricing Certificate are subject 
to scheduled mandatory redemption and will be redeemed by the City, out of moneys available for 
such purpose in the Interest and Sinking Fund, in the manner provided in the Form of Certificate 
attached hereto as Exhibit C, with such changes as are required by the Pricing Certificate.  Term 
Certificates shall be subject to mandatory redemption at the price, on the dates, and in the 
respective principal amounts set forth in the Pricing Certificate. 



 

 16 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

Section 4.04 Partial Redemption. 

(a) Except as otherwise provided in the Pricing Certificate, a portion of a single 
Certificate of a denomination greater than $5,000 may be redeemed, but only in a principal amount 
equal to $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  If such a Certificate is to be partially redeemed, 
the Paying Agent/Registrar shall treat each $5,000 portion of the Certificate as though it were a 
single Certificate for purposes of selection for redemption. 

(b) Upon surrender of any Certificate for redemption in part, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, in accordance with Section 3.06 of this Ordinance, shall authenticate and deliver 
an exchange Certificate or Certificates in an aggregate principal amount equal to the unredeemed 
portion of the Certificate so surrendered, such exchange being without charge. 

(c) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall promptly notify the City in writing of the 
principal amount to be redeemed of any Certificate as to which only a portion thereof is to be 
redeemed. 

Section 4.05 Notice of Redemption to Owners. 

(a) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice of any redemption of Certificates by 
sending notice by United States mail, first class postage prepaid, not less than thirty (30) days 
before the date fixed for redemption, to the Owner of each Certificate (or part thereof) to be 
redeemed, at the address shown on the Register at the close of business on the Business Day next 
preceding the date of mailing such notice. 

(b) The notice shall state the redemption date, the redemption price, the place at which 
the Certificates are to be surrendered for payment, and, if less than all the Certificates outstanding 
are to be redeemed, an identification of the Certificates or portions thereof to be redeemed. 

(c) The City reserves the right to give notice of its election or direction to redeem 
Certificates under Section 4.02 conditioned upon the occurrence of subsequent events.  Such notice 
may state (i) that the redemption is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys and/or authorized 
securities, in an amount equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption, with the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, or such other entity as may be authorized by law, no later than the redemption 
date or (ii) that the City retains the right to rescind such notice at any time prior to the scheduled 
redemption date if the City delivers a certificate of the City to the Paying Agent/Registrar 
instructing the Paying Agent/Registrar to rescind the redemption notice, and such notice and 
redemption shall be of no effect if such moneys and/or authorized securities are not so deposited 
or if the notice is rescinded.  The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give prompt notice of any such 
rescission of a conditional notice of redemption to the affected Owners.  Any Certificates subject 
to conditional redemption where redemption has been rescinded shall remain Outstanding, and the 
rescission shall not constitute an event of default.  Further, in the case of a conditional redemption, 
the failure of the City to make moneys and/or authorized securities available in part or in whole 
on or before the redemption date shall not constitute an event of default. 

(d) Any notice given as provided in this Section shall be conclusively presumed to have 
been duly given, whether or not the Owner receives such notice. 



 

 17 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

Section 4.06 Payment Upon Redemption. 

(a) Before or on each redemption date, the City shall deposit with the Paying 
Agent/Registrar money sufficient to pay all amounts due on the redemption date and the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall make provision for the payment of the Certificates to be redeemed on such 
date by setting, aside and holding in trust such amounts as are received by the Paying 
Agent/Registrar from the City and shall use such funds solely for the purpose of paying the 
principal of and accrued interest on the Certificates being redeemed. 

(b) Upon presentation and surrender of any Certificate called for redemption at the 
Designated Payment/Transfer Office on or after the date fixed for redemption, the Paying 
Agent/Registrar shall pay the principal of and accrued interest on such Certificate to the date of 
redemption from the money set aside-for such purpose. 

Section 4.07 Effect of Redemption. 

(a) Notice of redemption having been given as provided in Section 4.05 of this 
Ordinance and subject to any conditions or rights reserved by the City under Section 4.05(c), the 
Certificates or portions thereof called for redemption shall become due and payable on the date 
fixed for redemption and, unless the City defaults in its obligation to make provision for the 
payment of the principal thereof or accrued interest thereon, such Certificates or portions thereof 
shall cease to bear interest from and after the date fixed for redemption, whether or not such 
Certificates are presented and surrendered for payment on such date. 

(b) If the City shall fail to make provision for payment of all sums due on a redemption 
date, then any Certificate or portion thereof called for redemption shall remain outstanding and 
continue to bear interest at the rate stated on the Certificate until due provision is made for the 
payment of same by the City. 

Section 4.08 Lapse of Payment. 

Money set aside for the redemption of Certificates and remaining unclaimed by the Owners 
of such Certificates shall be subject to the provisions of Section 3.03(f) hereof. 

ARTICLE V 
PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

Section 5.01 Appointment of Paying Agent/Registrar. 

The form of Paying Agent/Registrar Agreement presented at the meeting at which this 
Ordinance was approved and the appointment of the Paying Agent/Registrar identified therein are 
hereby approved. 

The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute the Paying Agent/Registrar 
Agreement with the Paying Agent/Registrar, specifying the duties and responsibilities of the City 
and the Paying Agent/Registrar, in substantially the form presented at the meeting at which this 
Ordinance was approved with such changes as may be approved by an Authorized Officer.  The 
signature of the Mayor shall be attested by the City Secretary. 



 

 18 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

Section 5.02 Qualifications. 

Each Paying Agent/Registrar shall be a commercial bank, a trust company organized under 
the laws of the State of Texas, or other entity duly qualified and legally authorized to serve as and 
perform the duties and services of paying agent and registrar for the Certificates. 

Section 5.03 Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(a) At all times while any Certificates are outstanding, the City will maintain a Paying 
Agent/Registrar that is qualified under Section 5.02 of this Ordinance. 

(b) If the Paying Agent/Registrar resigns or otherwise ceases to serve as such, the City 
will promptly appoint a replacement. 

Section 5.04 Termination. 

The City, upon not less than sixty (60) days’ notice, reserves the right to terminate the 
appointment of any Paying Agent/Registrar by delivering to the entity whose appointment is to be 
terminated written notice of such termination. 

Section 5.05 Notice of Change to Owners. 

Promptly upon each change in the entity serving as Paying Agent/Registrar, the City will 
cause notice of the change to be sent to each Owner by United States mail, first class postage 
prepaid, at the address thereof in the Register, stating the effective date of the change and the name 
and mailing address of the replacement Paying Agent/Registrar. 

Section 5.06 Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions. 

By accepting the appointment as Paying Agent/Registrar and executing the Paying 
Agent/Registrar Agreement, the Paying Agent/Registrar is deemed to have agreed to the provisions 
of this Ordinance and that it will perform the duties and functions of Paying Agent/Registrar 
prescribed thereby. 

Section 5.07 Delivery of Records to Successor. 

If a Paying Agent/Registrar is replaced, such Paying Agent/Registrar, promptly upon the 
appointment of the successor, will deliver the Register (or a copy thereof) and all other pertinent 
books and records relating to the Certificates to the successor Paying Agent/Registrar. 

ARTICLE VI 
FORM OF THE CERTIFICATES 

Section 6.01 Form Generally. 

(a) The Certificates, including the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public 
Accounts of the State of Texas, the Certificate of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and the Assignment 
form to appear on each of the Certificates, (i) shall be generally in the form set forth in Exhibit C 



 

 19 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

hereto, with such appropriate insertions, omissions, substitutions, and other variations as are 
permitted or required by this Ordinance and the Pricing Certificate, and (ii) may have such letters, 
numbers, or other marks of identification (including identifying numbers and letters of the 
Committee on Uniform Securities Identification Procedures of the American Bankers Association) 
and such legends and endorsements (including any reproduction of an opinion of counsel) thereon 
as, consistently herewith, may be determined by the City or by the officers executing such 
Certificates, as evidenced by their execution thereof. 

(b) Any portion of the text of any Certificates may be set forth on the reverse side 
thereof, with an appropriate reference thereto on the face of the Certificates. 

(c) The definitive Certificates, if any, shall be typewritten, photocopied, printed, 
lithographed, or engraved, and may be produced by any combination of these methods or produced 
in any other similar manner, all as determined by the officers executing such Certificates, as 
evidenced by their execution thereof. 

(d) The Initial Certificate submitted to the Attorney General of the State of Texas may 
be typewritten and photocopied or otherwise reproduced. 

Section 6.02 CUSIP Registration. 

The City or the Purchaser may secure identification numbers through CUSIP Global 
Services, managed on behalf of the American Bankers Association by S&P Capital IQ, and may 
authorize the printing of such numbers on the face of the Certificates.  It is expressly provided, 
however, that the presence or absence of CUSIP numbers on the Certificates shall be of no 
significance or effect in regard to the legality thereof and neither the City nor the attorneys 
approving said Certificates as to legality are to be held responsible for CUSIP numbers incorrectly 
printed on the Certificates. 

Section 6.03 Legal Opinion. 

The approving legal opinion of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliffe LLP, Bond Counsel, may 
be attached to or printed on the reverse side of each Certificate over the certification of the City 
Secretary of the City, which may be executed in facsimile.   

Section 6.04 Statement of Insurance. 

A statement relating to a municipal bond insurance policy, if any, to be issued for any 
Certificate or Certificates may be printed on or attached to each such Certificate. 

ARTICLE VII 
SALE AND DELIVERY OF CERTIFICATES; DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS 

Section 7.01 Sale of Certificates:  Official Statement. 

(a) The Certificates shall be sold in accordance with the terms of this Ordinance, 
including this Section 7.01(a) and Exhibit B hereto, provided that all of the conditions set forth in 
Exhibit B can be satisfied.  As authorized by Chapter 1371, the Authorized Officer is authorized 



 

 20 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

to act on behalf of the City, upon determining that the conditions set forth in Exhibit B can be 
satisfied, in selling and delivering the Certificates and carrying out the other procedures specified 
in this Ordinance, including determining (i) the manner of sale (which may be by private 
placement, negotiated or competitive sale, limited or public offering or any combination thereof), 
(ii) the total aggregate principal amount and the number of series of the Certificates (including the 
aggregate principal amount of each series of Certificates issued to effect the purposes identified in 
Section 3.01 of this Ordinance), (iii) the date(s) on which the Certificates of each series will be 
sold and delivered, (iv) whether to acquire bond insurance for the Certificates, (v) the price at 
which the Certificates of each series will be sold, (vi) the title, designation and/or number for the 
Certificates of each series to be issued, (vii) the form in which the Certificates shall be issued, 
(viii) the dates on which the Certificates will mature, the principal amount to mature in each year, 
the rate(s) of interest to be borne by each such maturity, the interest payment dates, and the initial 
date from which interest will accrue, (ix) whether Certificates shall be issued as Tax-Exempt 
Certificates or Taxable Certificates, (x) the dates, prices and other terms upon and at which the 
Certificates of each series shall be subject to redemption or tender prior to maturity (including 
terms for optional and mandatory sinking fund redemption), and (xi) all other terms and provisions 
of the Certificates of each series and all other matters relating to the issuance, sale and delivery 
thereof, all of which shall be specified in the Pricing Certificate therefor.   

The Authorized Officer may approve modifications to this Ordinance to conform to the 
terms of the Certificates, as approved by the Authorized Officer, and execute any instruments, 
agreements and other documents as the Authorized Officer shall deem necessary or appropriate in 
connection with the issuance, sale and delivery of Certificates pursuant to this Ordinance. 

The authority granted to the Authorized Officer under this Section 7.01(a) shall expire at 
11:59 p.m. on the first anniversary of the date of adoption of this Ordinance (the “Expiration 
Date”), unless otherwise extended by the City Council by separate action.  Certificates sold 
pursuant to a Purchase Contract (in the case of a private placement or negotiated sale) or winning 
bid (in the case of a competitive offering) executed on or before the Expiration Date may be 
delivered after such date.   

In satisfaction of Section 1201.022(a)(3), Texas Government Code, the City Council 
hereby determines that the delegation of the authority to the Authorized Officer to approve the 
final terms and conditions of each series of the Certificates as set forth in this Ordinance is, and 
the decisions made by the Authorized Officer pursuant to such delegated authority and 
incorporated in a Pricing Certificate will be, in the best interests of the City and shall have the 
same force and effect as if such determination were made by the City Council, and the Authorized 
Officer is hereby authorized to make and include in a Pricing Certificate an appropriate finding to 
that effect.  Any finding or determination made by the Authorized Officer relating to the issuance 
and sale of the Certificates and the execution of the Purchase Contract in connection therewith 
shall have the same force and effect as a finding or determination made by the City Council. 

(b) An Authorized Officer is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the 
Purchase Contract (in the case of a private placement or negotiated sale) or the winning bid (in the 
case of a competitive offering) in the form and on the terms approved by the Authorized Officer, 
and all other officers, agents and representatives of the City are hereby authorized to do any and 



 

 21 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

all things necessary or desirable to satisfy the conditions set out therein and to provide for the 
issuance and delivery of the Certificates. 

(c) The form and substance of the Preliminary Official Statement, and any addenda, 
supplement or amendment thereto, are hereby in all respects approved and adopted for use in 
connection with the public offering and sale of each series of Certificates, with such appropriate 
variations as shall be approved by the Authorized Officer, and the Preliminary Official Statement 
is hereby deemed final as of its date within the meaning and for the purposes of paragraph (b)(1) 
of Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.  The Authorized Officer 
is hereby authorized and directed to cause to be prepared a final Official Statement (the “Official 
Statement”) incorporating applicable pricing information and other terms pertaining to each series 
of Certificates, and to execute the same by manual or facsimile signature and deliver appropriate 
numbers of executed copies thereof to the Purchaser.  The Official Statement as thus approved, 
executed and delivered, with such appropriate variations as shall be approved by the Authorized 
Officer and the Purchaser, may be used by the Purchaser in the public offering and sale of the 
Certificates.  The use and distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement, and the preliminary 
public offering of the Certificates by the Purchaser, is hereby ratified, approved and confirmed.  In 
the event the Certificates are sold pursuant to a competitive sale, the Authorized Officer is hereby 
authorized to approve the preparation and distribution of a notice of sale. 

(d) All officers of the City are authorized to execute such documents, certificates, 
receipts and other instruments as they may deem appropriate-in order to consummate the delivery 
of the Certificates in accordance with the terms of sale therefor including, without limitation, the 
Purchase Contract. 

(e) The obligation of the Purchaser to accept delivery of the Certificates is subject to 
the closing conditions set forth in the Purchase Contract being satisfied, including specifically the 
Purchaser being furnished with the final, approving opinion of Bond Counsel, which opinion shall 
be dated as of and delivered on the Closing Date. 

Section 7.02 Control and Delivery of Certificates. 

(a) An Authorized Officer of the City is hereby authorized to have control of the Initial 
Certificate and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining thereto pending investigation, 
examination, and approval of the Attorney General of the State of Texas, registration by the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas and registration with, and initial exchange 
or transfer by, the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

(b) After registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, delivery of the 
Certificates shall be made to the Purchaser under and subject to the general supervision and 
direction of the Authorized Officer, against receipt by the City of all amounts due to the City under 
the terms of sale. 

(c) In the event the Mayor or City Secretary is absent or otherwise unable to execute 
any document or take any action authorized herein, the Mayor Pro Tem and the Assistant City 
Secretary, respectively, shall be authorized to execute such documents and take such actions, and 
the performance of such duties by the Mayor Pro Tem and the Assistant City Secretary shall for 



 

 22 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

the purposes of this Ordinance have the same force and effect as if such duties were performed by 
the Mayor and City Secretary, respectively. 

Section 7.03 Deposit of Proceeds. 

Proceeds from the sale of the Certificates shall be applied in accordance with the 
provisions set forth in the Pricing Certificate, which may provide for the creation of any special 
accounts deemed necessary or appropriate by the Authorized Officer. 

ARTICLE VIII 
INVESTMENTS 

Section 8.01 Investments. 

(a) Money in the Interest and Sinking Fund created by this Ordinance and any special 
accounts provided for in the Pricing Certificate pursuant to Section 7.03, at the City’s option, may 
be invested in such securities or obligations as permitted under applicable law.  The Authorized 
Officer, and any other officer of the City authorized to make investments on behalf of the City, are 
hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver, on behalf of the City, any and all investment 
agreements, guaranteed investment contracts or repurchase agreements in connection with the 
investment of moneys on deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund and any special accounts 
provided for in the Pricing Certificate pursuant to Section 7.03, but only to the extent such 
investment agreements, guaranteed investment contracts or repurchase agreements are authorized 
investments under applicable law. 

(b) Any securities or obligations in which money in the Interest and Sinking Fund is so 
invested shall be kept and held in trust for the benefit of the Owners and shall be sold and the 
proceeds of sale shall be timely applied to the making of all payments required to be made from 
the fund from which the investment was made. 

Section 8.02 Investment Income. 

(a) Interest and income derived from investment of the Interest and Sinking Fund shall 
be credited to such fund. 

(b) Interest and income derived from investment of other funds to be deposited 
pursuant to Section 7.03 hereof shall be credited to the fund or account where deposited or shall 
be transferred to the Interest and Sinking Fund as shall be determined by the City Council.   

ARTICLE IX 
PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS 

Section 9.01 Payment of the Certificates. 

On or before each Interest Payment Date for the Certificates and while any of the 
Certificates are outstanding and unpaid, there shall be made available to the Paying 
Agent/Registrar, out of the Interest and Sinking Fund money sufficient to pay such interest on and 



 

 23 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

principal of the Certificates as will accrue or mature on the applicable Interest Payment Date, 
maturity date or date of prior redemption. 

Section 9.02 Other Representations and Covenants. 

(a) The City will faithfully perform at all times any and all covenants, undertakings, 
stipulations, and provisions contained in this Ordinance and in each Certificate; the City will 
promptly pay or cause to be paid the principal of and interest on each Certificate on the dates and 
at the places and manner prescribed in such Certificate; and the City will, at the times and in the 
manner prescribed by this Ordinance, deposit or cause to be deposited the amounts of money 
specified by this Ordinance. 

(b) The City is duly authorized under the laws of the State of Texas to issue the 
Certificates; all action on its part for the creation and issuance of the Certificates has been duly 
and effectively taken; and the Certificates in the hands of the Owners thereof are and will be valid 
and enforceable obligations of the City in accordance with their terms. 

Section 9.03 Covenants to Maintain Tax Exempt Status. 

(a) Not to Cause Interest on Tax-Exempt Certificates to Become Taxable.  The City 
shall not use, permit the use of or omit to use Gross Proceeds of any Tax-Exempt Certificates or 
any other amounts (or any property the acquisition, construction or improvement of which is to be 
financed directly or indirectly with Gross Proceeds) in a manner which, if made or omitted, 
respectively, would cause the interest on such Tax-Exempt Certificates to become includable in 
the gross income, as defined in Section 61 of the Code, of the owner thereof for federal income 
tax purposes.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, unless and until the City shall have 
received a written opinion of counsel nationally recognized in the field of municipal bond law to 
the effect that failure to comply with such covenant will not adversely affect the exemption from 
federal income tax of the interest on any Tax-Exempt Certificates, the City shall comply with each 
of the specific covenants in this Section. 

(b)  No Private Use or Private Payments.  Except as permitted by Section 141 of the 
Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall, at all times after the Issue Date of 
any Tax-Exempt Certificate and prior to the last stated maturity of the Tax-Exempt Certificates  

(i) exclusively own, operate, and possess all property the acquisition, 
construction, or improvement of which is to be financed directly or indirectly with Gross 
Proceeds of such Tax-Exempt Certificates (including property financed with Gross 
Proceeds of the Refunded Obligations or notes or bonds refunded by the Refunded 
Obligations) and not use or permit the use of such Gross Proceeds or any property acquired, 
constructed, or improved with such Gross Proceeds in any activity carried on by any person 
or entity other than a state or local government, unless such use is solely as a member of 
the general public, or  

(ii) not directly or indirectly impose or accept any charge or other payment for 
use of Gross Proceeds of such Tax-Exempt Certificates or any property the acquisition, 
construction or improvement of which is to be financed directly or indirectly with such 
Gross Proceeds (including property financed with Gross Proceeds of the Refunded 



 

 24 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

Obligations or notes or bonds refunded by the Refunded Obligations) other than taxes of 
general application and interest earned on investments acquired with such Gross Proceeds 
pending application for their intended purposes. 

(c)  No Private Loan.  Except to the extent permitted by Section 141 of the Code and 
the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not use Gross Proceeds of such Tax-Exempt 
Certificates to make or finance loans to any person or entity other than a state or local government.  
For purposes of the foregoing covenant, Gross Proceeds are considered to be “loaned” to a person 
or entity if (1) property acquired, constructed or improved with Gross Proceeds (including property 
financed with Gross Proceeds of the Refunded Obligations or notes or bonds refunded by the 
Refunded Obligations) is sold or leased to such person or entity in a transaction which creates a 
debt for federal income tax purposes, (2) capacity in or service from such property is committed 
to such person or entity under a take-or-pay, output, or similar contract or arrangement, or (3) 
indirect benefits, or burdens and benefits of ownership, of such Gross Proceeds or such property 
are otherwise transferred in a transaction which is the economic equivalent of a loan. 

(d)  Not to Invest at Higher Yield.  Except to the extent permitted by Section 148 of 
the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not, at any time prior to the 
earlier of the final stated maturity or final payment of such Tax-Exempt Certificates, directly or 
indirectly invest Gross Proceeds of such Tax-Exempt Certificates in any Investment (or use such 
Gross Proceeds to replace money so invested), if as a result of such investment the Yield of all 
Investments allocated to such Gross Proceeds whether then held or previously disposed of, exceeds 
the Yield on the Tax-Exempt Certificates. 

(e)  Not Federally Guaranteed.  Except to the extent permitted by Section 149(b) of the 
Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not take or omit to take any action 
which would cause the Tax-Exempt Certificates to be federally guaranteed within the meaning of 
Section 149(b) of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder. 

(f)  Information Report.  The City shall timely file with the Secretary of the Treasury 
the information required by Section 149(e) of the Code with respect to the Tax-Exempt Certificates 
on such forms and in such place as such Secretary may prescribe.  

(g) Payment of Rebate Amount.  Except to the extent otherwise provided in Section 
148(f) of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall: 

(i) account for all Gross Proceeds (including all receipts, expenditures and 
investments thereof) on its books of account separately and apart from all other funds (and 
receipts, expenditures and investments thereof) and shall retain all records of such 
accounting for at least six years after the final Computation Date.  The City may, however, 
to the extent permitted by law, commingle Gross Proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Certificates 
with other money of the City, provided that the City separately accounts for each receipt 
and expenditure of such Gross Proceeds and the obligations acquired therewith, 

(ii) calculate the Rebate Amount with respect to the Tax-Exempt Certificates 
not less frequently than each Computation Date, in accordance with rules set forth in 
Section 148(f) of the Code, Section 1.148-3 of the Regulations, and the rulings thereunder.  



 

 25 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

The City shall maintain a copy of such calculations for at least six years after the final 
Computation Date, 

(iii) as additional consideration for the purchase of the Tax-Exempt Certificates 
by the initial purchaser thereof and the loan of the money represented thereby, and in order 
to induce such purchase by measures designed to ensure the excludability of the interest 
thereon from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes, pay 
to the United States the amount described in paragraph (ii) above at the times, in the 
installments, to the place, in the manner and accompanied by such forms or other 
information as is or may be required by Section 148(f) of the Code and the Regulations 
and rulings thereunder, and 

(iv) exercise reasonable diligence to assure that no errors are made in the 
calculations required by paragraph (ii) and, if such error is made, to discover and promptly 
to correct such error within a reasonable amount of time thereafter, including payment to 
the United States of any interest and any penalty required by the Regulations. 

(h)  Not to Divert Arbitrage Profits.  Except to the extent permitted by Section 148 of 
the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not enter into any transaction 
that reduces the amount required to be paid to the United States pursuant to Subsection (h) of this 
Section because such transaction results in a smaller profit or a larger loss than would have resulted 
if the transaction had been at arm’s length and had the Yield of the Tax-Exempt Certificates, not 
been relevant to either party.  

(i) Not Hedge Bonds.  The City did not invest more than 50 percent of the Proceeds of 
any series of the Refunded Obligations (or, if applicable, the obligations refunded by the Refunded 
Obligations (the “Original Bonds”)) in Nonpurpose Investments having a guaranteed yield for four 
years or more.  On the Issue Date of the Refunded Obligations, or, if applicable, the Original 
Bonds, the City reasonably expected that at least 85 percent of the Net Sale Proceeds of each series 
of the Refunded Obligations, or, if applicable, the Original Bonds, would be used to carry out the 
governmental purpose of such series within three years after the Issue Date of such series. 

Section 9.04 Disposition of Project.  The City covenants that the property financed or 
refinanced with the proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Certificates will not be sold or otherwise disposed 
in a transaction resulting in the receipt by the City of cash or other compensation, unless the City 
obtains an opinion of a nationally-recognized bond counsel substantially to the effect that such 
sale or other disposition will not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Tax-Exempt 
Certificates.  For purposes of this Section, the portion of the property comprising personal property 
and disposed of in the ordinary course of business shall not be treated as a transaction resulting in 
the receipt of cash or other compensation.  For purposes of this Section, the City shall not be 
obligated to comply with this covenant if it obtains an opinion of a nationally-recognized bond 
counsel to the effect that such failure to comply will not adversely affect the excludability for 
federal income tax purposes from gross income of the interest.   



 

 26 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

ARTICLE X 
DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 10.01 Events of Default. 

Each of the following occurrences or events for the purpose of this Ordinance is hereby 
declared to be an Event of Default: 

(i) the failure to make payment of the principal of or interest on any of the 
Certificates when the same becomes due and payable; or 

(ii) default in the performance or observance of any other covenant, agreement, 
or obligation of the City, which default materially and adversely affects the rights of the 
Owners, including but not limited to their prospect or ability to be repaid in accordance 
with this Ordinance, and the continuation thereof for a period of sixty (60) days after notice 
of such default is given by any Owner to the City. 

Section 10.02 Remedies for Default. 

(a) Upon the happening of any Event of Default, then any Owner or an authorized 
representative thereof, including but not limited to a trustee or trustees therefor, may proceed 
against the City for the purpose of protecting and enforcing the rights of the Owners under this 
Ordinance by mandamus or other suit, action or special proceeding in equity or at law in any court 
of competent jurisdiction for any relief permitted by law, including the specific performance of 
any covenant or agreement contained herein, or thereby to enjoin any act or thing that may be 
unlawful or in violation of any right of the Owners hereunder or any combination of such remedies. 

(b) It is provided that all such proceedings shall be instituted and maintained for the 
equal benefit of all Owners of Certificates then outstanding. 

Section 10.03 Remedies Not Exclusive. 

(a) No remedy herein conferred or reserved is intended to be exclusive of any other 
available remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to 
every other remedy given hereunder or under the Certificates or now or hereafter existing at law 
or in equity; provided, however, that notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance, the 
right to accelerate the debt evidenced by the Certificates shall not be available as a remedy under 
this Ordinance. 

(b) The exercise of any remedy herein conferred or reserved shall not be deemed a 
waiver of any other available remedy. 



 

 27 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

ARTICLE XI 
DISCHARGE 

Section 11.01 Discharge. 

Except as otherwise provided in the Pricing Certificate, the Certificates may be defeased, 
discharged or refunded in any manner permitted by applicable law. 

ARTICLE XII 
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING 

Section 12.01 Annual Reports. 

(a) The City shall provide annually to the MSRB, (1) within six (6) months after the 
end of each fiscal year of the City, financial information and operating data with respect to the 
City of the general type included in the final Official Statement authorized by Section 7.01 of this 
Ordinance, being information of the type described in Exhibit A hereto, including financial 
statements of the City if audited financial statements of the City are then available, and (2) if not 
provided as part such financial information and operating data, audited financial statements of the 
City, when and if available.  Any financial statements to be provided shall be (i) prepared in 
accordance with the accounting principles described in Exhibit A, or such other accounting 
principles as the City may be required to employ from time to time pursuant to state law or 
regulation, and (ii) audited, if the City commissions an audit of such financial statements and the 
audit is completed within the period during which they must be provided.  If the audit of such 
financial statements is, not complete within twelve (12) months after any such fiscal year end, then 
the City shall file unaudited financial statements within such 12-month period and audited financial 
statements for the applicable fiscal year, when and if the audit report on such financial statements 
becomes available. 

(b) If the City changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of the 
date of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the City otherwise would be required 
to provide financial information and operating data pursuant to this Section. 

(c) The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Section 
may be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific referenced to any 
document (including an official statement or other offering document, if it is available from the 
MSRB) that theretofore has been provided to the MSRB or filed with the SEC. 

(d) An Authorized Officer is authorized to establish and implement written procedures 
to ensure compliance with the reporting requirements imposed by this Section.   Such procedures 
may be modified and amended by the Authorized Officer from time to time to the extent the 
modification or amendment of such procedures are deemed necessary, useful or appropriate.   

Section 12.02 Event Notices. 

(a) The City shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner (not in excess of ten (10) 
Business Days after the occurrence of an event), of any of the following events with respect to the 
Certificates: 



 

 28 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

(i) principal and interest payment delinquencies; 

(ii) nonpayment related defaults, if material; 

(iii) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties; 

(iv) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties; 

(v) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform; 

(vi) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of 
proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-
TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the 
Certificates, or other material events affecting the tax status of the Certificates; 

(vii) modifications to rights of Owners, if material;  

(viii) redemption calls, if material, and tender offers; 

(ix) defeasances; 

(x) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the 
Certificates, if material; 

(xi) rating changes; 

(xii) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the City; 

(xiii) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the 
City or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the City, other than in the ordinary 
course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the 
termination of a definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to 
its terms, if material;  

(xiv) appointment of a successor trustee or change in the name of the trustee, if 
material; 

(xv) incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the City, if material, or agreement 
to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a 
Financial Obligation of the City, any of which affect security holders, if material; and 

(xvi) default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or 
other similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the City, any of which 
reflect financial difficulties. 

For these purposes, (a) any event described in the immediately preceding paragraph (xii) 
is considered to occur when any of the following occur:  the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent, 
or similar officer for the City in a proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code or in any 
other proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed 



 

 29 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the City, or if such jurisdiction has 
been assumed by leaving the existing governing body and officials or officers of the City in 
possession but subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the 
entry of an order confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement, or liquidation by a court or 
governmental authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or 
business of the City, and (b) the City intends the words used in the immediately preceding 
paragraphs (xv) and (xvi) and the definition of Financial Obligation in this Ordinance to have the 
same meanings as when they are used in the Rule, as evidenced by SEC Release No. 34-83885, 
dated August 20, 2018. 

(b) The City shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the City to 
provide financial information or operating data in accordance with Section 12.01 of this Ordinance 
by the time required by such Section. 

Section 12.03 Identifying Information. 

All documents provided to the MSRB pursuant to this Article shall be provided in an 
electronic format and be accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the MSRB. 

Section 12.04 Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments. 

(a) The City shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in this 
Article for so long as, but only for so long as, the City remains an “obligated person” with, respect 
to the Certificates within the meaning of the Rule, except that the City in any event will give notice 
of any Certificate calls and any defeasances that cause the City to be no longer an “obligated 
person.” 

(b) The provisions of this Article are for the sole benefit of the Owners and beneficial 
owners of the Certificates, and nothing in this Article, express or implied, shall give any benefit or 
any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to any other person.  The City undertakes 
to provide only the financial information, operating data, financial statements, and notices which 
it has expressly agreed to provide pursuant to this Article and does not hereby undertake to provide 
any other information that may be relevant or material to a complete presentation of the City’s 
financial results, condition, or prospects or hereby undertake to update any information provided 
in accordance with this Article or otherwise, except as expressly provided herein.  The City does 
not make any representation or warranty concerning such information or its usefulness to a 
decision to invest in or sell Certificates at any future date. 

UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCES SHALL THE CITY BE LIABLE TO THE OWNER 
OR BENEFICIAL OWNER OF ANY CERTIFICATE OR ANY OTHER PERSON, IN 
CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR DAMAGES RESULTING IN WHOLE OR IN PART FROM 
ANY BREACH BY THE CITY, WHETHER NEGLIGENT OR WITHOUT FAULT ON ITS 
PART, OF ANY COVENANT SPECIFIED IN THIS ARTICLE, BUT EVERY RIGHT AND 
REMEDY OF ANY SUCH PERSON, IN CONTRACT OR TORT, FOR OR ON ACCOUNT OF 
ANY SUCH BREACH SHALL BE LIMITED TO AN ACTION FOR MANDAMUS OR 
SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE. 



 

 30 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

(c) No default by the City in observing or performing its obligations under this Article 
shall constitute a breach of or default under the Ordinance for purposes of any other provisions of 
this Ordinance. 

(d) Nothing in this Article is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit 
the duties of the City under federal and state securities laws. 

(e) The provisions of this Article may be amended by the City from time to time to 
adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or 
a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of the City, but only if (i) the provisions 
of this Article, as so amended, would have permitted an underwriter to purchase or sell Certificates 
in the primary offering of the Certificates in compliance with the Rule, taking into account any 
amendments or interpretations of the Rule to the date of such amendment, as well as such changed 
circumstances, and (ii) either (A) the Owners of a majority in aggregate principal amount (or any 
greater amount required by any other provisions of this Ordinance that authorizes such an 
amendment) of the outstanding Certificates consent to such amendment or (B) an entity or 
individual person that is unaffiliated with the City (such as nationally recognized bond counsel) 
determines that such amendment will not materially impair the interests of the Owners and 
beneficial owners of the Certificates.  If the City so amends the provisions of this Article, it shall 
include with any amended financial information or operating data next provided in accordance 
with Section 12.01 an explanation, in narrative form, of the reasons for the amendment and of the 
impact of any change in type of financial information or operating data so provided. 

ARTICLE XIII 
AMENDMENTS; ATTORNEY GENERAL MODIFICATION 

Section 13.01 Amendments. 

This Ordinance shall constitute a contract with the Owners, be binding on the City, and 
shall not be amended or repealed by the City so long as any Certificate remains outstanding except 
as permitted in this Section.  The City may, without consent of or notice to any Owners, from time 
to time and at any time, amend this Ordinance in any manner not detrimental to the interests of the 
Owners, including the curing of any ambiguity, inconsistency, or formal defect or omission herein.  
In addition, the City may, with the written consent of the Owners of the Certificates holding a 
majority in aggregate principal amount of the Certificates then outstanding, amend, add to, or 
rescind any of the provisions of this Ordinance; provided that, without the consent of all Owners 
of outstanding Certificates, no such amendment, addition, or rescission shall (i) extend the time or 
times of payment of the principal of and interest on the Certificates, reduce the principal amount 
thereof, the redemption price, or the rate of interest thereon, or in any other way modify the terms 
of payment of the principal of or interest on the Certificates, (ii) give any preference to any 
Certificate over any other Certificate, or (iii) reduce the aggregate principal amount of Certificates 
required to be held by Owners for consent to any such amendment, addition, or rescission. 

Section 13.02 Attorney General Modification. 

In order to obtain the approval of the Certificates by the Attorney General of the State of 
Texas, any provision of this Ordinance may be modified, altered or amended after the date of its 



 

 31 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

adoption if required by the Attorney General in connection with the Attorney General’s 
examination as to the legality of the Certificates and approval thereof in accordance with the 
applicable law.  Such changes, if any, shall be provided to the City Secretary and the City Secretary 
shall insert such changes into this Ordinance as if approved on the date hereof. 

ARTICLE XIV 
EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY 

Section 14.01 Effective Immediately. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of the City Charter, this Ordinance shall become effective 
immediately upon its adoption at this meeting pursuant to Section 1201.028, Texas Government 
Code. 

[Signature Page Follows.] 

 



 

 Signature Page for Ordinance 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

PRESENTED, FINALLY PASSED AND APPROVED, AND EFFECTIVE on the 
22nd day of June, 2021, at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Lubbock, Texas. 

 

   
 DANIEL M. POPE, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
REBECCA GARZA, City Secretary 
 
 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
 
 
By:     
 D. BLU KOSTELICH, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:     
 JERRY V. KYLE, JR., Bond Counsel 

 
 



 

 Exhibit A-1 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

DESCRIPTION OF ANNUAL DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION* 

The following information is referred to in Article XII of this Ordinance. 

Annual Financial Statements and Operating Data 

The financial information and operating data with respect to the City to be provided 
annually in accordance with such Section are as specified (and included in the Appendix or other 
headings of the Official Statement referred to) below: 

1. The portions of the financial statements of the City appended to the Official 
Statement as APPENDIX B, but for the most recently concluded fiscal year. 

2. Statistical and financial data set forth in the Official Statement in “APPENDIX A - 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE CITY” (Tables 1-5 and 7-17). 

Accounting Principles 

The accounting principles referred to in such Section are the accounting principles 
described in the notes to the financial statements referred to in Paragraph 1 above. 

 

* Subject to any changes prescribed by the Pricing Certificate. 

 



 

 Exhibit B-1 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

SALE PARAMETERS 

In accordance with Section 7.01(a) of the Ordinance, the following conditions with respect 
to the Certificates of each series must be satisfied in order for the Authorized Officer to act on 
behalf of the City in selling and delivering Certificates to the Purchaser: 

(a) the price to be paid for the Certificates of any series shall not be less than 90% of 
the aggregate principal amount of the Certificates of such series; 

(b) the interest rate of the Certificates of any series shall not exceed the maximum rate 
allowed by Chapter 1204, Texas Government Code, as amended; 

(c) no Certificate shall mature later than twenty-one (21) years after the date of its 
delivery; 

(d) the principal amount of the Certificates of each series shall produce proceeds in an 
amount sufficient, as determined by the Authorized Officer, to fund the purpose(s) identified in 
Section 3.01(a) being financed by the issuance of the Certificates of such series and such principal 
amount (when combined with the aggregate principal amount of any other series of Certificates 
issued pursuant to this Ordinance) shall not exceed the maximum amount authorized by Section 
3.01(b) of this Ordinance; and 

(e) the Certificates to be issued, prior to delivery, must have been rated by a nationally 
recognized rating agency for municipal securities in one of the four highest rating categories for 
long term obligations. 

 



 

 Exhibit C-1 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

FORM OF THE CERTIFICATES 

The form of the Certificates, including the form of the Registration Certificate of the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the form of Certificate of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar and the form of Assignment appearing on the Certificates, shall be generally as 
follows, provided, however, that the substantially final form of the Certificates shall be set forth 
in or attached to the Pricing Certificate and shall incorporate and reflect the final terms of the 
Certificates set forth in the Pricing Certificate: 

(a) Form of Certificate. 

REGISTERED REGISTERED 
No. _____ $___________ 

 
United States of America 

State of Texas 
County of Lubbock 

CITY OF LUBBOCK, TEXAS 
COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE 

CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION 
[TAXABLE] SERIES 20[__] 

INTEREST RATE: MATURITY DATE: 
CERTIFICATE 

DATE CUSIP NUMBER 
    

____% ________ ________1 ________ 
 

The City of Lubbock (the “City”), in the County of Lubbock, State of Texas, for value 
received, hereby promises to pay to 

    
 
or registered assigns, on the Maturity Date specified above, the sum of 

  DOLLARS  
 
unless this Certificate shall have been sooner called for redemption and the payment of the 
principal hereof shall have been paid or provided for, and to pay interest on such principal amount 
from the later of the Certificate Date specified above or the most recent interest payment date to 
which interest has been paid or provided for until payment of such principal, amount has been paid 
or provided for, at the per annum rate of interest specified above, computed on the basis of a 
360-day year of twelve 30-day months, such interest to be paid semiannually on February 15 and 

                                                 
1 Information to be inserted from Pricing Certificate. 



 

 Exhibit C-2 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

August 15 of each year, commencing ________2.  All capitalized terms used herein but not defined 
shall have the meaning assigned to them in the Ordinance (defined below). 

The principal of this Certificate shall be payable without exchange or collection charges in 
lawful money of the United States of America upon presentation and surrender of this Certificate 
at the corporate trust office in Dallas, Texas (the “Designated Payment/Transfer Office”), of The 
Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, National Association, the initial Paying 
Agent/Registrar or, with respect to a successor Paying Agent/Registrar, at the Designated 
Payment/Transfer Office of such successor.  Interest on this Certificate is payable by check dated 
as of the interest payment date, and will be mailed by the Paying Agent/Registrar to the registered 
owner at the address shown on the registration books kept by the Paying Agent/Registrar or by 
such other customary banking arrangement acceptable to the Paying Agent/Registrar and the 
registered owner; provided, however, such registered owner shall bear all risk and expenses of 
such customary banking arrangement.  At the option of an Owner of at least $1,000,000 principal 
amount of the Certificates, interest may be paid by wire transfer to the bank account of such Owner 
on file with the Paying Agent/Registrar.  For the purpose of the payment of interest on this 
Certificate, the registered owner shall be the person in whose name this Certificate is registered at 
the close of business on the “Record Date,” which shall be the last Business Day of the month next 
preceding such interest payment date; provided, however, that in the event of nonpayment of 
interest on a scheduled payment date and for 30 days thereafter, a new record date for such interest 
payment (a “Special Record Date”) will be established by the Paying Agent/Registrar, if and when 
funds for the payment of such interest have been received from the City.  Notice of the Special 
Record Date and of the scheduled payment date of the past due interest (the “Special Payment 
Date,” which shall be 15 days after the Special Record Date) shall be sent at least five Business 
Days prior to the Special Record Date by first-class United States mail, postage prepaid, to the 
address of each owner of a Certificate appearing in the registration books of the Paying 
Agent/Registrar at the close of business on the last Business Day next preceding the date of mailing 
of such notice. 

If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on this Certificate shall be a 
Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions in the city where the 
Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar is located are required or 
authorized by law or executive order to close, the date for such payment shall be the next 
succeeding day that is not a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions 
are required or authorized to close, and payment on such date shall have the same force and effect 
as if made on the original date payment was due. 

This Certificate is one of a series of fully registered certificates specified in the title hereof 
issued in the aggregate principal amount of $_______3 (herein referred to as the “Certificates”), 
issued pursuant to a certain ordinance of the City (the “Ordinance”) for the purpose of paying 
contractual obligations to be incurred for authorized public improvements (collectively, the 
“Project”), as described in the Ordinance, and to pay the contractual obligations for professional 
services of attorneys, financial advisors and other professionals in connection with the Project and 
the issuance of the Certificates. 

                                                 
2 Information to be inserted from Pricing Certificate. 
3 Information to be inserted from Pricing Certificate. 



 

 Exhibit C-3 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

[The City has reserved the option to redeem the Certificates maturing on or after 
February 15, 20__, in whole or in part, before their respective scheduled maturity dates, on 
________, 20__, or on any date thereafter, at a price equal to the principal amount of the 
Certificates so called for redemption plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.  If less 
than all of the Certificates are to be redeemed, the City shall determine the maturity or maturities 
and the amounts thereof to be redeemed and shall direct the Paying Agent/Registrar to call by lot 
or other customary method that results in a random selection the Certificates, or portions thereof, 
within such maturity and in such principal amounts, for redemption]4 

[Certificates maturing on February 15 in each of the years ____ through __, inclusive (the 
“Term Certificates”), are subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption prior to their scheduled 
maturity, and will be redeemed by the City, in part at a redemption price equal to the principal 
amount thereof, without premium, plus interest accrued to the redemption date, on the dates and 
in the principal amounts shown in the following schedule: 

 Term Certificates Maturing February 15, 20___  
 
 Redemption Date Principal Amount  
    
 February 15, 20_   
 February 15, 20_   
 February 15, 20_ (maturity)   

 
The Paying Agent/Registrar will select by lot or by any other customary method that results 

in a random selection the specific Term Certificates or with respect to Term Certificates having a 
denomination in excess of $5,000, each $5,000 portion thereof) to be redeemed by mandatory 
redemption.  The principal amount of Term Certificates required to be redeemed on any 
redemption date pursuant to the foregoing mandatory sinking fund redemption provisions hereof 
shall be reduced, at the option of the City, by the principal amount of any Certificates which, at 
least forty-five (45) days prior to the mandatory sinking fund redemption date (i) shall have been 
acquired by the City at a price not exceeding the principal amount of such Certificates plus accrued 
interest to the date of purchase thereof, and delivered to the Paying Agent/Registrar for 
cancellation, or (ii) shall have been redeemed pursuant to the optional redemption provisions 
hereof and not previously credited to a mandatory sinking fund redemption.]5 

Notice of such redemption or redemptions shall be given by first class mail, postage 
prepaid, not less than thirty (30) days before the date fixed for redemption, to the registered owner 
of each of the Certificates to be redeemed in whole or in part.  In the Ordinance, the City reserves 
the right in the case of an optional redemption to give notice of its election or direction to redeem 
Certificates conditioned upon the occurrence of subsequent events.  Such notice may state (i) that 
the redemption is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys and/or authorized securities, in an 
amount equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption, with the Paying Agent/Registrar, 
or such other entity as may be authorized by law, no later than the redemption date or (ii) that the 
City retains the right to rescind such notice at any time prior to the scheduled redemption date if 
the City delivers a certificate of the City to the Paying Agent/Registrar instructing the Paying 
                                                 
4 Insert optional redemption provisions, if any, and revise as necessary to conform to the Pricing Certificate. 
5 Insert mandatory sinking fund redemption provisions, if any, and conform as necessary to the Pricing Certificate. 



 

 Exhibit C-4 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

Agent/Registrar to rescind the redemption notice, and such notice and redemption shall be of no 
effect if such moneys and/or authorized securities are not so deposited or if the notice is rescinded.  
The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give prompt notice of any such rescission of a conditional notice 
of redemption to the affected owners.  Any Certificates subject to conditional redemption where 
redemption has been rescinded shall remain Outstanding, and the rescission shall not constitute an 
event of default.  Further, in the case of a conditional redemption, the failure of the City to make 
moneys and/or authorized securities available in part or in whole on or before the redemption date 
shall not constitute an event of default. 

As provided in the Ordinance, and subject to certain limitations therein set forth, this 
Certificate is transferable upon surrender of this Certificate for transfer at the designated office of 
the Paying Agent/Registrar with such endorsement or other evidence of transfer as is acceptable 
to the Paying Agent/Registrar; thereupon, one or more new fully registered Certificates of the same 
stated maturity, of authorized denominations, bearing the same rate of interest, and for the same 
aggregate principal amount will be issued to the designated transferee or transferees. 

Neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to issue, transfer or 
exchange any Certificate called for redemption where such redemption is scheduled to occur 
within forty five (45) calendar days of the transfer or exchange date; provided, however, such 
limitation shall not be applicable to an exchange by the registered owner of the uncalled principal 
balance of a Certificate. 

The City, the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any other person may treat the person in whose 
name this Certificate is registered as the owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment as 
herein provided (except interest shall be paid to the person in whose name this Certificate is 
registered on the Record Date or Special Record Date, as applicable) and for all other purposes, 
whether or not this Certificate be overdue, and neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar 
shall be affected by notice to the contrary. 

IT IS HEREBY CERTIFIED AND RECITED that the issuance of this Certificate and the 
series of which it is a part is duly authorized by law; that all acts, conditions, and things to be done 
precedent to and in the issuance of the Certificates have been properly done and performed and 
have happened in regular and due time, form, and manner as required by law; that ad valorem taxes 
upon all taxable property in the City have been levied for and pledged to the payment of the debt 
service requirements of the Certificates within the limit prescribed by law; that, in addition to said 
taxes, further provisions have been made for the payment of the debt service requirements of the 
Certificates by pledging to such purpose Surplus Revenues, as defined in the Ordinance, derived 
by the City from the operation of the Water and Wastewater System in an amount limited to 
$1,000; that when so collected, such taxes and Surplus Revenues shall be appropriated to such 
purposes; and that the total indebtedness of the City, including the Certificates, does not exceed 
any constitutional or statutory limitation. 

 

 



 

 Exhibit C-5 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City has caused this Certificate to be executed by the 
manual or facsimile signature of the Mayor of the City and countersigned by the manual or 
facsimile signature of the City Secretary, and the official seal of the City has been duly impressed 
or placed in facsimile on this Certificate. 

  
   
 Mayor, City of Lubbock, Texas 
  
   
City Secretary,  
City of Lubbock, Texas  
  
[SEAL]  

 
(b) Form of Comptroller’s Registration Certificate.  The following Comptroller’s 

Registration Certificate may be deleted from the definitive Certificates if such certificate on the 
Initial Certificate is fully executed. 

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER §  
OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS § REGISTER NO. ______ 
OF THE STATE OF TEXAS §  

 
I hereby certify that there is on file and of record in my office a certificate of the Attorney 

General of the State of Texas to the effect that this Certificate has been examined by him as 
required by law, that he finds that it has been issued in conformity with the Constitution and laws 
of the State of Texas, and that it is a valid and binding obligation of the City of Lubbock, Texas; 
and that this Certificate has this day been registered by me. 

Witness my hand and seal of office at Austin, Texas, _______________________. 

  
   
[SEAL] Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State 

of Texas 
 

(c) Form of Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar.  The following Certificate of 
Paying Agent/Registrar may be deleted from the Initial Certificate if the Comptroller’s 
Registration Certificate appears thereon. 



 

 Exhibit C-6 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

CERTIFICATE OF PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR 

The records of the Paying Agent/Registrar show that the Initial Certificate of this series of 
Certificates was approved by the Attorney General of the State of Texas and registered by the 
Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, and that this is one of the Certificates 
referred to in the within-mentioned Ordinance. 

   
 as Paying Agent/Registrar 
  
  
Dated:    By:    
 Authorized Signatory 

 

(d) Form of Assignment. 

ASSIGNMENT 

FOR VALUE RECEIVED, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns, and transfers unto (print or 
typewrite name, address and Zip Code of transferee):  ___________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________________
_________________ (Social Security or other identifying number:  ______________) the within 
Certificate and all rights hereunder and hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints 
___________________ attorney to transfer the within Certificate on the books kept for registration 
hereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 

 
Dated:    NOTICE:  The signature on this Assignment 

must correspond with the name of the 
registered owner as it appears on the face of 
the within Certificate in every particular and 
must be guaranteed in a manner acceptable to 
the Paying Agent/Registrar. 

 
Signature Guaranteed By: 
 
  
Authorized Signatory 

 

(e) The Initial Certificate shall be in the form set forth in paragraphs (a), (b) and (d) of 
this Section, except for the following alterations: 

(i) immediately under the name of the Certificate the headings “INTEREST 
RATE” and “MATURITY DATE” shall both be completed with the words “As shown 
below” and the heading “CUSIP NUMBER” shall be deleted; and 

(ii) in the first paragraph of the Certificate, the words “on the Maturity Date 
specified above” shall be deleted and the following will be inserted:  “on February 15 in 



 

 Exhibit C-7 
 4164-8186-3983.1 
 

each of the years, in the principal installments and bearing interest at the per annum rates 
set forth in the following schedule: 

 Years Principal Installments Interest Rate  
 

(Information to be inserted from the Pricing Certificate 
pursuant to Section 3.02 of this Ordinance) 

 



   
Regular City Council Meeting 7. 6.           
Meeting Date: 06/22/2021  

Information
Agenda Item
Resolution - Lubbock Power & Light: Consider a resolution authorizing the publication of a Notice of
Intention to issue Electric Light and Power System Revenue Bonds, Series 2021.

Item Summary
The Electric Light and Power System (EL&PS) Revenue Bonds, Series 2021, are being issued for the
following purposes:  (i) to fund acquisition, purchasing, construction, improvement, renovation,
enlarging and/or equipping of property, buildings, structures, facilities, and/or related infrastructure for
Lubbock Power & Light (LP&L or System), and (ii) to refund interim obligations issued for such
purposes.
 
On April 23, 2019, the City Council approved an ordinance authorizing the issuance of short-term
(interim) obligations to fund LP&L’s capital program.  On that date the City Council established an
Electric Light and Power System Revenue Revolving Note Program (Note Program) and authorized the
issuance of program obligations, from time to time, in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed $300
million.
 
LP&L has utilized the Note Program to finance the significant investment in new power lines and
substation construction related to a 69kV inner transmission loop, a 115kV outer transmission loop, and
a 345kV interconnection to the Electric Reliability Council of Texas (ERCOT), along with other
ongoing System improvements.  
 
Now that construction is nearing completion on the ERCOT interconnection, LP&L wishes to convert
the interim obligations to long-term bonds.  The majority of the anticipated issuance is related to
transmissions costs that will be repaid from a new revenue stream, which is the recovery of System
transmission expenses through a transmission cost of service (TCOS) rate.  Additionally,
non-transmission related System improvements will also be financed, and will be repaid using existing
base rates.
 
The proceeds of the bonds will be used to pay off the principal and interest of the notes issued through
the Note Program with Bank of America, N.A.
 
At its meeting on August 10, 2021, the City Council will consider a single-reading ordinance
authorizing the issuance of the EL&PS Revenue Bonds, Series 2021.  The notice will be published once
a week for a period of thirty (30) days prior to the August 10th City Council meeting.

The total amount of project costs financed with the 2021 Bonds will not exceed $320,000,000. The
annual debt service payments for the 2021 Bonds are budgeted through the annual operating budget
process and are included in the LP&L long-term financial planning and rate model. The annual debt
service payments for the EL&PS Revenue Bonds are paid from the System revenues of LP&L. The first



debt service payment on this issuance will not be due until FY 2021-22.

Fiscal Impact
The total amount of project costs financed with the 2021 Bonds will not exceed $320,000,000.

Staff/Board Recommending
D. Blu Kostelich, Chief Financial Officer
Andy Burcham, Assistant Director/CFO, Lubbock Power & Light

Attachments
Resolution - LPandL Notice of Intent 








	Agenda
	2.04.__Board Appointments - Executive Session
	5.01.__Minutes - May 25, 2021R May 26, 2021S May 27, 2021S
	       ATT_5.25.2021
	       ATT_5.26.2021 S LEDA Press Conference
	       ATT_5.27.2021 S
	6.01.__Budget Amendment 30
	       ATT_Ordinance
	6.01.1.__Taxiways M & J - Silver Creek Construction, Inc.
	       ATT_Resolution - Silver Creek Construction
	       ATT_Bid Form
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary
	6.01.2.__Parkhill Amendment 3 - Professional Services
	       ATT_Resolution - Parkhill
	       ATT_Amendment 3 - Parkhill (c)
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	6.02.__Budget Amendment 31
	       ATT_Ordinance
	6.03.__Budget Amendment 32
	       ATT_Ordinance
	6.03.1.__Public Safety Software - Sciens, Consulting Services
	       ATT_Sciens LLC Resolution
	       ATT_Agreement 15963
	       ATT_Sciens Exhibit A
	Sciens pg 6.pdf
	Company Background
	Experience with CAD-LRMS-FRMS-DETENTION-Mobile Products

	Project Approach and Methodology
	Overview
	Project Phases
	Phase 1 – Needs Assessment & Planning
	Phase 2 – Request for Proposal
	Phase 3 – Vendor Evaluation and Selection
	Phase 4 – Contract Negotiations

	Ensuring Project Success

	Key Project Staff
	Experienced & Knowledgeable
	Project Team
	Resumes
	STEPHEN GOUSIE, PARTNER
	Specialties
	Education
	Publications & Speaking Engagements
	Research & Development
	Professional Certifications
	Professional Affiliations
	REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS
	Public Safety System Design, Selection & Implementation:
	Enterprise Resource Planning:
	IT Management Assessment & Planning:
	Fortune 100 e-Commerce Site Development & Deployment:
	ISO 9000 Certification:
	Management Systems Development:
	Business Process Reengineering:
	Safety Management System:
	Advanced Biometrics Technology Integration:
	Airport Security Program:
	International Sourcing Training Program:

	ERNEST PAGES, PARTNER
	Specialization
	Education
	Publications & Speaking Engagements
	Research & Development
	Professional Certifications
	Professional Affiliations
	Languages
	REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS
	Procurement and Contract Negotiation
	Executive Advisory, Business Planning & Feasibility
	Business Process Improvement
	Implementation Project Management
	Technology Management


	Representative Projects
	References
	Reference Letter

	0B0BSOFTWARE
	Cost Proposal and Timeline
	Project Cost Detail
	Purchasing Cooperatives
	Timeline

	Additional Information
	Required City Involvement



	       ATT_Sciens Exhibit B
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	6.04.__Budget Amendment 33
	       ATT_Ordinance
	6.04.1.__Texas DSHS - HIV Prevention
	       ATT_Resolution HIV
	       ATT_Contract HIV
	6.05.__Budget Amendment 34
	       ATT_Ordinance
	6.06.__Budget Amendment 35
	       ATT_Ordinance
	6.07.__Budget Amendment 36
	       ATT_Ordinance
	       ATT_Resolution
	6.08.__CRMWA Refunding, Series 2021
	       ATT_Resolution - CRMWA 2021 Refunding Series
	       ATT_City Secretary Certificate - CRMWA 2021 Refunding
	6.09.__ROW - Easement, Section 7 Block JS 
	       ATT_Ordinance Abandon and Close a Portion of a DRE and a DRE - Spanish Bit Court - Sec 7 Blk JS
	       ATT_Exhibit A - Closure of a Portion of a DRE and a DRE - Spainish Bit Court - Sec 7 Blk JS
	       ATT_Map - Closure of a Portion of a DRE and a DRE - Spanish Bit Court - Sec 7 Blk JS 
	6.10.__Annexation Water Lines - Rink's Lease Service
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Construction Contract
	       ATT_Location Map  - Alternate 2
	       ATT_Location Map - Alternate 1
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary Report
	6.11.__Lift Station 34 Design Services - Freese & Nichols
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Professional Service Contract
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_CIP Spreadsheet 
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary Report
	6.12.__Low Pressure Supply Line - Horseshoe Construction
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Construction Contract 
	       ATT_Location Map
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_Project Summary Sheet
	6.13.__Elevatored Storage Tank Design - Freese & Nichols
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Professional Service Agreement
	       ATT_Budget Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	       ATT_CIP Detail
	6.14.__Insertion Valves - Hydra-Stop
	       ATT_Resolution-Hydra-Stop
	       ATT_Contract-Hydra Stop
	6.15.__1611 Avenue L Downtown Permittable Grant 
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Supporting Documentation
	6.16.__1611 Avenue L Downtown Facade Grant 
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Supporting Documentation
	6.17.__701 Broadway Downtown Permittable Grant
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Supporting Documentation
	6.18.__701 Broadway Downtown Facade Grant
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Supporting Documentation
	6.19.__1401 Texas Downtown Facade Grant
	       ATT_Resolution 
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Resolution
	       ATT_Market Lubbock Supporting Documentation
	6.20.__MOU with DSHS
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_MOU DSHS HHS001031800017
	6.21.__2020-21 ESG Contract - Salvation Army
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Contract
	EMERGENCY SOLUTIONS GRANT (ESG) FUNDING AGREEMENT
	BETWEEN
	RECITALS:
	I. SCOPE OF PROGRAM
	II. TERM OF AGREEMENT
	III. DISBURSEMENT AND FUNDS
	IV. GENERAL CONDITIONS
	V. ASSURANCES AND CERTIFICATIONS
	VI. ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS
	VII. EVALUATION AND MONITORING
	VIII. LIABILITY
	IX. ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS
	X. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
	XI. ASSIGNABILITY
	XII. EXCLUSIVITY OF AGREEMENT
	XIII. AMENDMENTS OR MODIFICATIONS
	XIV. VIOLATION OF TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	XV. CLOSE-OUT
	XVI. VALIDITY AND SEVERABILITY
	XVII. WAIVER
	XVIII. AGREEMENT DOCUMENT, EXHIBITS, AND ATTACHMENTS
	IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE PARTIES HAVE EXECUTED THIS AGREEMENT AS OF THE RESPECTIVE DATES SET FORTHBELOW.
	SIGNATURES
	Peter Griffith, Board President
	ATTEST:
	APPROVED AS TO CONTENT:
	APPROVED AS TO FORM:

	6.22.__MOU - LPD and Star Care Specialty
	       ATT_MOU-LPDStar Care (c)- RESOLUTION
	       ATT_MOU-LPDStar Care (c)- CONTRACT
	6.23.__Redistricting Services - Bickerstaff Heath Delgado Acosta
	       ATT_Resolution-Redistricting Services
	       ATT_Redistricting Services Agreement
	6.24.__Freedom of Information Act Charges
	       ATT_Resolution - Freedom of Information Act
	6.25.__12th Disaster Declaration
	       ATT_Resolution - Continuing Mayor's 12th Declaration
	       ATT_Mayor's 12th Declaration of Disaster
	7.01.__Zone Case 1139-B
	       ATT_Ordinanace 1139-B
	       ATT_Staff Report 1139-B
	       ATT_Documentation 1139-B
	1139-B Packet.pdf
	4.1 Zone Case 1139-B.pdf
	Case Information
	1139b_1locator


	Notification Map
	1139-B Packet.pdf
	4.1 Zone Case 1139-B
	1139b_2imag
	1139b_3zoning
	1139b_4flup
	Photos
	App
	TABC Map
	Reply 1
	reply 2


	1139-B Packet
	4.1 Zone Case 1139-B
	1139-B reply letters 4-5
	Reply 6

	1139-B Reply 7

	1139-B Replies

	       ATT_Documentation 1139-B
	1139-B Packet.pdf
	4.1 Zone Case 1139-B.pdf
	Case Information
	1139b_1locator


	Notification Map
	1139-B Packet.pdf
	4.1 Zone Case 1139-B
	1139b_2imag
	1139b_3zoning
	1139b_4flup
	Photos
	App
	TABC Map
	Reply 1
	reply 2


	1139-B Packet
	4.1 Zone Case 1139-B
	1139-B reply letters 4-5
	Reply 6

	1139-B Reply 7

	1139-B Replies

	7.02.__Zone Case 2011-I
	       ATT_Ordinanace 2011-I
	       ATT_Staff Report 2011-I
	       ATT_Documentation 2011-I
	7.03.__Zone Case 3435
	       ATT_Ordinance 3435
	       ATT_Staff Report 3435
	       ATT_Documentation 3435
	3435 Staff Report - with KS edits
	3435 Case Information
	3435_1locator
	3435_2imag
	3435_3zoning
	3435_4flup
	3435 Application

	7.04.__Annexation Agreement - LEDA
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Municipal Service Agreement
	       ATT_Annexation Map
	       ATT_Exhibit _B_
	7.05.__2021A Certificates of Obligation
	       ATT_Lubbock Certificates Ser 2021A
	Article I  DEFINITIONS AND OTHER PRELIMINARY MATTERS
	Section 1.01 Definitions.
	Section 1.02 Findings.
	Section 1.03 Table of Contents, Titles, and Headings.
	Section 1.04 Interpretation.
	(a) Unless the context requires otherwise, words of the masculine gender shall be construed to include correlative words of the feminine and neuter genders and vice versa, and words of the singular number shall be construed to include correlative word...
	(b) Any action required to be taken on a date which is not a Business Day shall be done on the next succeeding Business Day and have the same effect as if done on the date so required.
	(c) Any duty, responsibility, privilege, power or authority conferred by this Ordinance upon an officer shall extend to an individual who occupies such office in an interim, acting or provisional capacity.
	(d) This Ordinance and all the terms and provisions hereof shall be liberally construed to effectuate the purposes set forth herein.


	Article II  SECURITY FOR THE CERTIFICATES; INTEREST AND SINKING FUND; PRIOR LIEN OBLIGATIONS
	Section 2.01 Payment of the Certificates.
	(a) Pursuant to the authority granted by the Texas Constitution and the laws of the State of Texas, there shall be levied and there is hereby levied for the current year and for each succeeding year thereafter while any of the Certificates or any inte...
	(b) The ad valorem tax thus levied shall be assessed and collected each year against all property appearing on the tax rolls of the City most recently approved in accordance with law, and the money thus collected shall be deposited as collected to the...
	(c) Said ad valorem tax, the collections therefrom, and all amounts on deposit in or required hereby to be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund are hereby pledged and committed irrevocably to the payment of the principal of and interest on the C...
	(d) The City hereby covenants and agrees that Surplus Revenues are hereby irrevocably pledged equally and ratably to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Certificates of each series.  The City reserves the right to issue Prior Lien Obli...
	(e) The amount of taxes to be assessed annually for the payment of debt service on the Certificates shall be determined in the following manner:
	(i) The City’s annual budget shall reflect (A) the amount of debt service requirements to become due on the Certificates in the next ensuing Fiscal Year and (B) the amount on deposit and budgeted for deposit in the Interest and Sinking Fund on the dat...
	(ii) The amount required to be provided in the next succeeding Fiscal Year from ad valorem taxes shall be the amount, if any, that the debt service requirements on the Certificates to be paid during the next Fiscal Year exceeds the amount then on depo...
	(iii) Following approval of the City’s annual budget, the City Council shall, by ordinance, establish a tax rate that is sufficient to produce taxes in an amount which, when added to the amount then on deposit or budgeted for deposit in the Interest a...

	(f) If the liens and provisions of this Ordinance shall be released in a manner permitted by Article XI hereof, then the collection of such ad valorem tax may be suspended or appropriately reduced, as the facts may permit, and further deposits to the ...

	Section 2.02 Interest and Sinking Fund.
	(a) A special fund or account for each series of Certificates (each, an “Interest Sinking Fund”) shall be and is hereby created solely for the benefit of the Certificates of such series and each such fund or account shall be maintained at an official ...
	(b) Money on deposit in or required by this Ordinance to be deposited to the Interest and Sinking Fund established for each series of Certificates shall be used solely for the purpose of paying the interest on and principal of the Certificates of such...

	Section 2.03 Issuance of Prior Lien Obligations; Additional Obligations.
	Section 2.04 Application of Prior Lien Obligations Covenants and Agreements.

	Article III  AUTHORIZATION; GENERAL TERMS AND PROVISIONS REGARDING THE CERTIFICATES
	Section 3.01 Authorization.
	(a) The City’s certificates of obligation (the “Certificates”) are hereby authorized to be issued and delivered in accordance with the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, specifically Subchapter C, Chapter 271, Texas Local Government Code, as...
	(b) The aggregate principal amount of Certificates issued pursuant to this Ordinance shall not exceed $30,000,000.
	(c) If Certificates are issue in more than one series, the provisions of this Ordinance shall apply to each such series in the manner, to the extent and subject to such terms and conditions as shall be specified in the Pricing Certificate therefor.

	Section 3.02 Date, Denomination, Maturities, and Interest.
	(a) The Certificates shall be dated the date set forth in the Pricing Certificate (the “Certificate Date”).  The Certificates shall be in fully registered form, without coupons, in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof and shall ...
	(b) The Certificates shall mature on the date or dates, in the years and in the principal amounts set forth in the Pricing Certificate.
	(c) Interest shall accrue and be paid on each Certificate respectively until its maturity or prior redemption, from the later of the Certificate Date or the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest has been paid or provided for at the rates...

	Section 3.03 Medium, Method, and Place of Payment.
	(a) The principal of and interest on the Certificates shall be paid in lawful money of the United States of America.
	(b) Interest on the Certificates shall be payable to the Owners as shown in the Register at the close of business on the Record Date; provided, however, in the event of nonpayment of interest on a scheduled Interest Payment Date and for 30 days therea...
	(c) Interest shall be paid by check, dated as of the Interest Payment Date, and sent United States mail, first class postage prepaid, by the Paying Agent/Registrar to each Owner, at the address thereof as it appears in the Register, or by such other c...
	(d) The principal of each Certificate shall be paid to the Owner thereof on the due date, whether at the maturity date or the date of prior redemption thereof, upon presentation and surrender of such Certificate at the Designated Payment/Transfer Offi...
	(e) If the date for the payment of the principal of or interest on the Certificates shall be a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday, or day on which banking institutions in the city where the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar...
	(f) Unclaimed Payments shall be segregated in a special escrow account and held in trust, uninvested by the Paying Agent/Registrar, for the account of the Owners of the Certificates to which the Unclaimed Payments pertain.  Subject to Title 6 of the T...

	Section 3.04 Execution and Registration of Certificates.
	(a) The Certificates shall be executed on behalf of the City by the Mayor and the City Secretary, by their manual or facsimile signatures, and the official seal of the City shall be impressed or placed in facsimile thereon.  Such facsimile signatures ...
	(b) In the event that any officer of the City whose manual or facsimile signature appears on the Certificates ceases to be such officer before the authentication of such Certificates or before the delivery thereof, such manual or facsimile signature n...
	(c) Except as provided below, no Certificate shall be valid or obligatory for any purpose or be entitled to any security or benefit of this Ordinance unless and until there appears thereon the Certificate of Paying Agent/Registrar substantially in the...
	(d) On the Closing Date, one Initial Certificate of each series reflecting the terms set forth in the Pricing Certificate and representing the entire principal amount of all Certificates, payable in stated installments to the Purchaser, or its designe...

	Section 3.05 Ownership.
	(a) The City, the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any other person may treat the person in whose name any Certificate is registered as the absolute owner of such Certificate for the purpose of making and receiving payment as herein provided (except intere...
	(b) All payments made to the Owner of a Certificate shall be valid and effectual and shall discharge the liability of the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar upon such Certificate to the extent of the sums paid.

	Section 3.06 Registration, Transfer, and Exchange.
	(a) So long as any Certificates remain outstanding, the City shall cause the Paying Agent/Registrar to keep at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office a register (the “Register”) in which, subject to such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, the...
	(b) The ownership of a Certificate may be transferred only upon the presentation and surrender of the Certificate at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar with such endorsement or other evidence of transfer as is accepta...
	(c) The Certificates shall be exchangeable upon the presentation and surrender thereof at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office of the Paying Agent/Registrar for a Certificate or Certificates of the same series, maturity and interest rate and in a de...
	(d) Each exchange Certificate delivered by the Paying Agent/Registrar in accordance with this Section shall constitute an original contractual obligation of the City and shall be entitled to the benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same exte...
	(e) No service charge shall be made to the Owner for the initial registration, subsequent transfer, or exchange for a different denomination of any of the Certificates.  The Paying Agent/Registrar, however, may require the Owner to pay a sum sufficien...
	(f) Neither the City nor the Paying Agent/Registrar shall be required to issue, transfer, or exchange any Certificate called for redemption, in whole or in part, where such redemption is scheduled to occur within forty-five (45) calendar days after th...

	Section 3.07 Cancellation.
	Section 3.08 Temporary Certificates.
	(a) Following the delivery and registration of the Initial Certificate and pending the preparation of definitive Certificates, the City may execute and, upon the City’s request, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver, one or more te...
	(b) Until exchanged for Certificates in definitive form, such Certificates in temporary form shall be entitled to the benefit and security of this Ordinance.
	(c) The City, without unreasonable delay, shall prepare, execute and deliver to the Paying Agent/Registrar the Certificates in definitive form; thereupon, upon the presentation and surrender of the Certificate or Certificates in temporary form to the ...

	Section 3.09 Replacement Certificates.
	(a) Upon the presentation and surrender to the Paying Agent/Registrar of a mutilated Certificate, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor a replacement Certificate of the same series and of like tenor and princip...
	(b) In the event that any Certificate is lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, the Paying Agent/Registrar, pursuant to the applicable laws of the State of Texas and in the absence of notice or knowledge that such Certificate has been acquire...
	(i) furnishes to the Paying Agent/Registrar satisfactory evidence of his or her ownership of and the circumstances of the loss, destruction, or theft of such Certificate;
	(ii) furnishes such security or indemnity as may be required by the Paying Agent/Registrar to save it and the City harmless;
	(iii) pays all expenses and charges in connection therewith, including, but not limited to, printing costs, legal fees, fees of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and any tax or other governmental charge that is authorized to be imposed; and
	(iv) satisfies any other reasonable requirements imposed by the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar.

	(c) If, after the delivery of such replacement Certificate, a bona fide purchaser of the original Certificate in lieu of which such replacement Certificate was issued presents for payment such original Certificate, the City and the Paying Agent/Regist...
	(d) In the event that any such mutilated, lost, apparently destroyed, or wrongfully taken Certificate has become or is about to become due and payable, the Paying Agent/Registrar, in its discretion, instead of issuing a replacement Certificate, may pa...
	(e) Each replacement Certificate delivered in accordance with this Section shall constitute an original additional contractual obligation of the City and shall be entitled to the benefits and security of this Ordinance to the same extent as the Certif...

	Section 3.10 Book-Entry-Only System.
	(a) Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, upon initial issuance of the Certificates, the Certificates shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC.  The definitive Certificates shall be initially issued in the form of a singl...
	(b) With respect to Certificates registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, the City and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall have no responsibility or obligation to any DTC Participant or to any person on behalf of whom such a DTC Participa...
	(c) An Authorized Officer is authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Representation Letter applicable to the City’s obligations (including the Certificates) delivered in book-entry-only form to DTC as securities depository for the Certifica...

	Section 3.11 Successor Securities Depository; Transfer Outside Book-Entry-Only System.
	Section 3.12 Payments to Cede & Co.

	Article IV  REDEMPTION OF CERTIFICATES BEFORE MATURITY
	Section 4.01 Redemption.
	Section 4.02 Optional Redemption.
	(a) The City reserves the option to redeem Certificates on the terms and in the manner provided in the Form of Certificate attached hereto as Exhibit C, with such changes as are required by the Pricing Certificate.
	(b) Except as otherwise provided in the Pricing Certificate, if less than all of the Certificates are to be redeemed pursuant to an optional redemption, the City shall determine the maturity or maturities and the amounts thereof to be redeemed and sha...
	(c) The City, at least forty-five (45) days before the redemption date, unless a shorter period shall be satisfactory to the Paying Agent/Registrar, shall notify the Paying Agent/Registrar of such redemption date and of the principal amount of Certifi...

	Section 4.03 Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption.
	Section 4.04 Partial Redemption.
	(a) Except as otherwise provided in the Pricing Certificate, a portion of a single Certificate of a denomination greater than $5,000 may be redeemed, but only in a principal amount equal to $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  If such a Certifica...
	(b) Upon surrender of any Certificate for redemption in part, the Paying Agent/Registrar, in accordance with Section 3.06 of this Ordinance, shall authenticate and deliver an exchange Certificate or Certificates in an aggregate principal amount equal ...
	(c) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall promptly notify the City in writing of the principal amount to be redeemed of any Certificate as to which only a portion thereof is to be redeemed.

	Section 4.05 Notice of Redemption to Owners.
	(a) The Paying Agent/Registrar shall give notice of any redemption of Certificates by sending notice by United States mail, first class postage prepaid, not less than thirty (30) days before the date fixed for redemption, to the Owner of each Certific...
	(b) The notice shall state the redemption date, the redemption price, the place at which the Certificates are to be surrendered for payment, and, if less than all the Certificates outstanding are to be redeemed, an identification of the Certificates o...
	(c) The City reserves the right to give notice of its election or direction to redeem Certificates under Section 4.02 conditioned upon the occurrence of subsequent events.  Such notice may state (i) that the redemption is conditioned upon the deposit ...
	(d) Any notice given as provided in this Section shall be conclusively presumed to have been duly given, whether or not the Owner receives such notice.

	Section 4.06 Payment Upon Redemption.
	(a) Before or on each redemption date, the City shall deposit with the Paying Agent/Registrar money sufficient to pay all amounts due on the redemption date and the Paying Agent/Registrar shall make provision for the payment of the Certificates to be ...
	(b) Upon presentation and surrender of any Certificate called for redemption at the Designated Payment/Transfer Office on or after the date fixed for redemption, the Paying Agent/Registrar shall pay the principal of and accrued interest on such Certif...

	Section 4.07 Effect of Redemption.
	(a) Notice of redemption having been given as provided in Section 4.05 of this Ordinance and subject to any conditions or rights reserved by the City under Section 4.05(c), the Certificates or portions thereof called for redemption shall become due an...
	(b) If the City shall fail to make provision for payment of all sums due on a redemption date, then any Certificate or portion thereof called for redemption shall remain outstanding and continue to bear interest at the rate stated on the Certificate u...

	Section 4.08 Lapse of Payment.

	Article V  PAYING AGENT/REGISTRAR
	Section 5.01 Appointment of Paying Agent/Registrar.
	Section 5.02 Qualifications.
	Section 5.03 Maintaining Paying Agent/Registrar.
	(a) At all times while any Certificates are outstanding, the City will maintain a Paying Agent/Registrar that is qualified under Section 5.02 of this Ordinance.
	(b) If the Paying Agent/Registrar resigns or otherwise ceases to serve as such, the City will promptly appoint a replacement.

	Section 5.04 Termination.
	Section 5.05 Notice of Change to Owners.
	Section 5.06 Agreement to Perform Duties and Functions.
	Section 5.07 Delivery of Records to Successor.

	Article VI  FORM OF THE CERTIFICATES
	Section 6.01 Form Generally.
	(a) The Certificates, including the Registration Certificate of the Comptroller of Public Accounts of the State of Texas, the Certificate of the Paying Agent/Registrar, and the Assignment form to appear on each of the Certificates, (i) shall be genera...
	(b) Any portion of the text of any Certificates may be set forth on the reverse side thereof, with an appropriate reference thereto on the face of the Certificates.
	(c) The definitive Certificates, if any, shall be typewritten, photocopied, printed, lithographed, or engraved, and may be produced by any combination of these methods or produced in any other similar manner, all as determined by the officers executin...
	(d) The Initial Certificate submitted to the Attorney General of the State of Texas may be typewritten and photocopied or otherwise reproduced.

	Section 6.02 CUSIP Registration.
	Section 6.03 Legal Opinion.
	Section 6.04 Statement of Insurance.

	Article VII  SALE AND DELIVERY OF CERTIFICATES; DEPOSIT OF PROCEEDS
	Section 7.01 Sale of Certificates:  Official Statement.
	(a) The Certificates shall be sold in accordance with the terms of this Ordinance, including this Section 7.01(a) and Exhibit B hereto, provided that all of the conditions set forth in Exhibit B can be satisfied.  As authorized by Chapter 1371, the Au...
	(b) An Authorized Officer is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver the Purchase Contract (in the case of a private placement or negotiated sale) or the winning bid (in the case of a competitive offering) in the form and on the terms ap...
	(c) The form and substance of the Preliminary Official Statement, and any addenda, supplement or amendment thereto, are hereby in all respects approved and adopted for use in connection with the public offering and sale of each series of Certificates,...
	(d) All officers of the City are authorized to execute such documents, certificates, receipts and other instruments as they may deem appropriate-in order to consummate the delivery of the Certificates in accordance with the terms of sale therefor incl...
	(e) The obligation of the Purchaser to accept delivery of the Certificates is subject to the closing conditions set forth in the Purchase Contract being satisfied, including specifically the Purchaser being furnished with the final, approving opinion ...

	Section 7.02 Control and Delivery of Certificates.
	(a) An Authorized Officer of the City is hereby authorized to have control of the Initial Certificate and all necessary records and proceedings pertaining thereto pending investigation, examination, and approval of the Attorney General of the State of...
	(b) After registration by the Comptroller of Public Accounts, delivery of the Certificates shall be made to the Purchaser under and subject to the general supervision and direction of the Authorized Officer, against receipt by the City of all amounts ...
	(c) In the event the Mayor or City Secretary is absent or otherwise unable to execute any document or take any action authorized herein, the Mayor Pro Tem and the Assistant City Secretary, respectively, shall be authorized to execute such documents an...

	Section 7.03 Deposit of Proceeds.

	Article VIII  INVESTMENTS
	Section 8.01 Investments.
	(a) Money in the Interest and Sinking Fund created by this Ordinance and any special accounts provided for in the Pricing Certificate pursuant to Section 7.03, at the City’s option, may be invested in such securities or obligations as permitted under ...
	(b) Any securities or obligations in which money in the Interest and Sinking Fund is so invested shall be kept and held in trust for the benefit of the Owners and shall be sold and the proceeds of sale shall be timely applied to the making of all paym...

	Section 8.02 Investment Income.
	(a) Interest and income derived from investment of the Interest and Sinking Fund shall be credited to such fund.
	(b) Interest and income derived from investment of other funds to be deposited pursuant to Section 7.03 hereof shall be credited to the fund or account where deposited or shall be transferred to the Interest and Sinking Fund as shall be determined by ...


	Article IX  PARTICULAR REPRESENTATIONS AND COVENANTS
	Section 9.01 Payment of the Certificates.
	Section 9.02 Other Representations and Covenants.
	(a) The City will faithfully perform at all times any and all covenants, undertakings, stipulations, and provisions contained in this Ordinance and in each Certificate; the City will promptly pay or cause to be paid the principal of and interest on ea...
	(b) The City is duly authorized under the laws of the State of Texas to issue the Certificates; all action on its part for the creation and issuance of the Certificates has been duly and effectively taken; and the Certificates in the hands of the Owne...

	Section 9.03 Covenants to Maintain Tax Exempt Status.
	(a) Not to Cause Interest on Tax-Exempt Certificates to Become Taxable.  The City shall not use, permit the use of or omit to use Gross Proceeds of any Tax-Exempt Certificates or any other amounts (or any property the acquisition, construction or impr...
	(b)  No Private Use or Private Payments.  Except as permitted by Section 141 of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall, at all times after the Issue Date of any Tax-Exempt Certificate and prior to the last stated maturity ...
	(i) exclusively own, operate, and possess all property the acquisition, construction, or improvement of which is to be financed directly or indirectly with Gross Proceeds of such Tax-Exempt Certificates (including property financed with Gross Proceeds...
	(ii) not directly or indirectly impose or accept any charge or other payment for use of Gross Proceeds of such Tax-Exempt Certificates or any property the acquisition, construction or improvement of which is to be financed directly or indirectly with ...

	(c)  No Private Loan.  Except to the extent permitted by Section 141 of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not use Gross Proceeds of such Tax-Exempt Certificates to make or finance loans to any person or entity other t...
	(d)  Not to Invest at Higher Yield.  Except to the extent permitted by Section 148 of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not, at any time prior to the earlier of the final stated maturity or final payment of such Tax-E...
	(e)  Not Federally Guaranteed.  Except to the extent permitted by Section 149(b) of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not take or omit to take any action which would cause the Tax-Exempt Certificates to be federally g...
	(f)  Information Report.  The City shall timely file with the Secretary of the Treasury the information required by Section 149(e) of the Code with respect to the Tax-Exempt Certificates on such forms and in such place as such Secretary may prescribe.
	(g) Payment of Rebate Amount.  Except to the extent otherwise provided in Section 148(f) of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall:
	(i) account for all Gross Proceeds (including all receipts, expenditures and investments thereof) on its books of account separately and apart from all other funds (and receipts, expenditures and investments thereof) and shall retain all records of su...
	(ii) calculate the Rebate Amount with respect to the Tax-Exempt Certificates not less frequently than each Computation Date, in accordance with rules set forth in Section 148(f) of the Code, Section 1.148-3 of the Regulations, and the rulings thereund...
	(iii) as additional consideration for the purchase of the Tax-Exempt Certificates by the initial purchaser thereof and the loan of the money represented thereby, and in order to induce such purchase by measures designed to ensure the excludability of ...
	(iv) exercise reasonable diligence to assure that no errors are made in the calculations required by paragraph (ii) and, if such error is made, to discover and promptly to correct such error within a reasonable amount of time thereafter, including pay...

	(h)  Not to Divert Arbitrage Profits.  Except to the extent permitted by Section 148 of the Code and the Regulations and rulings thereunder, the City shall not enter into any transaction that reduces the amount required to be paid to the United States...
	(i) Not Hedge Bonds.  The City did not invest more than 50 percent of the Proceeds of any series of the Refunded Obligations (or, if applicable, the obligations refunded by the Refunded Obligations (the “Original Bonds”)) in Nonpurpose Investments hav...

	Section 9.04 Disposition of Project.  The City covenants that the property financed or refinanced with the proceeds of the Tax-Exempt Certificates will not be sold or otherwise disposed in a transaction resulting in the receipt by the City of cash or ...

	Article X  DEFAULT AND REMEDIES
	Section 10.01 Events of Default.
	(i) the failure to make payment of the principal of or interest on any of the Certificates when the same becomes due and payable; or
	(ii) default in the performance or observance of any other covenant, agreement, or obligation of the City, which default materially and adversely affects the rights of the Owners, including but not limited to their prospect or ability to be repaid in ...

	Section 10.02 Remedies for Default.
	(a) Upon the happening of any Event of Default, then any Owner or an authorized representative thereof, including but not limited to a trustee or trustees therefor, may proceed against the City for the purpose of protecting and enforcing the rights of...
	(b) It is provided that all such proceedings shall be instituted and maintained for the equal benefit of all Owners of Certificates then outstanding.

	Section 10.03 Remedies Not Exclusive.
	(a) No remedy herein conferred or reserved is intended to be exclusive of any other available remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every other remedy given hereunder or under the Certificates or now or...
	(b) The exercise of any remedy herein conferred or reserved shall not be deemed a waiver of any other available remedy.


	Article XI  DISCHARGE
	Section 11.01 Discharge.

	Article XII  CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING
	Section 12.01 Annual Reports.
	(a) The City shall provide annually to the MSRB, (1) within six (6) months after the end of each fiscal year of the City, financial information and operating data with respect to the City of the general type included in the final Official Statement au...
	(b) If the City changes its fiscal year, it will notify the MSRB of the change (and of the date of the new fiscal year end) prior to the next date by which the City otherwise would be required to provide financial information and operating data pursua...
	(c) The financial information and operating data to be provided pursuant to this Section may be set forth in full in one or more documents or may be included by specific referenced to any document (including an official statement or other offering doc...
	(d) An Authorized Officer is authorized to establish and implement written procedures to ensure compliance with the reporting requirements imposed by this Section.   Such procedures may be modified and amended by the Authorized Officer from time to ti...

	Section 12.02 Event Notices.
	(a) The City shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner (not in excess of ten (10) Business Days after the occurrence of an event), of any of the following events with respect to the Certificates:
	(i) principal and interest payment delinquencies;
	(ii) nonpayment related defaults, if material;
	(iii) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;
	(iv) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;
	(v) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;
	(vi) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final determinations of taxability, Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB) or other material notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the ...
	(vii) modifications to rights of Owners, if material;
	(viii) redemption calls, if material, and tender offers;
	(ix) defeasances;
	(x) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Certificates, if material;
	(xi) rating changes;
	(xii) bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event of the City;
	(xiii) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the City or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the City, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake ...
	(xiv) appointment of a successor trustee or change in the name of the trustee, if material;
	(xv) incurrence of a Financial Obligation of the City, if material, or agreement to covenants, events of default, remedies, priority rights, or other similar terms of a Financial Obligation of the City, any of which affect security holders, if materia...
	(xvi) default, event of acceleration, termination event, modification of terms, or other similar events under the terms of a Financial Obligation of the City, any of which reflect financial difficulties.

	(b) The City shall notify the MSRB, in a timely manner, of any failure by the City to provide financial information or operating data in accordance with Section 12.01 of this Ordinance by the time required by such Section.

	Section 12.03 Identifying Information.
	Section 12.04 Limitations, Disclaimers and Amendments.
	(a) The City shall be obligated to observe and perform the covenants specified in this Article for so long as, but only for so long as, the City remains an “obligated person” with, respect to the Certificates within the meaning of the Rule, except tha...
	(b) The provisions of this Article are for the sole benefit of the Owners and beneficial owners of the Certificates, and nothing in this Article, express or implied, shall give any benefit or any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim hereunder to...
	(c) No default by the City in observing or performing its obligations under this Article shall constitute a breach of or default under the Ordinance for purposes of any other provisions of this Ordinance.
	(d) Nothing in this Article is intended or shall act to disclaim, waive, or otherwise limit the duties of the City under federal and state securities laws.
	(e) The provisions of this Article may be amended by the City from time to time to adapt to changed circumstances that arise from a change in legal requirements, a change in law, or a change in the identity, nature, status, or type of operations of th...


	Article XIII  AMENDMENTS; ATTORNEY GENERAL MODIFICATION
	Section 13.01 Amendments.
	Section 13.02 Attorney General Modification.

	Article XIV  EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY
	Section 14.01 Effective Immediately.
	A-
	B-
	C-



	7.06.__LP&L Bond - Notice of Intent to Issue
	       ATT_Resolution - LPandL Notice of Intent

